
Agenda &
 minutes

Full Council meeting of
Tuesday, 11 February 2020  

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/




Portsmouth City Council

A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL will be held at the Council Chamber - The 
Guildhall on Tuesday, 11 February 2020 at 2.00 pm and all members of the 
council are hereby summoned to attend to consider and resolve upon the 
following business:-

Agenda
1  Declarations of Members' Interests 

2  To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Ordinary Council 
meeting held on 14 January 2020 (Pages 5 - 24)

3  To receive such communications as the Lord Mayor may desire to lay 
before the Council, including apologies for absence. 

4  Deputations from the Public under Standing Order No 24 for all items 
excluding those in respect of item 6, which are dealt with separately 
on the agenda 

5  Appointments 

6  Petition - Save Hanway Medical Practice 

"Hanway Medical Practice is in danger of closure.

This surgery has been in the heart of Buckland's community for over 50 
years and serves a patient list of 14,000 people.

I want the partners of Hanway Medical Practice to consider all options to 
keep it open".

The Council’s rules state that as the petition contains more than 1,000 
signatures (which it does) it will be debated by the Full Council (if the lead 
petitioner so requests and they do) even if the issue has been considered 
by the Council within the last 24 months and it not a matter the Full Council 
can determine.
 
1. The lead petitioner, Mr Baldev Laly will be given six minutes to 

present the petition at the meeting,

2. Followed by any public deputations received on this item.

3. The Administration, via a proposer and seconder, will then present its 
response to the petition 



4. The petition will then be discussed by councillors and the normal 
rules of debate will apply.

7  Urgent Business - To receive and consider any urgent and important 
business from Members of the Cabinet in accordance with Standing 
Order No 26. 

It is proposed that the Budget and Tax Setting and Capital Programme 
reports and recommendations be taken and debated together on the basis 
that each item impacts on the other.

8  Portsmouth City Council Budget and Council Tax 2020/21 and Medium 
Term Budget Forecast 2021/22 to 2023/24 (Pages 25 - 76)

To receive and consider the recommendations of the Cabinet meeting held 
on 4 February (to follow), the report for which is attached.

9  Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 (Pages 77 - 162)

To receive and consider the recommendations of the Cabinet meeting held 
on 4 February (to follow), the report for which is attached.

10  Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 (Pages 163 - 176)

To receive and consider the recommendations of the Cabinet meeting held 
on 4 February (to follow), the report for which is attached.

11  Questions from Members under Standing Order No 17. (Pages 177 - 
178)

David Williams
Chief Executive

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social 
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting nor 
records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of 
devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on 
the wall of the meeting's venue.

Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other 
difficulties occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's website.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785  

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact the Local Democracy Manager at Stewart.Agland@portsmouthcc.gov.uk.

Civic Offices
Guildhall Square
PORTSMOUTH
3 February 2020

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785
mailto:Stewart.Agland@portsmouthcc.gov.uk


14 January 2020 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL held at the Guildhall 
Portsmouth on Tuesday, 14 January 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 

Council Members Present 
 

The Right Worshipful The Lord Mayor 
Councillor David Fuller (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors 

 
 Dave Ashmore 

Matthew Atkins 
Chris Attwell 
Simon Bosher 
Tom Coles 
Cal Corkery 
Ben Dowling 
Jason Fazackarley 
John Ferrett 
Scott Payter-Harris 
Graham Heaney 
Hannah Hockaday 
Jo Hooper 
Suzy Horton 
Lee Hunt 
Frank Jonas BEM 
Donna Jones 
Hugh Mason 
Lee Mason 

Stephen Morgan 
Gemma New 
Robert New 
Terry Norton 
Steve Pitt 
Will Purvis 
Darren Sanders 
Jeanette Smith 
Judith Smyth 
Luke Stubbs 
Benedict  Swann 
Linda Symes 
Claire Udy 
Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE 
Matthew Winnington 
Rob Wood 
Tom Wood 
Neill Young 

 
 

1. Declarations of Interests under Standing Order 13(2)(b)  
 
Councillor Darren Sanders declared a personal, non-pecuniary interest in 
agenda item 10, questions 4 and 5 as his mother lived in one of the flats 
under discussion. 
 

2. Minutes of the Council meeting held on 15 October 2019  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
Seconded by Councillor Donna Jones 
 
That the minutes of the council meeting held on 15 October 2019 be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the council meeting held on 15 October 
2019 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2 14 January 2020  
 

3. Communications and Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors George 
Fielding, Leo Madden, Steve Wemyss and Lynne Stagg. 
 
The Lord Mayor said that both Councillor Fielding and Councillor Stagg were 
attending funerals and expressed his condolences. 
 
Councillor Donna Jones advised that Councillor Hockaday would be late in 
arriving at the meeting. 
 
Councillor Jeanette Smith apologised that she would have to leave the 
meeting early. 
 
The Lord Mayor gave detailed information concerning filming in the chamber 
and reiterated the council's rules.  He advised that in order to assist online 
viewers a webcast camera will take an overview of members in the chamber 
when any voting takes place. 
 
The Lord Mayor then gave details of the evacuation procedure. 
 
The Lord Mayor drew members' attention to a small change in the seating 
plan which had been circulated to members. 
 
The Lord Mayor advised that John Jenkins MBE, our D-Day veteran who 
celebrated his 100th birthday last November, sadly passed away just before 
Christmas.  John was called up to the British Army in 1940 and by 1944 was 
serving as a sergeant with the Pioneer Corps.  He landed on Gold Beach 
around ten days after D-Day.  In June 2019 John made headlines around the 
world with his contribution to the national events to commemorate the 75th 
anniversary of D-Day earning a standing ovation from Her Majesty The Queen 
and world leaders.  John is survived by his daughter, two granddaughters, five 
great grandchildren and one great great grandson.  The Lord Mayor 
expressed condolences on behalf of the council to his family. 
 
Councillor Donna Jones said that John Jenkins had played a huge part in the 
lives of many local people. 
 
Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson mentioned the recent Ofsted inspection 
into special needs provision and expressed his recognition, thanks and 
congratulations to all concerned. 
 

4. Deputations from the Public under Standing Order No 24  
 
The City Solicitor advised that five deputations had been received for this 
meeting; one in respect of item 9(a), one in respect of item 9(c), one in 
respect of item 9(d) and two in respect of item 9(e).  He also advised that a 
written representation had been received in respect of item 9(g) from Solent 
NHS Trust. 
 

Page 6



14 January 2020 3 
 

 
 

Ms Nikki Coles made a deputation on item 9(a) - Surestart Centres - Family 
Hubs.  Honorary Alderman John Attrill made a deputation on agenda item 9(c) 
- Reinstatement of Learning Disability Day Care Cap. 
 
Mr Connor D'Arcy made a deputation on agenda 9(d) - Action on Carbon 
Reduction.  Mr Baldev Laly and Ms Kimberly Barrett each made a deputation 
on agenda item 9(e) - The city council notes that many doctors' surgeries in 
Portsmouth have closed over the last few years.  A written representation 
from Solent NHS was submitted and circulated in respect of agenda item 9(g) 
- Podiatry Services. 
 
The City Solicitor thanked everyone for their deputations. 
 

5. Questions from the Public under Standing Order 25  
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

6. Appointments  
 
Councillor Graham Heaney was appointed as a standing deputy for the 
Labour group on the Traffic, Environment and Community Safety Panel.  
Councillor Robert New was appointed as a full member of Licensing 
Committee (previously he was a standing deputy).  Councillor Gemma New 
was appointed as a standing deputy on Licensing Committee (she was 
previously a full member).  Councillor Lee Mason was appointed to replace 
Councillor Gemma New on the Health Overview Scrutiny Panel (HOSP) and 
is appointed as Vice Chair.  Councillor Gemma New became a Standing 
Deputy on HOSP. 
 

7. Urgent Business - To receive and consider any urgent and important 
business from Members of the Cabinet in accordance with Standing 
Order No 26  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

8. Number of Council Meetings held this Municipal Year  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
Seconded by Councillor Donna Jones 
 
That in the circumstances detailed at agenda item 8 on the Council agenda, 
Full Council formally notes that only 5 ordinary council meetings can 
reasonably be held this municipal year, rather than the 6 specified in Standing 
Order 6. 
 

Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the proposal set out above be adopted. 
 

Page 7



4 14 January 2020  
 

9. Notices of Motion  
 
There were seven notices of motion before council. 
 
9.a Sure Start Centres - Family Hubs  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Claire Udy 
Seconded by Councillor Jeanette Smith 
 
That this matter be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Claire Udy 
Seconded by Councillor Jeanette Smith 
 
That Notice of Motion (a) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
Following debate, upon being put to the vote, this was CARRIED 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
"The 2010-2015 coalition government took a decision to remove the ring-
fenced funding for Sure Start Centres and Local Councils began to 
reduce funding to such an extent that many closed. In Portsmouth Sure 
Start Centres now renamed Family Hubs go far beyond providing high 
quality early years childcare as they are at the heart of local 
communities across the city and provide a life line for many new 
parents. 
 
The Council reaffirms its commitment to Family Hubs across the city 
and asks the Cabinet to commit to continue to support these valuable 
community services with dedicated ring-fenced funding." 
 
9.b Wave Trust  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jeanette Smith 
Seconded by Councillor Claire Udy 
 
That this matter be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was 
 

Page 8



14 January 2020 5 
 

 
 

Proposed by Councillor Jeanette Smith 
Seconded by Councillor Claire Udy 
 
That Notice of Motion (b) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
Following debate, upon being put to the vote, this was CARRIED 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
"It is estimated that as much as 40% of all spending on public services 
is accounted for by interventions that could have been avoided by 
prioritising a preventive approach to early years development. 
 
Wave Trust is an independent organisation that wishes to pilot their 
preventive and integrated approach in Portsmouth. This has already 
been well received by group leaders.  
 
Council calls on the cabinet to look into a feasibility study of the project 
led by officers in Early Years/Voluntary Sector into whether this is right 
for the city and can aid with a more preventative and integrated 
approach to early years" 
 
9.c Reinstatement of Learning Disability Day Care Cap  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Terry Norton 
Seconded by Councillor Luke Stubbs 
 
That this matter be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Terry Norton 
Seconded by Councillor Luke Stubbs 
 
That Notice of Motion (c) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
As an amendment it was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Matthew Winnington 
Seconded by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
 
"to delete Paragraph 3 and replace with: 
 
"The council believes that charging for both day care and residential care has 
been unfair in its effect. It therefore calls on the Cabinet member for Health, 
Wellbeing and Social Care to investigate the introduction of a day care cap for 
all Social Care client groups and to advise councillors of the financial cost of 

Page 9



6 14 January 2020  
 
this. This consideration of all Social Care client groups would protect the 
council from potential legal action under equalities legislation which would be 
a risk if a change was made for just one client group. The Council also asks 
the Cabinet Member to write to the Secretary of State for Health & Social 
Care to lobby for the long delayed national Green Paper on Social Care, 
which is scheduled to consider charging, to be published forthwith to address 
the unfairness of charging of people for access to Social Care." 
 
The proposer of the original motion agreed to subsume the amendment into it. 
 
Following debate, upon the substantive notice of motion including the 
amendment being put to the vote, this was CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
"The removal of the cap on the cost of day care for learning disability 
clients is having a disproportionate effect on a small number of families. 
The Cabinet member report on 25th September 2018 identified four 
clients who face contributions in excess of £200-a-week and, although 
not documented in that report, there is at least one family facing 
contributions of nearly £500-a-week. This is a very significant burden.  
 
Moreover, the highest level of contributions is expected from people 
whose families have put aside significant sums to cover for their child’s 
benefit. Some clients only have what appears to be a good level of 
savings because their parents have made provision for them so they 
can have some of the extras in life and can enjoy a good standard of 
living. These families did not do this in order to take on costs that would 
otherwise automatically fall to the council. 
 
"The council believes that charging for both day care and residential 
care has been unfair in its effect. It therefore calls on the Cabinet 
member for Health, Wellbeing and Social Care to investigate the 
introduction of a day care cap for all Social Care client groups and to 
advise councillors of the financial cost of this. This consideration of all 
Social Care client groups would protect the council from potential legal 
action under equalities legislation which would be a risk if a change was 
made for just one client group. The Council also asks the Cabinet 
Member to write to the Secretary of State for Health & Social Care to 
lobby for the long delayed national Green Paper on Social Care, which is 
scheduled to consider charging, to be published forthwith to address 
the unfairness of charging of people for access to Social Care." 
 
9.d Action on Carbon reduction  
 
The seconder of this motion was unavoidably unavailable to attend the 
meeting which would cause it to be abandoned in normal circumstances. 
However as the reason for the Member's unavailability was owing to a 
bereavement  
 

Page 10



14 January 2020 7 
 

 
 

It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Stephen Morgan 
Seconded by Councillor Cal Corkery  
 
That Standing Orders be suspended for the duration of this item to enable it to 
be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, this was CARRIED. 
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Judith Smyth 
Seconded by Councillor Cal Corkery 
 
That Notice of Motion (d) be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Judith Smyth 
Seconded by Councillor Cal Corkery 
 
That Notice of Motion (d) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
As an amendment it was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Dave Ashmore 
Seconded by Councillor Steve Pitt 
 
"NOTE: Words which show as underlined are to be added to the original 
notice of motion, whereas words that have been strikethrough are to be 
deleted. 
 
Portsmouth City council agreed the Climate Emergency motion unanimously 
on 19 March 2019.  It is recognised that the city council has already taken 
actions which have contributed to a reduction in carbon emissions, including: 

- Multiple domestic energy schemes 
- The long term delivery of over 22,000 solar panels on Council 

properties 
- Installation of LED lighting in key buildings across the city, and 

conversion of 15,000 street lights to energy efficient LEDs 
- A greening strategy adding 50,000 trees in the city and more planting 

to come 
- Developing a food waste trial, converting some of the 40% of 

household waste that is food into biogas and fertiliser 
- Working to make changes to the city transport system, such as the 

conversion of buses with scrubbers which remove harmful fumes and 
make them Euro 6 compliant 

Page 11



8 14 January 2020  
 

- Introducing electric vehicle charging points for electric/hybrid cars, for 
those who are unable to charge off-street 

- Supporting Portsmouth International Port in their aim to become the 
first zero-emissions operations port in the UK, through measures such 
as replacing all floodlights with LED (reducing energy useage by 65%) 
and installing a sea water heat transfer pump to provide both heating 
and cooling for the new terminal building.  The Council further notes 
the arrival later this year of Brittany Ferries' new LNG vessel, The 
Honfleur. 

- Appointed a Climate Change Officer to coordinate carbon reduction, 
greening and sustainability across the city 

 
In order to achieve net zero carbon by 2030 we need towill accelerate 
progress especially by taking immediate action to progress low cost projects 
and by making allocations of capital and revenue where possible in the 
Council budget for 2020/21 in support of carbon action. 
 
The Cabinet is asked to therefore be asked to include outline business plans 
for new capital and revenue proposals that will demonstrably accelerate the 
implementation of the climate emergency motion in the forthcoming council 
budget for consideration by the next full council.  
 
This will include the following low cost actions listed below: 
 
1. Actively working with Local authorities - through the local government 

family -  who are ahead of Portsmouth in carbon reduction to learn from 
others, avoid the cost of ‘inventing the wheel’ and adopt proven 
strategy and policy documents where appropriate. For example, 
building on the work of Portsmouth City Council's adopted Air Quality 
Local Plan.   Southampton already have a Clean Air strategy. 

2. Continue Calling a cross party working of holding regular sessions for 
group spokespeople for Environment and Climate Change to meet with 
officers involved and the Cabinet Member to make affordable 
recommendations for the 2020/21 budget. (low cost) 

3. To use the convene a cross party working group to work with the 
Climate change Change board Board and oversee the development of 
a strategy and action plans to implement the agreed Climate 
emergency motion including an Integrated integrated transport 
strategy. (low cost) 

4. Considering raising car parking charges as part of the parking strategy 
for the city. (potentially income generating) 

5. To continue to call on the Government for funding for modes of travel 
that will reduce the need for journeys in our city by car, van or HGV 
and to invest this in active travel infrastructure. 

6. Continue with plans to implement more cycle lanes in the city and 
improve walking routes to help further the Local Cycling and walking 
Infrastructure Plan. 

7. Considering charging large employers for off road parking spaces 
rather than incentivising commuting by car, as part of the Parking 
Strategy for the city. (potentially income generating) 

68. Examining the feasibility and cost benefits of different ways of 
commissioning buses and bus operators to accelerate the provision of 

Page 12



14 January 2020 9 
 

 
 

greener buses and to retain surpluses for reinvestment in local bus 
services as part of the Air Quality Local Plan (only 2% of bus journeys 
are subsidised by the City Council, 98% are run by private companies 
over which the Council has limited control.(initial work low cost) 

79. Where the Council have the regulatory powers to do so, Develop 
develop and Incorporate incorporate new must do requirements to 
require carbon reduction in Portsmouth into all contracts and 
partnership agreements so that no all organisations  who can work to 
or with the city council have to demonstrate how they are  without 
contributing to the city's carbon reduction (low cost). 

810. Consider the feasibility of introducing Introduce a carbon reduction 
kitemark. and accessible list of approved businesses for local business 
that is eligible and signs up in return for the free advertising the scheme 
provides. Link this to a carbon information website. (Low cost) 

11. Continue discussions with voluntary organisations, such as Friends of 
the Earth, to develop an independent website to recommend pathways 
towards carbon reduction. 

12. Continue to work with members of our local communities to identify 
further areas for play streets in the city, after the successful launch of 
Francis Avenue. 

13. As part of the new Local Plan, establish the principle of increasing 
greening (including new trees where possible) across the city year on 
year, and working with all developers to maximise greening on their 
proposals. 

14. The Local Plan will be an important means of ensuring that new 
development addresses the challenge of climate change. With regard 
to securing emissions reductions and mitigating climate change, 
policies are being formulated that aim to bring about substantial 
reductions in carbon emissions in new development, equally policies 
are being developed to help adapt to climate change and reduce 
climate risk in new development.  

15. Extend and expand the successful food waste recycling pilot 
16. Continue to investigate the development of the council's plan for an 

anaerobic digestion facility to accept the food waste from the City 
Council's food waste recycling initiative. 

17. Investigate the provision of shore-to-ship electric charging points at 
Portsmouth International Port to reduce emissions. 

 
Notice of motion to therefore read: 
 
Portsmouth City council agreed the Climate Emergency motion unanimously 
on 19 March 2019.  It is recognised that the city council has already taken 
actions which have contributed to a reduction in carbon emissions, including: 

- Multiple domestic energy schemes 
- The long term delivery of over 22,000 solar panels on Council 

properties 
- Installation of LED lighting in key buildings across the city, and 

conversion of 15,000 street lights to energy efficient LEDs 
- A greening strategy adding 50,000 trees in the city and more planting 

to come 

Page 13



10 14 January 2020  
 

- Developing a food waste trial, converting some of the 40% of 
household waste that is food into biogas and fertiliser 

- Working to make changes to the city transport system, such as the 
conversion of buses with scrubbers which remove harmful fumes and 
make them Euro 6 compliant 

- Introducing electric vehicle charging points for electric/hybrid cars, for 
those who are unable to charge off-street 

- Supporting Portsmouth International Port in their aim to become the 
first zero-emissions operations port in the UK, through measures such 
as replacing all floodlights with LED (reducing energy usage by 65%) 
and installing a sea water heat transfer pump to provide both heating 
and cooling for the new terminal building.  The Council further notes 
the arrival later this year of Brittany Ferries' new LNG vessel, The 
Honfleur. 

- Appointed a Climate Change Officer to coordinate carbon reduction, 
greening and sustainability across the city 

 
In order to achieve net zero carbon by 2030 we will accelerate progress by 
taking immediate action to progress projects and by making allocations of 
capital and revenue in the Council budget for 2020/21 in support of carbon 
action.  
 
The Cabinet is asked to therefore include outline business plans for new 
capital and revenue proposals that will demonstrably accelerate the 
implementation of the climate emergency motion in the forthcoming council 
budget for consideration by the next full council.  
 
This will include the following low cost actions listed below: 
 
1. Actively working with Local authorities - through the local government 

family -  who are ahead of Portsmouth in carbon reduction to learn from 
others, avoid the cost of ‘inventing the wheel’ and adopt proven 
strategy and policy documents where appropriate. For example, 
building on the work of Portsmouth City Council's adopted Air Quality 
Local Plan.  

2. Continue cross party working of holding regular sessions for group 
spokespeople for Environment and Climate Change to meet with 
officers involved and the Cabinet Member to make affordable 
recommendations for the 2020/21 budget.  

3. To use the cross party working group to work with the Climate Change 
Board and oversee the development of a strategy and action plans to 
implement the agreed Climate emergency motion including an 
integrated transport strategy.  

4. Considering raising parking charges as part of the parking strategy for 
the city.  

5. To continue to call on the Government for funding for modes of travel 
that will reduce the need for journeys in our city by car, van or HGV 
and to invest this in active travel infrastructure. 

6. Continue with plans to implement more cycle lanes in the city and 
improve walking routes to help further the Local Cycling and walking 
Infrastructure Plan. 

Page 14



14 January 2020 11 
 

 
 

7. Considering charging large employers for off road parking spaces 
rather than incentivising commuting by car, as part of the Parking 
Strategy for the city.  

8. Examining the feasibility and cost benefits of different ways of 
commissioning buses and bus operators to accelerate the provision of 
greener buses and to retain surpluses for reinvestment in local bus 
services as part of the Air Quality Local Plan (only 2% of bus journeys 
are subsidised by the City Council, 98% are run by private companies 
over which the Council has limited control.  

9. Where the Council have the regulatory powers to do so, develop and 
incorporate new must do requirements to require carbon reduction in 
Portsmouth into all contracts and partnership agreements so that all 
organisations  who work with the city council have to demonstrate how 
they are contributing to the city's carbon reduction.  

10. Consider the feasibility of introducing a carbon reduction kitemark.  
11. Continue discussions with voluntary organisations, such as Friends of 

the Earth, to develop an independent website to recommend pathways 
towards carbon reduction. 

12. Continue to work with members of our local communities to identify 
further areas for play streets in the city, after the successful launch of 
Francis Avenue. 

13. As part of the new Local Plan, establish the principle of increasing 
greening (including new trees where possible) across the city year on 
year, and working with all developers to maximise greening on their 
proposals. 

14. The Local Plan will be an important means of ensuring that new 
development addresses the challenge of climate change. With regard 
to securing emissions reductions and mitigating climate change, 
policies are being formulated that aim to bring about substantial 
reductions in carbon emissions in new development, equally policies 
are being developed to help adapt to climate change and reduce 
climate risk in new development.  

15. Extend and expand the successful food waste recycling pilot 
16. Continue to investigate the development of the council's plan for an 

anaerobic digestion facility to accept the food waste from the City 
Council's food waste recycling initiative. 

17. Investigate the provision of shore-to-ship electric charging points at 
Portsmouth International Port to reduce emissions. 

 
As an amendment it was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Luke Stubbs 
Seconded by Councillor Simon Bosher 
 
"After paragraph one, add 
 

Any actions have to be balanced with other considerations. Council is 
keen to do what it can to protect the city's High Streets, all of which are 
suffering as retail patterns change. It therefore opposes any damaging 
moves to raise parking taxes. 

 

Page 15



12 14 January 2020  
 

Council notes the need to restrain spending. It is concerned that 
Carbon Neutral clauses in contracts may significantly inflate costs, 
leading to pressures to reduce other services or to significantly 
increase taxes. 
 
Council also notes the limits of its powers and specifically that local 
authorities have no control over rail services and only minor powers 
over buses.  

 
Delete recommendations 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 
 
Add a new recommendation 3 to say  
 
Continue the dialogue already on-going with public transport operators about 
how to improve services 
 
In place of recommendation 7, add 
 
Explore the likely cost implications of adding carbon reduction clauses into all 
contracts and partnership agreements and report this information back to Full 
Council 
 
At the end of the motion, add  
 
Council further resolves to lobby the Cabinet to: 
 
5. Not increase parking charges 
6. Not introduce workplace parking charges 
 
Renumber the recommendations so they are sequential. The amended 
motion should therefore read: 
 
Portsmouth City council agreed the Climate Emergency motion unanimously 
on 19 March 2019. In order to achieve net zero carbon by 2030 we need to 
accelerate progress especially by taking immediate action to progress low 
cost projects and by making allocations of capital and revenue where possible 
in the Council budget for 2020/21.  
 
Any actions have to be balanced with other considerations. Council is keen to 
do what it can to protect the city's High Streets, all of which are suffering as 
retail patterns change. It therefore opposes any damaging moves to raise 
parking taxes. 
 
Council notes the need to restrain spending. It is concerned that Carbon 
Neutral clauses in contracts may significantly inflate costs, leading to 
pressures to reduce other services or to significantly increase taxes. 
 
Council also notes the limits of its powers and specifically that local authorities 
have no control over rail services and only minor powers over buses.  
 
The Cabinet therefore be asked to include outline business plans for new 
capital and revenue proposals that will demonstrably accelerate the 

Page 16



14 January 2020 13 
 

 
 

implementation of the climate emergency motion in the forthcoming council 
budget for consideration by the next full council.  
 
This will include the following low cost actions listed below 
 
1. Actively working with Local authorities who are ahead of Portsmouth in 

carbon reduction to learn from others, avoid the cost of ‘inventing the 
wheel’ and adopt proven strategy and policy documents where 
appropriate. For example, Southampton already have a Clean Air 
strategy.  

2. Calling a cross party working group to make affordable 
recommendations for the 2020/21 budget (low cost)  

3. Continue the dialogue already on-going with public transport operators 
about how to improve services 

4. Explore the likely cost implications of adding carbon reduction clauses 
into all contracts and partnership agreements and report this 
information back to Full Council 

5. Introduce a carbon reduction kitemark and accessible list of approved 
businesses for local business that is eligible and signs up in return for 
the free advertising the scheme provides. Link this to a carbon 
information website. (Low cost) 

 
Council further resolves to lobby the Cabinet to: 
 
6. Not increase parking charges 
7. Not introduce workplace parking charges 
 
Council adjourned at 4.45 pm. 
 
Council resumed at 5.00 pm. 
 
Following debate, the mover of the original Motion agreed to subsume into it 
the Liberal Democrat amendment standing in the name of Councillor 
Ashmore. 
 
Upon being put to the vote the amendment standing in the name of Councillor 
Luke Stubbs was LOST 
 
Upon being put to the vote the original notice of motion incorporating the 
Liberal Democrat amendment was CARRIED 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
Portsmouth City Council agreed the Climate Emergency motion 
unanimously on 19 March 2019.  It is recognised that the city council has 
already taken actions which have contributed to a reduction in carbon 
emissions, including: 

- Multiple domestic energy schemes 
- The long term delivery of over 22,000 solar panels on Council 

properties 

Page 17



14 14 January 2020  
 

- Installation of LED lighting in key buildings across the city, and 
conversion of 15,000 street lights to energy efficient LEDs 

- A greening strategy adding 50,000 trees in the city and more 
planting to come 

- Developing a food waste trial, converting some of the 40% of 
household waste that is food into biogas and fertiliser 

- Working to make changes to the city transport system, such as 
the conversion of buses with scrubbers which remove harmful 
fumes and make them Euro 6 compliant 

- Introducing electric vehicle charging points for electric/hybrid 
cars, for those who are unable to charge off-street 

- Supporting Portsmouth International Port in their aim to become 
the first zero-emissions operations port in the UK, through 
measures such as replacing all floodlights with LED (reducing 
energy usage by 65%) and installing a sea water heat transfer 
pump to provide both heating and cooling for the new terminal 
building.  The Council further notes the arrival later this year of 
Brittany Ferries' new LNG vessel, The Honfleur. 

- Appointed a Climate Change Officer to coordinate carbon 
reduction, greening and sustainability across the city 

 
In order to achieve net zero carbon by 2030 we will accelerate progress 
by taking immediate action to progress projects and by making 
allocations of capital and revenue in the Council budget for 2020/21 in 
support of carbon action.  
 
The Cabinet is asked to therefore include outline business plans for new 
capital and revenue proposals that will demonstrably accelerate the 
implementation of the climate emergency motion in the forthcoming 
council budget for consideration by the next full council.  
 
This will include the following low cost actions listed below: 
 
1. Actively working with Local authorities - through the local 

government family - who are ahead of Portsmouth in carbon 
reduction to learn from others, avoid the cost of ‘inventing the 
wheel’ and adopt proven strategy and policy documents where 
appropriate. For example, building on the work of Portsmouth City 
Council's adopted Air Quality Local Plan.  

2. Continue cross party working of holding regular sessions for 
group spokespeople for Environment and Climate Change to meet 
with officers involved and the Cabinet Member to make affordable 
recommendations for the 2020/21 budget.  

3. To use the cross party working group to work with the Climate 
Change Board and oversee the development of a strategy and 
action plans to implement the agreed Climate emergency motion 
including an integrated transport strategy.  

4. Considering raising parking charges as part of the parking 
strategy for the city.  

5. To continue to call on the Government for funding for modes of 
travel that will reduce the need for journeys in our city by car, van 
or HGV and to invest this in active travel infrastructure. 

Page 18



14 January 2020 15 
 

 
 

6. Continue with plans to implement more cycle lanes in the city and 
improve walking routes to help further the Local Cycling and 
walking Infrastructure Plan. 

7. Considering charging large employers for off road parking spaces 
rather than incentivising commuting by car, as part of the Parking 
Strategy for the city.  

8. Examining the feasibility and cost benefits of different ways of 
commissioning buses and bus operators to accelerate the 
provision of greener buses and to retain surpluses for 
reinvestment in local bus services as part of the Air Quality Local 
Plan (only 2% of bus journeys are subsidised by the City Council, 
98% are run by private companies over which the Council has 
limited control.  

9. Where the Council have the regulatory powers to do so, develop 
and incorporate new must do requirements to require carbon 
reduction in Portsmouth into all contracts and partnership 
agreements so that all organisations  who work with the city 
council have to demonstrate how they are contributing to the 
city's carbon reduction.  

10. Consider the feasibility of introducing a carbon reduction 
kitemark.  

11. Continue discussions with voluntary organisations, such as 
Friends of the Earth, to develop an independent website to 
recommend pathways towards carbon reduction. 

12. Continue to work with members of our local communities to 
identify further areas for play streets in the city, after the 
successful launch of Francis Avenue. 

13. As part of the new Local Plan, establish the principle of increasing 
greening (including new trees where possible) across the city year 
on year, and working with all developers to maximise greening on 
their proposals. 

14. The Local Plan will be an important means of ensuring that new 
development addresses the challenge of climate change. With 
regard to securing emissions reductions and mitigating climate 
change, policies are being formulated that aim to bring about 
substantial reductions in carbon emissions in new development, 
equally policies are being developed to help adapt to climate 
change and reduce climate risk in new development.  

15. Extend and expand the successful food waste recycling pilot 
16. Continue to investigate the development of the council's plan for 

an anaerobic digestion facility to accept the food waste from the 
City Council's food waste recycling initiative. 

17. Investigate the provision of shore-to-ship electric charging points 
at Portsmouth International Port to reduce emissions." 

 
9.e The City Council notes that many doctors surgeries in Portsmouth 

have closed over the last few years  
 
It was  
 

Page 19



16 14 January 2020  
 
Proposed by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
Seconded by Councillor Matthew Winnington 
 
That this matter be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, this was CARRIED. 
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
Seconded by Councillor Matthew Winnington 
 
That Notice of Motion (e) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
As an amendment  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Luke Stubbs 
Seconded by Councillor Donna Jones 
 
"Add to the end of the motion: 
 

Council also notes that in some localities NHS community providers 
have formed partnerships with GPs practices. These can involve the 
provider taking on responsibility for providing buildings, facilities and 
back office support and can involve GPs being employed as salaried 
staff rather than as partners in independent businesses contracted to 
the NHS. The multi-site Willows Practice in Gosport is a local example. 
 
Council feels this model could have merit in Portsmouth and asks the 
Chief Executive to raise this with NHS colleagues." 

 
As an amendment  
 
It was  
 
Proposed by Councillor Graham Heaney 
Seconded by Councillor Stephen Morgan 
 
"Add the following: 
 
Ask the Cabinet to work with the Portsmouth Primary Care Alliance to develop 
a recruitment campaign to encourage more GP’s to come and work in 
Portsmouth. 
 
Ask the Cabinet to work with the Portsmouth Primary Care Alliance and, 
where appropriate, health trusts to explore the possibility of jointly supporting 
the recruiting of salaried GP’s to work with existing practices to manage the 
increased workload of patients due to GP retirements. 
 

Page 20



14 January 2020 17 
 

 
 

Ask the Cabinet to explore further the use of city council owned property 
assets, or the acquisition of property assets, to support the provision of local 
health services" 
 
The mover of the original motion agreed to subsume into it both amendments. 
 
Following debate, upon the substantive notice of motion including both 
amendments being put to the vote, this was CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
"The city council notes that many doctors' surgeries in Portsmouth have 
closed over the last few years.  
 
Now both The Devonshire and Hanway Rd surgeries are threatened with 
closure.  
 
Portsmouth has a significant problem in the next few years as more GPs 
retire and there are significant problems recruiting GPs to work in the 
city.  
 
The City Council therefore opposes the closure of these doctors' 
surgeries, and will therefore contact local MPs and the Secretary of 
State for Health to lobby for the funding and staffing to keep these 
surgeries open.  
 
The City Council may also have a constructive role and asks the Cabinet 

- to investigate ways in which the City Council can invest in health 
centres and to provide all the backroom services so new doctors 
who don’t want to buy into a GPs business can be attracted to 
work in Portsmouth.  

- to work with the Portsmouth Primary Care Alliance to develop a 
recruitment campaign to encourage more GP’s to come and work 
in Portsmouth. 

- to work with the Portsmouth Primary Care Alliance and, where 
appropriate, health trusts to explore the possibility of jointly 
supporting the recruiting of salaried GP’s to work with existing 
practices to manage the increased workload of patients due to GP 
retirements. 

- to explore further the use of city council owned property assets, 
or the acquisition of property assets, to support the provision of 
local health service 

 

Council also notes that in some localities NHS community providers 
have formed partnerships with GPs practices. These can involve the 
provider taking on responsibility for providing buildings, facilities and 
back office support and can involve GPs being employed as salaried 
staff rather than as partners in independent businesses contracted to 
the NHS. The multi-site Willows Practice in Gosport is a local example. 
 

Council feels this model could have merit in Portsmouth and asks the 
Chief Executive to raise this with NHS colleagues. 

Page 21



18 14 January 2020  
 
 
9.f Public Fireworks Displays  
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Graham Heaney 
Seconded by Councillor Tom Coles 
 
That this matter be debated today. 
 
Upon being put to the vote this was CARRIED. 
 
It was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Graham Heaney 
Seconded by Councillor Tom Coles 
 
That Notice of Motion (f) as set out on the agenda be adopted. 
 
As an amendment it was 
 
Proposed by Councillor Claire Udy 
Seconded by Councillor Jeanette Smith 
 
"Add to the end of the first paragraph: 
 
"Also, the council shall ask the Cabinet to commit to using fireworks for its 
own events that are deemed environmentally friendly.  
 
Replace last paragraph with: "To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to not 
stock fireworks out of respect for animal welfare and vulnerable people" 
 
Council adjourned at 7.15 pm. 
 
Council resumed at 7.20 pm. 
 
Following debate, the mover of the original motion agreed to subsume into it 
the amendment. 
 
Upon the substantive notice of motion including the amendment being put to 
the vote, this was CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the following notice of motion be adopted. 
 
"This Council resolves to ask Cabinet: 
 
To require all public firework displays within the local authority 
boundary to be advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to 
take precautions for their animals and vulnerable people. Also the 
Council shall ask the Cabinet to commit to using fireworks for its own 
events that are deemed environmentally friendly.  
 

Page 22



14 January 2020 19 
 

 
 

To actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact of 
fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people, including 
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks. 
 
To write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to 
limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90dB for those sold to the 
public for private displays. 
 
To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to not stock fireworks out of 
respect for animal welfare and vulnerable people." 
 
9.g Podiatry Services  
 
As the proposer of the motion Councillor Leo Madden was not in the 
Chamber, this Notice of Motion was not put. 
 

10. Questions from Members under Standing Order No 17  
 
There were five questions before Council.  
 
Question 1 was from Councillor Terry Norton 
 

"Can the cabinet member for education advise members on what plans are in 
place to tackle the city’s underachieving schools?"  
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by Councillor Suzy Horton 
 

Question 2 was from Councillor Scott Payter-Harris 
 

"Following the recent publication in The News on 31st December regarding 
temporary accommodation and the cost of temporary accommodation rising, 
what is the cabinet member doing to ensure this does not spiral out of 
control?" 
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by Councillor Darren 
Sanders 
 
Question 3 was from Councillor Luke Stubbs 
 
"What plans are there to increase or reprovide special school places in the 
city? 
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by Councillor Suzy Horton. 
 
Question 4 was from Councillor Scott Payter-Harris 
 
"Following the Cabinet report on 8th October regarding the next steps for 
Leamington & Horatia House, is the proposed demolition of Leamington and 
Horatia House still on schedule and have costs been identified and finalised 
for the demolition, if so can you please circulate the costs to members? 
 

Page 23



20 14 January 2020  
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by Councillor Darren 
Sanders. 
 
Question 5 was from Councillor Scott Payter-Harris 
 
"Up to January 2020 how much has the council spent on rehousing residents 
from Horatia and Leamington House and can the cabinet member outline any 
other additional costs associated to the wider project such as security?" 
 
This and supplementary questions were answered by Councillor Darren 
Sanders. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.35 pm. 
 
 
 

  

Lord Mayor  
 

Page 24



1 
 

 
 

 
 

1. Executive Summary  
 
1.1 The key proposals within this report recommend a Budget for 2020/21 that provides 

for £2.5m of savings, a Council Tax increase of 3.99% (2.0% of which is raised 
specifically to be passported to Adult Social Care) and forecasts that the 3 year period 
beyond 2020/21 will require a further £3.0m in savings. 

 
1.2 The proposals also seek to remedy the underlying budget deficits in both Adults and 

Children's Social Care, providing a sound financial base as the Council moves into a 
very uncertain period for Local Government funding from 2021/22 onwards. 
 

1.3 The uncertainty presented from 2021/22 is due to a comprehensive overhaul of the 
Local Government funding system known as the "Fair Funding Review", it will 
determine a new formula methodology which will set each Local Authority's baseline 
funding level.  Alongside this, a new system for retaining future Business Rate growth 
/ loss will be implemented, taking away all existing growth and re-distributing that 
growth nationally according to relative need (rather than where it was generated).  For 
these reasons, the Council's future forecast deficits could reasonably be expected to 
vary between +/- £4m.   
 

1.4 During this unprecedented level of uncertainty, it is imperative that the Council 
continues to plan for savings of £1.0m per year, retaining reserves at the levels 
proposed in this report to retain the necessary financial resilience to be able to 
respond in all circumstances. 
 

1.5 An Executive Summary of these key points and others is set out below. 

 Agenda item:  
 

Decision maker: City Council 

 
Subject: 
 

 
Portsmouth City Council - Budget & Council Tax 2020/21 
& Medium Term Budget Forecast 2021/22 to 2023/24  
 

Date of decision: 04 February 2020 (Cabinet) 
11 February 2020 (City Council) 

 
Report by: 
 

 
Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Wards affected: All 

Key decision: Yes 

Budget & policy 
framework decision: Yes 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Context 
 
 Since 2011/12 the Council will have made £102m in savings (48% of 

controllable spend)  
 Government funding reductions have been the driving force behind the need to 

make forecast savings of £7.5m over the current period 2020/21 to 2022/23  
 Adults and Children's Social Care represent 53% of controllable spend, provide 

services to the most vulnerable, experience the greatest cost pressures and 
have historically received significant protection from savings - resulting in 
proportionally higher savings across other Council Services 

 The Local Government Finance Settlement has provided substantial relief for 
the cost pressures in Adults and Children's Social Care in 2020/21 of £5.4m, 
but is not clear if this is new money to the Local Government system in the 
longer term and remains a risk going forward.  

 The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy seeks to maximise savings 
through income generation, economic regeneration and efficiency measures  

 
Revised Budget 2019/20 
 
 A Balanced Budget for 2019/20 accommodating all forecast overspendings in 

Adult Social Care, Children's Social Care and Portico  
 
Budget 2020/21 
 
 Incorporates £2.5m of Savings in accordance with the Council resolution of 12 

February 2019 
 99% of savings have been achieved through Income Generation (52%) and 

Efficiency measures (47%) 
 No savings are proposed from the Children and Families Portfolio and the 

Community Safety Portfolio in order to manage the rise (and cost of) Looked 
After Children 

 Provides further additional funding for Children's Social Care of £3.0m (in 
addition to the £4m additional funding provided in the current financial year) to 
accommodate the rise in Looked After Children to current levels 

 Provides additional funding for Adult Social Care of £2.6m to accommodate 
their demographic cost pressures and contribute towards the additional costs 
to care providers associated with the National Living Wage (increase of 6.2%) 

 Provides an additional £0.4m for Education to accommodate the pressures in 
SEN Home to School Transport 

 A Council Tax increase of 3.99%, in accordance with the Budget Consultation, 
of which: 

o 1.99% is for general council services (at an inflation based level) 
o 2.0% (amounting to £1.6m) is to be passported directly to Adult Social 

Care 
 
 Page 26



3 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Cont'd) 
 

 
Budget 2020/21 (Cont'd) 
 
 
 The ceasing of the 75% Business Rate Retention pilot (which had previously 

provided total funding of £7.0m to be used to support essential Capital Investment) 
 A withdrawal from General Reserves of £2.6m which was built up in the previous 

year, but now leaves reserves back at the historic levels maintained in the past  
 
 
Future Forecast - 2021/22 to 2023/24 
 
 The new forecast for the new 3 Year Period (now extended to 2023/24) is a 

£3.0m deficit 
 

 The new forecast is subject to unprecedented uncertainty due to the forthcoming 
Multi Year Spending Review, Fair Funding Review and the 75% Business Rate 
Retention Scheme and could vary by +/- £4m 
 

 Future forecasts seek to make adequate provision for both the replenishment of 
the Medium Term Resource Strategy (MTRS) Reserve as well as contributions 
towards necessary Capital Investment requirements   
 

 Proposed that Savings are phased evenly at £1.0m p.a over the next 3 years 
(i.e. beyond 2020/21) 
 

 General Reserves are maintained over the period at circa £17m (assuming the 
£1.0m p.a. savings are achieved)  
 

 Balanced approach to savings if the forecast proves to be too pessimistic or too 
optimistic.  With General Reserves at proposed levels, savings of £1.0m p.a. 
ensure that for any improvement in the forecast, the Council has not prematurely 
made a level of savings that could have been avoided and for any deterioration, 
good progress towards the necessary savings will have been made 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
 Proposed Budgets maintain General Balances for 2019/20 and 2020/21 at circa 

£20m 
 

 Council's financial health is sound, and the Council remains well placed to face 
the future uncertainty for Local Government funding 

Page 27



4 
 

2 Purpose of Report 
 
2.1 The primary purpose of this report is to set the Council's overall Budget for the 

forthcoming year 2020/21 and the associated level of Council Tax necessary to fund 
that Budget.  
 

2.2 The report makes recommendations on the level of Council spending for 2020/21 and 
the level of Council Tax in the context of the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy 
with its stated aim as follows: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.3 The recommended Budget for 2020/21 has been prepared on the basis of the 
following: 
 

• The Council resolution of 12 February 2019 that set an overall savings 
requirement of £2.5m 

• An increase in the level of Council Tax for 2020/21 for general purposes of 
1.99% 

• The flexibility to increase the level of Council Tax for an "Adult Social Care 
Precept", within the limits set by Central Government at 2.0%, and the direct 
passporting of that additional funding to Adult Social Care to provide for 
otherwise unfunded cost pressures.  

 
2.4 This report also provides a comprehensive revision of the Council's rolling 3 year future 

financial forecast for the new period 2021/22 to 2023/24 (i.e. compared to the previous 
forecast covering 2020/21 to 2022/23, this forecast now replaces the forecast for the 
previous 3 year period).   
 

2.5 The new forecast considers the future outlook for both spending and funding, and in 
that context, wider recommendations are made regarding the levels of reserves to be 
maintained and additional contributions to the Capital Programme in order to meet the 
Council's aspirations for the City as well as maintaining the Council's overall financial 
resilience. 

OVERALL AIM 
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" 
income over the medium term whilst 

continuing the drive towards regeneration of 
the City, being innovative, creative and 

protecting the most important and valued 
services 

Page 28



5 
 

2.6 In particular, this report sets out the following: 
 

 
(a) The challenging and uncertain financial climate facing the City Council in 

2020/21 and beyond, and the consequential budget deficits that result  

(b) A brief summary of the Medium Term Financial Strategy for achieving the 
necessary savings 

(c) The revised Revenue Budget and Cash Limits for the current year  

(d) The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020/21  

(e) The Business Rate income for 2020/21 and future years and the ceasing of 
the Solent 75% Business Rate Retention Pilot (in a pooled arrangement with 
the Isle of Wight Council and Southampton City Council)  

(f) The Council Tax base and recommended Council Tax for 2020/21  

(g) The forecast Collection Fund balance as at 31 March 2020 for both Council 
Tax and Business Rates 

(h) The detailed indicative savings (Appendix C) that could be made by each 
Portfolio / Committee in meeting its overall savings amount in order to provide 
the Council with the assurance necessary to approve the recommended 
savings amount for each Portfolio / Committee 

(i) The proposed Revenue Budget and Cash Limits for 2020/21 

(j) The forecast Revenue Budgets and revised Savings Requirements for 
2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 

(k) Estimated General Reserves over the period 2019/20 to 2023/24 

(l) The Medium Term Resource Strategy (MTRS) Reserve, its financial position 
and proposed use to achieve cashable efficiencies 

(m) The statement of the S. 151 Officer on the robustness of the budget in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 
  

Page 29



6 
 

3 Recommendations 
 

3.1 That the following be approved in respect of the Council's Budget: 

 

1) The revised Revenue Estimates for the financial year 2019/20 and the 
Revenue Estimates for the financial year 2020/21 as set out in the General 
Fund Summary (Appendix A) 

2) The Portfolio Cash Limits for the Revised Budget for 2019/20 and the Budget 
2020/21 incorporating the savings amounts for each Portfolio and amounting 
to £2.5m as set out in Sections 7 and 11, respectively 

3) Any underspendings for 2019/20 arising at the year-end outside of those made 
by Portfolios be transferred to Capital Resources in order to provide funding 
for known and potential future commitments in future years such as Special 
Educational Need (SEN) School Places, Sea Defences (enhancements to 
core scheme), Environmental Improvements, Transport Improvements, 
Affordable Housing, City Wide Regeneration, Digital Infrastructure and the 
maintenance of the Council's Core Operational Assets, for which there is 
currently insufficient funding 

4) That the Council's share of the additional £1.0bn national allocation for Adults 
and Children's Social Care (but confirmed for 2020/21 only) and amounting to 
£3.9m is allocated as follows: 
 
• Adult Social Care (to meet the costs of the underlying budget deficit 

caused by increasing demographic pressures and to contribute towards 
the cost of the increase in the National Living Wage (6.2%) for care 
providers) - £1.0m 

 
• Children's Social Care (to meet the underlying budget deficit in Children's 

Social Care caused by the costs of rising numbers of Looked After 
Children) - £2.9m 

  
5) Any variation to the Council's funding arising from the final Local Government 

Finance Settlement be accommodated by a transfer to or from General 
Reserves 

6) The S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to make any necessary 
adjustments to Cash Limits within the overall approved Budget and Budget 
Forecasts 

7) That the level of Council Tax be increased by 1.99% for general purposes in 
accordance with the referendum threshold1 for 2020/21 announced by 
Government (as calculated in recommendation 3.4 (d)) 

8) That the level of Council Tax be increased by a further 2.0% beyond the 
referendum threshold (as calculated in recommendation 3.4 (d)) to take 
advantage of the flexibility offered by Government to implement a "Social Care 
Precept"; and that in accordance with the conditions of that flexibility, the full 

                                            
1 Council Tax increases beyond the referendum threshold can only be implemented following a "Yes" vote in a local referendum 

Page 30



7 
 

amount of the associated sum generated of £1,612,800 is passported direct 
to Adult Social Care 

9) That a transfer from the MTRS Reserve of £5,978,000 be made in 2020/21 to 
fund Spend to Save and Spend to Avoid Costs schemes described in the 
Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 report considered elsewhere on this 
Agenda  

10) That a transfer to the MTRS Reserve be made in 2020/21 for the sum of £3.5m 
in order to replenish the reserves to levels sufficient to be able to continue as 
a primary vehicle to generate future savings and enable cost avoidance  

11) Managers be authorised to incur routine expenditure against the Cash Limits 
for 2020/21 as set out in Section 11 

12) That the savings requirement for 2021/22 be set at a minimum on-going sum 
of £1.0m  

13) That the S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to make transfers to and 
from reserves in order to ensure that they are maintained as necessary and in 
particular, adjusted when reserves are no longer required or need to be 
replenished 

14) Directors be instructed to start planning how the City Council will achieve the 
savings requirements shown in Section 12 and that this be incorporated into 
Service Business Plans 

15) The minimum level of General Reserves as at 31 March 2021 be maintained 
at £8.0m to reflect the known and expected budget and financial risks to the 
Council 

16) Members have had regard for the Statement of the Section 151 Officer in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 as set out in Section 15. 
 

3.2 That the following be noted in respect of the Council's Budget:   

1) The Revenue Estimates 2020/21 as set out in Appendix A have been prepared 
on the basis of a 2.0% tax increase for the "Social Care Precept" (amounting 
to £1,612,800) and that this is passported to Adult Social Care in order to 
provide for otherwise unfunded budget pressures including the current 
underlying budget deficit, the cost of the new National Living Wage and 
demographic pressures arising from a "living longer" population 

2) The decision on the amount at which to set the Adult Social Care precept will 
be critical for the Social Care and wider Health system in the City; in the event 
that the additional flexibility of the "Social Care Precept" and associated 2.0% 
tax increase (amounting to £806,400 for each 1%) is not taken, then equivalent 
savings will need to be made in Adult Social Care in 2020/21 

3) In general, any reduction to the proposed increase in the level of Council Tax 
for 2020/21 will require equivalent offsetting saving to be made in order for the 
Budget 2020/21 to be approved.  Each 1% reduction requires additional 
savings of £806,400 to be made. 

Page 31



8 
 

4) The indicative savings proposals set out in Appendix C which are provided for 
the purpose of demonstrating to the Council that the Portfolio savings as 
recommended in paragraph 3.1 2) above are robust and deliverable  

5) The likely impact of savings as set out in Appendix C  

6) That the responsibility of the City Council is to approve the overall Budget and 
the associated cash limits of its Portfolios and Committees; it is not the 
responsibility of the City Council to approve any individual savings within those 
Portfolios / Committees 

7) That it is the responsibility of the individual Portfolio Holders (not Full Council) 
to approve the individual savings proposals and the Portfolio Holder can 
therefore, in response to any consultation, alter, amend or substitute any of 
the indicative savings proposal(s) set out in Appendix C with alternative 
proposal(s) amounting to the same value within their Portfolio  

8) Managers will commence the implementation of the approved savings required 
and any necessary consultation process or notice process  

9) The Revenue Forecast for 2021/22 to 2023/24 as set out in Section 12 and 
Appendix B 

10) The estimated Savings Requirement of £3.0m for the 3 year period 2021/22 to 
2023/24, for financial and service planning purposes, be phased as follows: 

 

Financial Year In Year Savings 
Requirement 

£m 

Cumulative Saving 
£m 

2021/22 1.0 1.0 
2022/23 1.0 2.0 
2023/24 1.0 3.0 

 
11) In accordance with the approved financial framework, it is the responsibility of 

the Portfolio Holder, in consultation with the Director of Finance & Resources 
(S.151 Officer), to release funds from the Portfolio Reserve in accordance with 
the provisions set out in Paragraph 8.45 

12) The MTRS Reserve held to fund the upfront costs associated with Spend to 
Save Schemes, Invest to Save Schemes and redundancies will hold an 
uncommitted balance of £8.1m2 and will only be replenished in future from an 
approval to the transfer of any underspends, contributions from the Revenue 
Budget or transfers from other reserves which may no longer be required 

13) The Council's share of the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund surplus 
for 2019/20 is estimated to be £545,672 

14) The Council's share of the Business Rate element of the Collection Fund 
surplus for 2019/20 is estimated to be £1,286,772   

                                            
2 Including the net transfers from the reserve of £2.478m contained with the recommendations of the Capital 
Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 report elsewhere on this agenda 

Page 32



9 
 

15) The Retained Business Rate income3 for 2020/21 is based on the estimated 
Business Rate element of the Collection Fund surplus as at March 2020, the 
Non Domestic Rates poundage for 2020/21 and estimated rateable values for 
2020/21 and has been determined at £55,391,749 

 

3.3 That the S.151 Officer has determined that the Council Tax base for the financial year 
2020/21 will be 57,735.2 [item T in the formula in Section 31 B(1) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)]. 

3.4 That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the financial year 
2020/21 in accordance with Section 31 and Sections 34 to 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992: 

(a) £478,744,767 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the 
Act. 

(b) £394,890,163 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the 
Act. 

(c) £83,854,604 Being the amount by which the aggregate at 3.4 (a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3.4 (b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year. (Item R in the 
formula in Section 31B(1) of the Act. 

(d) £1,452.40 Being the amount at 3.4(c) above (Item R), all divided by 
Item 0 above (Item T), calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for the year. 

  
 

(e)    Valuation Bands (Portsmouth City Council) 
 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

968.27 1,129.64 1,291.02 1,452.40 1,775.16 2,097.91 2,420.67 2,904.80 
 

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 3.4 (d) above by the number 
which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is 
applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for 
the year in respect of categories of dwellings in different valuation bands. 
 

  

                                            
3Includes Retained Business Rates £41,679,307, "Top Up" £6,952,434, a surplus on the Collection Fund of 
£1,286,772 plus S.31 Grants of £5,473,326 for compensation due to national Government business rate 
relief initiatives 

Page 33



10 
 

3.5 That it be noted that for the financial year 2020/21 the Hampshire Police & Crime 
Commissioner is consulting upon the following amounts for the precept to be issued 
to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown below: 

  Valuation Bands (Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner) 
   

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

140.97 164.47 187.96 211.46 258.45 305.44 352.43 422.92 
 

3.6 That it be noted that for the financial year 2020/21 Hampshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority are recommended to approve the following amounts for the precept issued 
to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown below: 

Valuation Bands (Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority) 
 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

46.04 53.71 61.39 69.06 84.41 99.75 115.10 138.12 
 

3.7 That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3.4(e), 0 and 
3.6 above, the Council, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended, hereby sets the following amounts 
as the amounts of Council Tax for the financial year 2020/21 for each of the categories 
of dwellings shown below:  

Valuation Bands (Total Council Tax) 
 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

1,155.28 1,347.82 1,540.37 1,732.92 2,118.02 2,503.10 2,888.20 3,465.84 
 

3.8 The Council determines in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 that the Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2020/21, which 
represents a 3.99% increase, is not excessive in accordance with the principles 
approved by the Secretary of State under Section 52ZC of the Act; and it be noted that: 

i) The 3.99% increase includes a 2.0% increase to support the delivery of Adult 
Social Care 

ii) As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a major precepting 
authority (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire or the Hampshire 
Fire & Rescue Authority) that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2020/21 
is excessive and that the billing authority is not required to hold a referendum in 
accordance with Section 52ZK of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

 
3.9 The S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to implement any variation to the 

overall level of Council Tax arising from the final notification of the Hampshire Police 
& Crime Commissioner and Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority precepts.  

Page 34



11 
 

4. Economic & Financial Context 

4.1 Whilst economic growth continues in the UK economy, the rate of growth is starting 
to slow with growth at its lowest levels since the spring of 2012.  The picture for the 
national public finances continues to improve slowly with total debt as a proportion of 
Gross Domestic Product falling by 0.2 percentage points over the year to 72.5% 
currently. 
  

4.2 As far as next financial year is concerned, there was positive news for essential Local 
Government Services including Social Care and Housing within the Spending Review 
2019 and also within the Conservative manifesto.  It remains to be seen whether this 
will filter through into additional funding for local Councils beyond next financial year 
and this remains a critical uncertainty for 2021/22 onwards. 
 

4.3 Details of how the Spending Review 2019 has filtered down into the Provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement for the Council are set out later in this report. 
 

4.4 For the following year 2021/22 there will be a comprehensive overhaul of the Local 
Government funding system known as the "Fair Funding Review", it will determine a 
new formula methodology which will set each Local Authority's baseline funding level.  
Alongside this, a new system for retaining future Business Rate growth / loss will be 
implemented, taking away all existing growth and re-distributing that growth nationally 
according to relative need (rather than where it was generated). 
 

4.5 Finally, the Chancellor has announced that there will be a National Budget on 11 
March 2020 which is expected to set the parameters for a multi-year Spending 
Review later in 2020.  Whilst this will provide greater clarity for the Local Government 
sector as a whole, the impact on the Council will be heavily influenced by the 
outcomes of the Fair Funding Review and Business Rate Retention Scheme Review 
to be implemented in 2021/22. 
 

 
  

Page 35



12 
 

5 Medium Term Financial Strategy  
 
5.1 The Council has been required to make £102m in savings and efficiencies over the 

past 9 years in order to balance the Budget, ensuring that spending remains in line 
with income and funding levels. 
 

5.2 In response to the considerable financial challenge, the City Council has followed a 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (for both revenue and capital) with an emphasis on 
regeneration, innovation and creativity leading to stimulation of the funding base 
(Council Tax and Business Rates) and income generation as a means to make 
savings and avoid cuts to services.  This is illustrated below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
5.3 With an emphasis on innovation and regeneration activities, there is a presumption 

that Capital Investment will also be targeted towards income generation and 
economic growth once the Council's statutory obligations have been met. 

OVERALL AIM 
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" income 
over the medium term whilst continuing the 

drive towards regeneration of the City, being 
innovative, creative and protecting the most 

important and valued services 
 

STRAND 1 - Short / Medium Term 
 

Transforming to an Innovative and Creative Council - through 
income generation 
 

STRAND 2 - Medium / Long Term 
 

Reduce the Extent to which the Population Needs Council Services 
- through improving prosperity and managing demand 
 

STRAND 3 - Short / Medium Term 
 
Increasing Efficiency & Effectiveness - by improving value for 
money across all services 
 

STRAND 4 - Short Term 
 

Withdraw or Offer Minimal Provision for Low Impact Services 

Page 36



13 
 

6 Revised Budget 2019/20  
 
6.1 The original Revenue Budget approved by the City Council on 12 February 2019 was 

£165,002,000.  
 
6.2 The Cabinet has received regular quarterly Budget Monitoring reports on the 2019/20 

Budget throughout the year which have consistently reported a forecast overspend 
for the year.  This has been largely driven by the forecast cost pressures facing both 
Adult Social Care (currently forecast to be £2.5m overspent) and Children's Social 
Care (currently forecast to be £3.2m overspent) but offset to some extent by 
contingency provision specifically set aside for these potential pressures and also 
from improved returns from the Council's Treasury Management activities.  
 

6.3 In overall terms, for the whole Council, the forecast overspend over the year has 
varied between £2.5m to £2.9m.      

 
6.4 Of critical importance is the extent to which the overspending positions in both Adults 

and Children's Social Care are expected to continue into future years.  This is 
described as the underlying deficit (or "structural deficit").  These deficits represent 
the level of savings that will either need to be met from the Services themselves 
through their own strategies and action plans or which, if proved to be unachievable 
to remedy, require a corporate response through an increase in the Portfolio Budget 
which will add to the overall Budget deficit of the Council and increase Savings 
Requirements to be made across Council services in future years.  
 

6.5 Current estimates assess this underlying deficit to amount to £8.1m in aggregate, and 
comprise: 
 

• Adult Social Care - £4.9m 
• Children's Social Care - £3.2m driven almost entirely by the increasing number 

of Looked After Children required to be taken into care  
 

The proposed remedy for these underlying deficits in 2020/21 is set out in Section 8. 
 

6.6 The Original Budget has now been comprehensively revised and it is proposed to 
increase the Budget to £165,912,000, an increase of £910,000.  Whilst overall 
spending has increased, overall funding has also increased by a broadly equivalent 
amount resulting in an overall change to the Council's 2019/20 financial position of 
just £62,900.  Consequently, the transfer from General Reserves will increase by an 
equivalent amount.   This means that the Council has been able to accommodate all 
forecast overspendings, including Adults and Children's Social Care, through the use 
of the Council's corporate contingency. 

 
6.7 Accordingly, significant changes to the Original Budget now being proposed as part 

of the Revised Budget are as follows: 
 
Budget Increases 

 
i) Overspend of £1.8m related to Portico.  Forecast losses at Portico for the year 

are expected to be £3.3m versus the planned loss of £1.5m, resulting in an 
overall overspend of £1.8m.  This relates largely to the loss of business and 
reluctant departure of Fyffes due to their need for deeper berths and the ending 

Page 37



14 
 

of the Moroccan contract during the year.  The forecast position for Portico next 
year (2020/21) is a small loss of circa. £0.3m as GEEST return to the company 
and volumes from MHI Vestas, Project Cargoes, Aggregates and Customs 
Agency rise, as pursued in accordance with the company's diversification 
strategy. 

 
 
Budget Reductions / Increases in Funding 

 
i) Improvement in Treasury Management activities of £1.0m 
 
ii) A small net reduction in the Council's Corporate Contingency of £0.4m4 which, 

after removing provisions for risk items that are now not expected to occur in 
the current year, will be at a sufficient level to cover the following additional costs 
/ overspendings: 

 
• Forecast overspend in Children's Social Care of £3.2m 

• Forecast overspend in Adult Social Care (not met by transfers from 
Reserves) of £2.5m 

• Forecast overspend in Home to School Transport of £0.4m 

• Additional IT License costs of £0.4m  
 
 

6.8 The Revised Revenue Budget is set out in the General Fund Summary (Appendix A). 

 

  

                                            
4 Total reductions include provisions made within the Original Budget that are no longer expected to be 
required in 2019/20 

Page 38



15 
 

7 Revised Cash Limits 2019/20 
 

7.1 The Cash Limits relate to that element of the Budget that is Portfolio and Service 
related and is controllable.  Cash Limits are allocated to Portfolio Holders and 
Managers to spend so that there is clear accountability for spending decisions. 

 
7.2 The Cash Limits for 2019/20 have been revised to take account of: 
 

• Items released from Contingency in the current year 
 
• Windfall savings and windfall costs 

 
• Passporting of grants that were received for new burdens or specific purposes  
 
• Adjustments to reflect forecast underspends, transfers to / from Portfolio 

reserves, additional unavoidable costs and other City Council decisions 
throughout the year 

 
7.3 The table below sets out the revised Cash Limits for 2019/20 and those items outside 

the Cash Limit (e.g. capital and similar charges, levies and insurance premiums), which 
together form the Revised Budget for each Portfolio.  
 
Portfolio Revised Items Revised 
  Cash Limits Outside the Budget 
  2019/20 Cash Limit 2019/20 
  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Children & Families 29,546 105 29,651 
Community Safety 2,084 0 2,084 
Culture Leisure & City 
Development 6,036 3,870 9,906 

Education 5,591 18,989 24,580 
Environment & Climate Change 12,564 1,786 14,350 
Health, Wellbeing & Social Care 44,569 3,314 47,883 
Housing 5,393 5,743 11,136 
Leader (25,061) 13,061 (12,000) 
Resources 18,378 4,299 22,677 
Traffic & Transportation 17,384 684 18,068 
Licensing Committee (239) 16 (223) 
Portfolio Expenditure 116,245 51,867 168,112 

 
7.4 The current policy is that any overspend against the cash limit will in the first instance 

be deducted from any Portfolio reserve or, if that is exceeded, from the following 
financial year’s cash limit.  
 

  

Page 39



16 
 

8 Revenue Budget 2020/21 
 
8.1 At last year's Annual Budget Meeting in February 2019, forecasts for this coming 

financial year 2020/21 and the subsequent two financial years estimated that an 
overall 3 year savings requirement of £7.5m would be necessary to meet the budget 
deficits over that period.   

 
8.2 Since those forecasts were prepared in February last year, the Council has now 

undertaken a Budget Consultation with residents and also received the Provisional 
Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020/21.  The Local Government Finance 
Settlement is the term used to describe the main non-ring-fenced Revenue and 
Capital grant funding allocations from Government. 
 

Budget Consultation 
 

8.3 Portsmouth City Council's annual budget consultation had 3,288 responses from all 
areas across the City.  A summary of the results is set out below: 
 
 There was no majority for a specific increase in Council Tax, however there was 

a majority for a Council Tax increase versus no Council Tax increase 
 

 There was a clear majority for an additional increase of 2% to specifically support 
Social Care services (with 71% fully or somewhat supporting an increase) 

 
 The top three most important areas to help shape the future of the city were: 

 Creating better facilities for sustainable transport, such as cycling or 
walking 

 Continuing investment in new sea defences through plans to protect 
more than 8,000 homes and 700 businesses in Southsea 

 Building new homes in the city, including flats offering special care for 
elderly residents 

Improvements to the road network and to facilities at Portsmouth International 
Port to increase the money it generates to help protect local services was 
also popular but not in the top three most selected options 
 

Council's Financial Forecast  
 

8.4 The Council's forecast was in line with the settlement, with the main exception of the 
additional funding that has been made available to Social Care (both Adult Social Care 
and Children's Social Care) but announced for 2020/21 only  as described below: 
 
i) The flexibility to increase the Adult Social Care Precept by a further 2% 

(amounting to £1.6m and passporting it direct to Adult Social Care)   
 
ii) The Social Care Grant funding, originally announced in the Spending Round 

2019 for Adults and Children's Social Care, amounting to £5.4m, representing 
the continuation of £1.5m provided in the current year plus a further £3.9m for 
2020/21 
 

Page 40



17 
 

8.5 This additional funding is expected to bring financial stability to the budgets for both 
Adults and Children's Social Care, at least for 2020/21.  It will help to remove the 
underlying budget deficits in both of these services whilst also contributing to the 
financial challenges arising from demographic pressures generally, as well as the 6.2% 
uplift in National Living Wage which affects the care sector in particular.    
 

8.6 Whilst the Conservative manifesto has confirmed that the Social Care Grant funding 
will continue through the life of the parliament, it is not clear whether this is new funding 
to the Local Government System as a whole or whether it is to be funded from within 
the system via a re-direction from the Business Rate Growth that is currently being 
enjoyed by Local Authorities.  

 
8.7 Should the Social Care funding be funded from by a re-direction of Business Rate 

Growth, it will not take effect until the financial year 2021/22. So whilst next financial 
year is protected, the increased grant funding allocated to Social Care will continue 
but will be offset by reducing general funding which is used to fund other Council 
Services.  At a sum of £5.4m, this remains a critical uncertainty for the Council's future 
forecast savings requirements. 
 

8.8 Other changes to both funding and spending, including significant inflationary 
pressures are expected in the forthcoming year and have been factored into the 
proposed Budget for 2020/21.  All elements of funding and spending have now been 
comprehensively reviewed which include the following: 
 
Funding 
 

• Central Government Funding (Local Government Finance Settlement) 
• Business Rate Income 
• Council Tax Income 

 
 

Expenditure / Income 
 

• Budget Pressures and Inflationary Costs 
• Savings proposals as set out in Section 9 
• Other unavoidable cost pressures (including "new burdens" passed down from 

Central Government) 
• Port and Portico trading results 
• Debt Financing costs and interest rates 
• Contingencies  

 
8.9 Based on the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement and a comprehensive 

review of all other estimates of funding, income and expenditure for 2020/21 and the 
following 3 years, the approved savings requirement for 2020/21 of £2.5m remains 
prudent but only on the basis of the Council Tax proposals set out within this report.  
Given what is known, or reasonably expected, regarding future funding and given 
future uncertainties, a savings requirement of less than £2.5m for 2020/21 would not 
be prudent.      
 

8.10 Details of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement plus all other funding, 
income and expenditure changes proposed within the Budget for 2020/21 are 
described in the following paragraphs.  

Page 41



18 
 

Funding 
 

Local Government Finance Settlement - Summary 
 

 One-year settlement that covers only 2020-21 –The 2020/21 announcement is 
the first and only year of the Spending Round 2019, with future years’ 
announcements dependent on a number of factors, including: Spending Review 
2020, the outcome of the Fair Funding Review, the Business Rates Retention 
(BRR) Reset, the move to 75% BRR and any reform of the New Homes Bonus 
scheme.   

 Council Tax – The Council Tax referendum limit will be 2%, including Fire 
Authorities.  For local authorities with social care responsibilities a further 2% social 
care precept is allowed.  The provisional settlement confirmed districts will be 
allowed to apply the higher of the referendum limit or £5 

The maximum increase in Council Tax for Police and Crime Commissioners has 
now been announced at £10 for a Band D property. 

 Business Rates Retention – The three elements of the Business Rates Retention 
system (Baseline Need, NNDR Baseline and Tariff / Top Up amounts) have all 
increased by 1.63%, in line with the September 2019 CPI inflation figure.   

 Revenue Support Grant – RSG (for those authorities that still receive RSG in 
2019/20), has increased in line with the Business Rates Retention system 
(+1.63%).    

 New Homes Bonus – No change to the funding system. Legacy payments (i.e. 
(payments for a further 4 years) due from previous years (2017/18 to 2019/20) will 
come to an end in 2023/24.  Allocations for 2020/21 will be paid in accordance with 
the current system which includes a deadweight of 0.4% (threshold to be achieved 
before any allocation for the current year is paid) but will not attract any legacy 
payments going forward.  

The ministerial statement announced a Spring 2020 consultation on the future of 
the scheme, stating that: 

“It is not clear that the New Homes Bonus in its current form is focused on 
incentivising homes where they are needed most” and the consultation will “include 
moving to a new, more targeted approach that rewards local authorities where they 
are ambitious in delivering the homes we need, and which is aligned with other 
measures around planning performance” 

 Top Up/Tariff Adjustments (Negative RSG) – As in previous years, the 
government has decided to eliminate the negative RSG amounts.    

 Social Care Funding – As originally announced at Spending Round 2019 and in 
the technical consultation. The provisional settlement confirms the previously 
proposed national amounts and allocation methodologies.   

Improved Better Care Fund - In 2019/20 £1,837m was allocated nationally through 
the Improved Better Care Fund.   This amount remains the same for 2020/21. 

Page 42



19 
 

Winter Pressures - For 2020/21, the winter pressures funding has been 
incorporated into the Improved Better Care Fund (BCF) and must therefore form 
part of local authorities’ contribution to the BCF 

Social Care Support Grant - In 2019/20, £410m of additional (non-ringfenced) 
funding was allocated for use for Adult and Children’s Social Services. This was 
allocated using the existing Adult Social Care Relative Needs Formula and will also 
be used to distribute this Social Care Support Grant funding. For 2020/21, as 
announced in Spending Round 2019, an additional £1bn of funding was added to 
this grant.  This additional £1bn has been confirmed within the Conservative Party 
manifesto to continue for each year of the parliament. 

 Rural Services Delivery Grant – The 2020/21 allocation of £81m and 
methodology for distribution remain unchanged from 2019/20.   

 Business Rates Pilots – No new business rates pilots were announced for 
2020/21, with all areas (aside) from the original 2017/18 (i.e. not including the 
Solent Authorities) pilot areas reverting back to the 50% scheme.  The 2017/18 
pilot areas are to remain at 100%, or 37% for the Greater London Authority.  

 Dedicated Schools Grant – In September 2019, the Secretary of State for 
Education announced that Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding for 2020/21 
would rise by £2.6bn, plus £1.5bn to fund additional pension costs for teachers.  
Each local authority will receive a minimum of a 1.84% per pupil funding increase. 
The allocations also meet the Conservative Manifesto commitment to provide at 
least £5,000 for every secondary school pupil, and £3,750 per primary pupil. 

 Independent Living Fund  – ILF Recipient Grant will continue to be paid to local 
authorities in 2020/21 and there will be no changes to the amount. 

 Levy / Safety Account  – The levy account at the end of 2018/19 is expected to 
have a surplus of approximately £58m.  However, there is no mention of this being 
allocated within the provisional settlement papers 

 Local Government Funding Reforms – There were no additional papers 
published or mentioned relating to the local government funding reforms that are 
planned for introduction from April 2021 (i.e. Fair Funding, 75% Business Rates 
Retention, the full reset of the business rates baselines or the potential 
Alternative Business Rates Retention System).   

 Final Settlement – The provisional figures are expected to be confirmed in late 
January 2019 (within the final settlement announcement) 

   
8.11 One of the key announcements for the Council was the revocation of the Solent 

Business Rate Retention Pilot, the pooled arrangement between Portsmouth City 
Council, Southampton City Council and the Isle of Wight Council which enabled those 
Councils to retain 100% and 75% of all Business Rate growth in 2018/19 and 2019/20, 
respectively.  It is estimated that the value to the three Solent Authorities of that 
scheme in terms of additional business rates retained will total £21.4m and to date it 
has benefited the Council's Capital Programme by £7m.  The Council had not relied 
on this additional funding continuing into future years and therefore it has not affected 

Page 43



20 
 

the Council's existing financial forecast.  Nevertheless, it has removed a potential 
funding source for the Council's Capital Investment needs and aspirations. 
 

8.12 The final grant settlement should be available by late January / early February, it is not 
expected to vary significantly from the provisional settlement and it is recommended 
that any variation should be accommodated by a transfer to or from General Reserves. 
 

8.13 Whilst the Local Government Finance Settlement is a significant factor in determining 
the Council's overall financial position and therefore any necessary savings, other 
significant factors that will affect the Council's future Savings Requirements include 
Business Rates income, Council Tax income, inflation, interest rates and any new 
unfunded burdens passed down from Government. These are described in the 
paragraphs that follow. 
 
 

Retained Business Rates 2020/21 & Future Forecasts 
 
8.14 The Retained Business Rates system is complex and subject to a significant degree 

of inherent risk.  The current national system is characterised by a complex formula 
which includes the following: 
 

i) Retention of 50%5 of all business rates received and which is affected by the 
value of successful appeals, the number of mandatory reliefs (e.g. charitable 
relief) and the overall collection rate (i.e. how much is uncollectable and written 
off) 

 
ii) Increased by a fixed amount "top up" which increases annually by the rate of 

inflation 
 

iii) Compensation through S.31 Grants for national government initiatives which 
have the effect of reducing Business Rates to the Local Authority such as 
business rate capping for small businesses 

 
iv)  A "safety net" set at 7.5% below a pre-determined baseline6 below which 

retained Business Rates will not fall (set at £44.9m for 2020/21) 
 

8.15 In 2017/18 the National Non Domestic Rate system was subject to a re-valuation.  
This revised both the rateable values and the multiplier.  The entire re-valuation is 
financially neutral at a national level with the increase in rateable values overall offset 
by a reduction in the multiplier.   

 
8.16 The Retained Business Rates system for Local Authorities is likewise intended to be 

financially neutral.  Inevitably, this will not be the case and there will be "winners" and 
"losers" across the country.  The key risk is the extent to which successful appeals 
are greater or less than the assumed allowance for appeals contained within the new 
multiplier set by Government. 

 
8.17 As mentioned, the Solent Authorities 75% Business Rate Pilot (BRR Pilot) has now 

come to an end and the Council, like almost all other Local Authorities, have reverted 

                                            
5 49% To the City Council and 1% to the Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority 

6 Known as the Baseline Funding Level, set in 2013/14 and increased by inflation each year 

Page 44



21 
 

back to the national 50% Business Rate Retention Scheme.  The BRR Pilot was only 
guaranteed for 1 year, although the Solent Authorities were successful in its 
application for a second year also and enjoyed the financial benefits for two financial 
years which is expected to have provided an overall financial benefit of £21.4m across 
the three Councils and amounting to £7.9m for PCC.    
 

8.18 In total, for 2020/21, Retained Business Rates are estimated at £55.4m7 (now 
reflecting the retention of 50% Business Rates) and which includes a surplus relating 
to previous year of £1.3m arising from lower than anticipated losses due to appeals.  
Future estimated Business Rates have been assumed to increase by the rate of 
inflation only (as estimated by the Office for Budget Responsibility). 
 

8.19 The estimation of Business Rate receipts is extremely complex, with the potential to 
be volatile and with many of the factors outside this Council’s control.  In particular, 
the Valuation Office Agency will both determine whether a rating appeal is successful 
and the level of reduction granted with the Council having no right of challenge.  To 
help mitigate against this risk, the Council maintains a reserve to provide the Council 
with a degree of funding stability in the event of fluctuations within and between years.   
 

8.20 Despite the complications and risks associated with appeals, there remains the 
financial incentive within the system for many Local Authorities (including 
Portsmouth8) to generate economic growth and job creation.  Irrespective of the 
financial incentive, the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy is aimed at 
reducing the need for Council Services generally and therefore growth, jobs and 
prosperity are vital to achieve that. 
 

8.21 From 2021/22, there will be a new national Business Rate Retention Scheme.  
Government have consulted on the new scheme on the basis that 75% of Business 
Rates will be retained by Local Authorities compared with the current 50% national 
scheme.  This will not, in the first instance, provide any additional funding for Local 
Authorities as it will be introduced in a fiscally neutral way with Local Authorities losing 
equivalent amounts of grant funding.  However, it will mean that Local Authorities are 
able to retain 75% of all growth achieved versus the current 50%.  The introduction 
of the new scheme will be accompanied by a "Reset" which will remove all current 
business rate growth currently being enjoyed by authorities and which for the Council 
amounts to £5.6m9.  
 

8.22 The Business Rate growth enjoyed by all councils will be removed from councils, 
aggregated and then re-distributed based on "Need" through the Fair Funding review.  
If the Council's "Relative Needs" have increased by more than the average of all other 
Council's then the Council will be a "winner " in terms of the re-distribution and vice 
versa.  

 
 

  

                                            
7 Includes Retained Business Rates £41,679,307, "Top Up" £6,952,434, a surplus on the Collection Fud of 
£1,286,772 plus S.31 Grants of £5,473,326 for compensation due to national Government business rate 
relief initiatives  
8 Applies to Local Authorities that, in general, remain above the safety net threshold over time 
9 Based on 2020/21 Estimates in a 50% Business Rate Retention Scheme 

Page 45



22 
 

Council Tax Proposals 2020/21 & Future Years 
 

8.23 The Council has a relatively low taxbase and a relatively low tax charge.  That means 
that both the average Council Tax band is low and the amount of Council Tax charged 
to residents is also low compared with our statistical neighbours.  By illustration, the 
Council receives circa £6.0m per annum less in Council Tax than the average Unitary 
Authority within its statistical neighbour group by keeping the level of Council Tax 
down, a gap which if closed would reduce the Savings Requirements of the Council 
by the same sum.   
 

8.24 The level of Council Tax charged is an important factor in relation to the Fair Funding 
review, which will make a deduction to a Local Authority's overall funding allocation 
in respect of the amount that can be raised locally through Council Tax.  The Council's 
past decisions to maintain a low level of Council Tax have been, and are expected to 
continue to be a disadvantage in relation to the Council's funding allocation after the 
Fair Funding Review.  This is because the funding formula is expected to continue to 
make a deduction based on a national average level of Council Tax which is currently 
significantly higher than that of Portsmouth, resulting in a higher deduction than the 
Council currently raises in Council Tax.  

 
8.25 Council Tax currently represents 49% of the Council's total revenue funding and as 

Government funding has reduced, this has become an increasingly more important 
and dependent funding source for the Council. 

 
8.26 Council Tax for the average Council Tax payer in Portsmouth (Band B) currently 

amounts to £1,295.66, of which £1,086.31 (84%) is the City Council element.   Not all 
residents are subject to the full amount of Council Tax with many benefitting from 
exemptions and discounts (such as the single person discount) and a significant 
number of residents receiving Local Council Tax Support bringing the level of Council 
Tax payable to an assessed affordable level.  After discounts, exemptions and Local 
Council Tax support is taken into account, only 52% of all properties are subject to 
the full level of Council Tax. 

 
8.27 The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020/21 confirmed a 

Council Tax increase limit for general purposes (i.e. referendum threshold) of 2%, 
being broadly in line with inflation.  Any increase beyond the 2% threshold can only 
be implemented following a "Yes" vote in a local referendum. 
 

8.28 As described more fully later in this report, the actual level of inflation for the Council 
in 2020/21, taking into account price rises that the Council is exposed to, significantly 
exceeds the level of increase allowed in the Council Tax.  The Council's estimated 
inflation amounts to 3.7% and is driven largely by the 6.2% uplift in the National Living 
Wage a 2.4% increase in contracts linked to the Retail Price Index and an above 
inflation increase in Pension Contributions.   
 

8.29 The additional flexibility to apply a Council Tax increase for the Adult Social Care 
Precept has been provided in recognition of the extreme cost pressures facing Adult 
Social Care, both through the increase in the National Living Wage (which has 
increased by 6.2% and affects the Council's contracts with Care Providers for Adults) 
as well as the demographic pressures from general aging and a "living longer" 
population. 
 

Page 46



23 
 

8.30 For Portsmouth City Council, it is vital that the flexibility of the Adult Social Care 
Precept is taken in order to mitigate the current underlying deficit in Adult Social Care 
(currently standing at circa. £4.9m) as well as their extraordinary inflationary 
pressures described above. The alternative would be to increase the level of savings 
required by the Service.   
 

8.31 Given the extraordinary upward inflationary pressures on the Council (including the 
6.2% increase in the National Living Wage on Care Services), the demographic 
pressures in Adult Social Care and in accordance with the results of the Budget 
Consultation, it is proposed that: 
 

i) The Council Tax for General Purposes be increased by 1.99% for 2020/21, 
representing 42p per week for a Band B tax payer and yielding £1.6m 
 

ii) Adult Social Care precept be increased by 2.0% for 2020/21, representing 42p 
per week for a Band B tax payer and yielding £1.6m to be passported direct to 
Adult Social Care. 

 
8.32 Given the extent of the unfunded cost pressures in Adult Social Care, both present 

and emerging, it is recommended that the Council increase the Council Tax for the 
Adult Social Care Precept by 2.0%.  Setting a precept at a lower sum will inevitably 
result in additional service reductions to Adult Social Care services in 2020/21, this 
decision therefore will be will be critical for Adult Social Care services and the wider 
health system in the City. 

 
8.33 The Council could elect not to increase the level of Council tax by 3.99% but if it chose 

to do so would need to identify additional savings over and above the £2.5m savings 
approved by the City Council in February 2019.  For every 1% reduction in Council 
Tax, additional savings of £806,400 will be required. 
 

8.34 The Council's future forecasts for the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 have been estimated 
on the following basis: 
 

i) General Purposes - 1.99% rise each year  
 
ii) Adult Social Care Precept - No further increases thereafter 

 
 

Council Tax Base 2020/21 
 
8.35 The Council Tax Base (i.e. the number of Band D equivalent properties paying the 

full Council Tax) has been determined as 57,735.2 for 2020/21. 
 

 
Collection Fund Balance (Council Tax Element) 2019/20 

 
8.36 The Collection Fund is the account into which are paid amounts collected in respect 

of Council Tax and out of which are paid the Council Tax precepts to: 
 

• Portsmouth City Council (83.8% share) 
• Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner (12.1% share) 
• Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service (4.1% share) 

Page 47



24 
 

 
In the event that actual Council Tax income receivable is different from the estimated 
income (informed by the calculation of the Council Tax Base) upon which the 
precepts are based, then a surplus or deficit will arise. 
 

8.37 For 2019/20, it is estimated that there will be a surplus on the Collection Fund of 
£650,835 which will be shared in proportion to the 2019/20 precepts and distributed 
to the preceptors as follows: 
 
 
Collection Fund Surplus - 2019/20 
Preceptor Distribution 

£ % 
Portsmouth City Council 545,672 83.8% 
Hampshire Police & Crime 
Commissioner 78,709 12.1% 

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service 26,454 4.1% 
Total Surplus 2016/17 650,835 100.0% 

 
The Portsmouth City Council Share of the surplus of £545,672 is factored into the 
overall Council Tax income for 2020/21. 
 

Total Council Tax Income 2020/21 & Future Years 
 

8.38 Considering the Council Tax increase, Council Tax Base and surplus on the 
Collection Fund, the total Council Tax income for 2020/21 is estimated at 
£84,400,276. 
 

8.39 As Government funding reduces, rises in Council Tax income are fundamental to the 
Council's future financial position and therefore the future sustainability of Council 
Services.  The Council's Medium Term Financial Forecast assumes that Council Tax 
Income will rise to £88,960,706 by 2023/24 and is based on the following 
assumptions: 
 

• Increase in the amount of Council Tax of 3.99% for 2020/21 
• Increases of 1.99% per annum from 2021/22 onwards 

 
Funding Summary 
 

8.40 In overall terms, funding from Government Grants, Business Rates and Council Tax 
is estimated to increase by 3.7% amounting to £6.1m in 2020/21, largely due to the 
additional funding for Social Care (£3.9m Social Care Grant and £1.6m Adult Social 
Care Precept).   

 
8.41 Over the following 3 year period of the Council's forecast, funding is anticipated to 

rise by just 2.1% (or an average of 0.7% p.a), reflecting the estimated impact of the 
Business Rate Retention "reset" which is expected to remove £5.6m of Business Rate 
Growth which is not fully offset by its re-distribution for "Need" through the Fair 
Funding Review of Government Funding.    

 
  

Page 48



25 
 

Cumulative Effects of the Overall Local Government Funding System 
 
8.42 Over the past 9 years and including the coming year, the emphasis of the Local 

Government Funding system has changed considerably.  There are clear financial 
incentives for Local Authorities to promote business growth, increase the number of 
homes and increase employment.  This is illustrated by the following: 

 
• The Business Rates retention scheme allows the City Council to retain (for a 

period of time between "resets") circa £470,000 for every 1% increase in Business 
Rate growth (under the 50% BRR scheme). Equally, the City Council will lose 
£470,000 for every 1% decline in the Business Rate base 

 
• Under the current scheme which is due for replacement next year, for every new 

home built, the City Council is able to retain circa £1,749.88 p.a. above the 
"deadweight" threshold of 0.4% (circa. 301 homes) in New Homes Bonus grant.   

 
• The risk of increased numbers of households requiring financial support to pay 

their Council Tax (formerly Council Tax Benefit) falls on the City Council.  The City 
Council therefore will be worse off if caseloads increase, and better off if 
caseloads fall.  The estimated value of the Council Tax support for 2020/21 is 
£9.8m.  Each 1% change therefore will represent a cost / saving of £98,000. 

 
8.43 Whilst the Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rate Retention Scheme (to be 

introduced in 2021/22) may alter these incentives, it is still expected that they will 
remain significant given the continued drive to incentivise Local Councils to 
stimulate their local economies. It is important therefore that when the Council is 
developing policy and strategy and making its decisions, particularly relating to the 
Capital Programme, it is cognisant of these financial incentives. 

  
 

Expenditure 2020/21 
 

Budget & Inflationary Pressures 2020/21 
 

8.44 In November 2013 the Council resolved that, as part of a new financial framework 
providing for a more autonomous approach to financial management and involving 
the right for Portfolios to retain all underspendings, that Portfolios would be expected 
to manage any budget pressures. 
 

8.45 The features of the financial framework include: 
 

i) Each Portfolio to retain 100% of any year-end underspending and it to be held in 
an earmarked reserve for the relevant Portfolio 

ii) The Portfolio Holder be responsible for approving any releases from their 
earmarked reserve in consultation with the Director of Finance & Resources 
(S.151 Officer) 

iii) That any retained underspend (held in an earmarked reserve) be used in the first 
instance to cover the following for the relevant Portfolio: 

a) Any overspendings at the year-end 

Page 49



26 
 

b) Any one-off Budget Pressures experienced by a Portfolio 

c) Any on-going Budget Pressures experienced by a Portfolio  whilst actions are 
formulated to permanently mitigate or manage the implications of such on-
going budget pressures 

d) Any items of a contingent nature that would historically have been funded 
from the Council's corporate contingency provision 

e) Spend to Save schemes, unless they are of a scale that is unaffordable by 
the earmarked reserve (albeit that the earmarked reserve may be used to 
make a contribution) 

Once there is confidence that the instances in a) to e) can be satisfied, the earmarked 
reserve may be used for other developments or initiatives 

 
8.46 Correspondingly, any Budget Pressures must be funded within the overall resources 

available to the Portfolio Holder (which includes their Portfolio Reserve).   
 

8.47 Additionally, the Council's budget process provides each Portfolio with an allocation 
for inflation so that it is fully funded (excluding any savings requirements) to operate 
"steady state" services.  Budget pressures are not funded (as described above) and 
tend to be related to additional burdens, additional demand or extraordinary price 
inflation.  
 

8.48 As described in Section 6, Adults and Children's Social Care are carrying underlying 
deficits of £4.9m and £3.2m, respectively.  Both services are also expected to 
experience further cost pressures in the future and these also have been recognised.  
Both Services have well developed financial sustainability strategies and plans to 
mitigate their current underlying budget deficits and their further cost pressures over 
the next 3 years which involve substantial savings but are consistent with their overall 
strategies as follows: 
 

• Adult Social Care - Savings over 3 years amounting to £5.6m consistent with 
enabling clients to lead healthier and more independent lives 
 

• Children's Social Care - Savings over 3 years amounting to £2.6m consistent 
with early help and intervention, supporting families, improving placement 
stability and re-unification and therefore an overall reduction in the number and 
cost of Looked After Children  

 
8.49 Neither plan however is capable of fully eradicating the extraordinary scale of the 

demand and cost pressures placed on these services.  Taking all factors into account 
(both the current underlying budget deficits and the future cost and demand 
pressures), it is recommended that the following amounts be added to Budgets in 
2020/21 to bring financial stability to those services: 
 

• Health, Wellbeing & Social Care Portfolio - £2.6m (which includes the 
additional £1.6m passported from the Adult Social Care Precept) 
  

• Children's Social Care Portfolio - £3.0m 
 
8.50 In addition, there is also a national growth in the number of children identified to have 

Special Educational Needs, this is being felt within schools budgets and causing a 

Page 50



27 
 

significant strain on the Dedicated Schools Grant as well as the Local Authority which 
has responsibility for their Home to School Transport.  In the current year, Home to 
School Transport is forecast to overspend by £380,000 and expected to rise to 
£430,000 by next financial year.  Given the substantial scale of this pressure in 
relation to the size of the Education Budget, it is recommended that the following 
amount be added to Budgets in 2020/21 to avoid severe compensating cuts to 
Education Services: 
 

• Education Portfolio - £430,000 
    

8.51 Risks remain to the delivery of both the Adults and Children's Social Care financial 
sustainability strategies and these will be managed as an integral part of their 
implementation, however adequate corporate contingency provision will be made to 
cover those risks to ensure that the overall Council Budget remains robust. 
 

8.52 Budget pressures within all other Services of the Council are expected to be able to 
be managed within their overall cash limit with any necessary support from their 
Portfolio Reserve to enable any such pressures to be managed over time. 

 
Revenue Contributions to Capital 
 

8.53 As described in detail in the Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 report contained 
elsewhere on this agenda, new Capital Investment proposals totalling £68.6m are 
proposed.  This level of investment relies on a number of funding sources provided 
either by the Council or from external grants and contributions.  For 2020/21, £19.3m 
is being provided by the Council in the form of "cash backed" funding with a further 
£33.6m from Council borrowing.   
 

8.54 The proposed Capital Programme for next year is ambitious and looks to the longer 
term but, due to affordability constraints does not fulfil all of the Administration's 
aspirations or address some of the Council's future statutory obligations.  It is 
estimated that the scale of the funding required for these obligations and aspirations 
is in excess of £44m.  Contrast that with the annual capital grant funding, capital 
receipts and CIL contributions that the Council receives (circa £7m per annum) and 
there is a hugely significant shortfall ("Capital Gap") to be met.   

8.55 Given that this Capital Investment is necessary for both the Council's statutory 
obligations and also to transform the City's growth potential, it is vital that the Council 
makes provision for Revenue Contributions to Capital wherever possible.  

8.56 In order to fund the proposed Capital Programme and priorities, the Revenue Budget 
for 2020/21 will rely on revenue contributions to capital of £10m. 

8.57 To fulfil even some of the future obligations and aspirations, further revenue 
contributions to capital will be required in future years and will need to be embedded 
within the Council's financial planning process. 

 
9. Budget Savings Proposals for 2020/21 

 
9.1 The Administration's budget savings proposals are aligned with the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy previously described in Section 5 and have been prepared paying 
due regard to the responses from the Budget Consultation described previously and 
the Administration's strategic priorities.  The proposed savings amounts to be made 

Page 51



28 
 

by each Portfolio, and which are recommended for approval, are attached at 
Appendix C. 
 

9.2 In accordance with the Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Administration's 
proposals are focussed on an "Avoidance to Cuts" approach.  In overall terms, the 
proposed £2.5m of savings are characterised as follows: 
 

Description of Saving Savings 
Additional Income  £1.3m 52% 
Efficiency Savings (little or no reduction in Services) £1.2m 47% 
Service Reduction £0.0m 1% 
Total £2.5m 100% 

 
9.3 For 2020/21, Additional Income is the largest contributor to savings and accounts for 

52% with Efficiency Savings representing 47% and just 1% (£30,000) being Service 
Reduction measures.   
 

9.4 Additionally no savings are proposed from the Children and Families Portfolio due to 
the extreme cost pressures being experienced in Looked After Children and equally 
no savings are proposed from the Community Safety Portfolio which has a lead role 
in combatting Domestic Violence, one of the largest contributors to taking children 
into care and therefore family break up and rising costs.  
 

9.5 A summary of the overall savings proposals for 2020/21, by Portfolio, is set out below. 
 

Portfolio Saving 2020/21 
    £ % 
Children and Families 0 0.0% 
Community Safety 0 0.0% 
Culture and City Development 52,000 0.3% 
Education 30,000 0.3% 
Environment and Climate Change 254,000 2.5% 
Health, Wellbeing & Social Care - Adult Social Care 604,000* 1.2% 
Housing   157,000 1.5% 
Leader   656,800 15.8% 
Resources 651,200 2.5% 
Traffic and Transportation 95,000 1.2% 
Grand Total 2,500,000 1.50% 
 
* Excludes the additional funding passported through the Adult Social Care Precept £1.6m 
and the additional £1m of further funding provided, meaning that there is a real increase in 
Adult Social Care funding 
 

9.6 In both value and proportionate terms, the Leader Portfolio has made the largest 
contribution to the savings requirements (15.8%) and entirely through income 
generation.  The Resources Portfolio, both by value and proportionate terms, was the 
second most important contributor to the savings requirements through a balanced 
mix of both efficiency savings and additional income. 
 

Page 52



29 
 

9.7 Notably, the smallest contributor to savings are the Care Services, Community Safety 
and Traffic & Transportation which is consistent with the priorities of residents 
described in the Budget Consultation. 
 

9.8 Inevitably, there are a number of financial risks contained within the proposals for 
making savings of the scale of £2.5m (or 1.5%) on the back of making £102m in 
savings and efficiencies over the past 9 years.  The risks are unavoidable.  For those 
risks with the highest likely impact, mitigation strategies are being developed.  
 

9.9 It is important to note that the Council's responsibility is to set the overall Budget of 
the Council and determine the cash limits for each Portfolio.  It is not the responsibility 
of the Council to approve the detailed savings that need to be made in order for the 
Portfolio to meet its cash limit.  The Council do need to have the confidence that the 
recommended savings for each Portfolio are deliverable and what the likely impact of 
delivering those savings might be.  Indicative savings that are likely to be necessary 
in delivering the overall Portfolio savings are attached at Appendix C and whilst the 
detailed savings are not a matter for the Council to decide, they are presented to 
inform the decision of Council relating to the overall savings to be made by each 
Portfolio / Committee. 

 
9.10 In order for the City Council to be able to implement the Savings Requirement in good 

time, a number of savings proposals will require that consultation take place and 
notice periods be given.  Should the Portfolio savings set out in paragraph 9.5 above 
be approved, Managers will commence the implementation of those savings and any 
consultation process or notice periods necessary. 

 
9.11 For savings proposals that require consultation, the actual method of implementation 

or their distributional effect will not be determined until the results of consultation have 
been fully considered.  Following consultation, the relevant Portfolio Holder may alter, 
amend or substitute any of the indicative savings proposal(s) set out in Appendix C 
with alternative proposal(s) amounting to the same value. 

 
 
10. Summary of Proposed Revenue Budget 2020/21 
   
10.1 The proposed Budget for 2020/21 has been prepared to include the following: 
 

Spending 2020/21: 
 

• Additional funding for Children's Social Care, recognising the sustained increase 
in Looked after Children - £3m 
 

• Additional Funding for Adult Social Care recognising the need to meet 
demographic pressures and the extraordinary inflationary costs associated with 
the National Living Wage - £2.6m  
 

• Continuation of  "Winter Pressures" programme supporting the NHS to 
accommodate increased demand for hospital admissions and discharges  - 
£0.9m  

 
• An overall allowance for inflation of 3.7% across services amounting to £4.1m  

 

Page 53



30 
 

• A total of £16m of contributions from revenue and reserves to the Capital 
Programme to enable the Council to meet its essential Capital Investment needs 
 

• Overall contingency provision to cover known and anticipated financial risks of 
the Council amounting to £10.3m (£9.5m in 2019/20), especially those relating to 
increases in demand for Adult & Children’s Social Care services, Emergency 
Repairs risks and the delivery of budget savings more generally 

  
• A transfer of £3.5m to the MTRS Reserve in order to replenish it to levels sufficient 

to be capable of meeting future Spend to Save initiatives  
 
• Adjustments to pension costs, forecast borrowing costs and investment rates  

 
• The £2.5m savings proposals 

 
Funding 2020/21: 

 
• An overall increase in Government Funding of £3m (mainly relating to the 

increase in the Social Care Grant of £3.9m and offset by reductions to the New 
Homes Bonus grant and other Brexit related grants) 
 

• Cessation of the 75% BRR pilot - reduction of £1.5m of retained business rates 
(previously used to supplement the Capital Programme) 

 
• Changes arising from the increase in Business Rates due to the inflationary uplift 

in the multiplier (1.63%) and offset by a real decline in the Business Rate Base 
 
• An overall increase in Council Tax of 3.99%, yielding £3.2m 

 
• An increase in the Council Tax base equivalent to 659.8 Band D properties 

yielding £0.9m  
 

• Overall "one-off" surplus on the Collection Fund attributable to the City Council 
amounting to £1.8m, representing a surplus on Council Tax of £0.5m and a 
surplus on Business Rates retained of £1.3m  

 
10.2 The proposed Budget for 2020/21, including the main changes described above 

results in net spending of £174,588,400.  This amounts to a net increase in spending 
of £9,586,400 or 5.8% over the Original Budget 2019/20.  

 
10.3 The proposed Budget for 2020/21 as described in this Section is recommended for 

approval. 
 
  

Page 54



31 
 

11. Cash Limits 2020/21  
 
11.1 As previously described, Cash Limits relate to that element of the Budget that is 

Portfolio and Service specific and which is controllable.  Cash Limits have been 
prepared to reflect all changes set out in the proposed Budget for 2020/21 described 
in Section 10 and in particular include: 

 
• Reductions to Cash Limits to take out the approved Budget savings 

 
• Additions to reflect extraordinary budget pressures 

 
• Inflation 

 
• Additions to Cash Limits for passporting funds relating to new burdens 

 
• Adjustments to reflect the revenue costs of the proposed Capital Programme 

 
• Windfall costs and savings 

 
• Other refinements 

 

11.2 The table below shows the proposed Cash Limits for 2020/21 and also those items 
outside Cash Limits (i.e. capital and similar charges, levies and insurance premiums), 
which together form the Budget for each service. 

Portfolio   Items   
  Cash Limits Outside the Budget 
  2020/21 Cash Limit 2020/21 
  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Children & Families 32,986 3,064 36,050 
Community Safety 2,103 556 2,659 
Culture Leisure & City 
Development 6,398 5,107 11,505 

Education 6,188 14,859 21,047 
Environment & Climate Change 12,515 1,566 14,081 
Health, Wellbeing & Social Care 45,979 5,035 51,014 
Housing 5,331 3,138 8,469 
Leader (29,795) 5,566 (24,229) 
Resources 18,812 6,647 25,459 
Traffic & Transportation 15,335 5,871 21,206 
Licensing Committee (231) 102 (129) 

    

Portfolio Expenditure 115,621 51,511 167,132 
 

11.3 Managers will be expected to contain their expenditure in 2020/21 within Cash Limits 
and to regularly monitor their budgets to ensure this is achieved.  Managers will 
continue to have the freedom to change their budgets within the Cash Limit in the 
year, provided they do not enter into commitments which would increase their 
expenditure in future years beyond the agreed Cash Limit for 2020/21, but mindful of 
the requirement to make savings in future years. 

Page 55



32 
 

11.4 As set out in the Council's Financial Rules, any overspends against the current year’s 
Cash Limit will become the first call on any retained underspendings from previous 
years contained within a Portfolio's Earmarked Reserve.  Should a Portfolio's 
Earmarked Reserve be depleted, any remaining overspend will be deducted from the 
2021/22 Cash Limit.  

 
11.5 Managers have delegated authority to incur committed routine expenditure within 

their approved Cash Limit. Routine expenditure is any expenditure incurred to meet 
the day-to-day operational requirements of the service, or any specific approved 
budget pressure. Managers wishing to incur expenditure on any other specific item 
should seek approval from the relevant Portfolio holder before incurring that 
expenditure. 

 
11.6 These Cash Limits will be adjusted under the delegated authority of the S.151 Officer 

to reflect transfers of budgets that come to light after the Budget has been approved, 
such as changes to the assumptions on inflation rates and any other virements. 

 
11.7 Managers will be required to report their forecast outturn position to the relevant 

Portfolio holder on a regular basis and the Cabinet will receive a report on the overall 
budget position every quarter. 
 
 
 

12. Future Years’ Medium Term Forecasts - 2021/22, 2022/23, and 
2023/24 

 
12.1 A new medium term forecast has now been completed and "rolled on" a further year 

to cover the period 2021/22 to 2023/24.  All of the financial assumptions have been 
comprehensively revised and a savings requirement for the new period determined. 

 
12.2 The previous medium term forecast estimated that savings of £7.5m would be 

required across the previous 3 year period 2020/21 to 2022/23.  The proposed 
Revenue Budget for 2020/21 provides for £2.5m of those savings that, based on the 
"old" forecast, would have left a residual £5m remaining to be found for the following 
2 years. 
 

12.3 The new medium term forecast takes account of the £2.5m savings being achieved 
in 2020/21, comprehensively revises the remaining £5m that was estimated to be 
required and makes a forecast for the additional year 2023/24.  It is now estimated 
that the savings required for the new 3 year period 2021/22 to 2023/24 will now be 
£3.0m (or £6m cumulatively over the period) as described in the paragraphs that 
follow. 

 

Page 56



33 
 

12.4 The most significant changes that will affect Local Government and the Council 
through the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 are as follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

12.5 The most significant assumptions in the medium term forecasts for the period 2021/22 
to 2023/24 are described below: 
 
Spending: 

 
• An overall composite inflationary provision covering all pay and prices at circa 

3.3% per annum for the period plus additional pension obligations, in total 
amounting to £16.0m 
 

• The delivery of the financial sustainability plans in Adults and Children's Services 
amounting to combined savings of £4.7m 

 

£3.0m
Deficit

Government 
Funding 

Reductions
£3.6m

Inflation & 
Pensions
£16.0m   

(Inflation at 
circa 3.3% p.a)

Other Net 
Budget 

Pressures 
£6.5m

Reduced 
contributions 

to Capital 
£10.0m 

Social Care 
Savings 
(Adults & 

Children's)
£4.7m

Council Tax 
Increases

£4.6m
(1.99% p.a.)

Business 
Rates 

Increases 
£3.8m

(2.0% p.a)

Page 57



34 
 

• Some provision for the potential on-going risks associated with future 
demographic and other volume related budget pressures within Children’s and 
Adult Social Care  
 

• Revenue Contributions to Capital reducing to £3.0m in 2021/22 and 2022/23 and 
to zero by 2023/24  
 

• A contribution to the MTRS Reserve in 2022/23 in order to maintain the Reserve 
at levels consistent with continuing to be able to support Spend to Save initiatives 
and likely redundancy costs 
 

• An assumption of a "steady state" for other budgets 
 
 

Funding: 
 

• Reductions in overall general Government funding from 2021/22 onwards 
amounting to £3.6m over the period, representing a 4.1% reduction associated 
with the Fair Funding Review and Business Rate Retention "reset"  
 

• A 1.99% increase in Council Tax per annum from 2021/22 onwards, in total 
yielding £4.6m 

 
• Non recurrence of the current £1.8m surplus of the Collection Fund 

 
• Indexation uplifts on retained Business Rates of 2.0% per annum from 2021/22 

onwards 
 

• An underlying zero growth assumption for changes in Business Rates from 
2021/22 onwards, to reflect the uncertainty relating to appeals and mandatory 
reliefs  

 
• That any loss of business rates income arising from National Business Rate 

reduction / capping initiatives will continue to be recompensed by Government via 
S.31 grant funding  
 

• No changes to the Port dividend for 2021/22, 2022/23, and 2023/24 to reflect 
current forecasts 

 
12.6 It is important to recognise that this forecast extends beyond the multi-year Spending 

Review planned for the coming year, the Fair Funding Review and the 75% Business 
Rate Retention Scheme due to be implemented in 2021/22.  It also moves 2 years 
beyond these events and makes broad assumptions at the macroeconomic level 
pending any indicative information at the local level.  Consequently there remains a 
significant level of uncertainty surrounding the £3.0m forecast deficit which could 
realistically vary between +/- £4m. 

 
12.7 Due to the uncertain nature of the future years' forecasts it is imperative that the 

Council continues to plan for £1.0m of savings per annum as well as maintaining 
sufficient General Reserves.  This is a balanced approach appropriate to an 
eventuality where the Council's forecasts are either too pessimistic or too optimistic.  
For example, in the event that the 3 year forecast improves, the Council has not 

Page 58



35 
 

prematurely made a level of savings and service reductions that could have been 
avoided and it allows more time for savings initiatives to take effect.  If the forecast 
deteriorates, the Council will have made good progress towards the necessary 
savings and have sufficient General Reserves to avoid significant "spikes" in Savings 
Requirements in any single year in the future. 
 

12.8 Crucially, this savings strategy, as described above, can only work if the Council 
retains General Reserves at the levels set out in this report. 
 

12.9 In summary, the overall forecast budget deficit and therefore savings requirement has 
been reduced for both 2021/22 and 2022/23 and the forecast has been “rolled on” to 
now include a deficit in 2023/24 of £1.0m.  The overall forecast budget deficit and 
savings requirement for the 3 year period 2021/22 to 2023/24 is £3.0m.  Importantly, 
this level of budget deficit can only be maintained if the Council approves the 
proposed £2.5m of savings as well as the increase in Council Tax of 3.99% for 
2020/21.  
 

12.10 The medium term financial forecasts are set out as part of the General Fund 
Summary in Appendix A but in a more summarised fashion in Appendix B. 
 

12.11 The fundamental aim of the Medium Term Resource Strategy is for in-year 
expenditure to equal in-year income.  The proposed Savings Requirements set out 
below have been set to accord with that aim and also with the minimum level of 
General Balances that the Council is required to hold based on its risk profile.  
 

12.12 The Savings Requirements recommended below have been phased to have regard 
to a managed reduction in spending and service provision over a realistic period:  
 
 

 Revised 
Underlying 

Budget 
Deficit 

£m 

 
Revised  
In Year 
Target 

£m 

 
Revised 

Cumulative 
Saving 

£m 
2021/22 2.2 1.0 1.0 
2022/23 3.8 1.0 2.0 
2023/24 3.0 1.0 3.0 

 
It will be for the Administration to determine how these forecast Savings 
Requirements are allocated across Portfolios throughout future budget processes. 
 

13. Estimated General Reserves 2019/20 to 2023/24 
 
13.1 In general, maintaining adequate reserves is a measure of responsible financial 

management and strong financial health.  They are required in order to be able to 
respond to "financial shocks" without having to revert to the alternative of quick and 
severe reductions in services.  Equally, they can be a vehicle to take advantage of 
any opportunities that may arise which are in the financial interests of the Council (for 
example, matched funding opportunities which could lever in additional funding for 
the City or for Spend to Save schemes).  Importantly, they also enable differences 

Page 59



36 
 

between expenditure and funding levels to be "smoothed out" and managed in a 
planned way over time. 

 
13.2 General Fund Revenue Reserves as at 31 March 2020 (Revised Estimate) are 

anticipated to be £23m after transfers to and from other reserves although falling back 
to historic levels of circa £20m by 31 March 2021.  The Council is expected therefore 
to remain within the approved level of minimum General Reserves of £8.0m. 

 
13.3 In accordance with Best Practice, the level and nature of all revenue reserves and 

balances has been reviewed as part of the budget process. The exercise has 
attempted to identify and assess all of the City Council’s potential financial risks over 
the next few years in order to determine the prudent level of balances that should be 
retained, based on the City Council’s risk profile. Each risk has been considered 
alongside the probability of it happening.  

 
13.4 The outcome shows that for 2020/21 the City Council should continue to hold a 

minimum of £8.0m in General Reserves to cover these major risks. It is therefore 
recommended that the minimum level of General Reserves be maintained at £8.0m 
as at March 2021.  Assuming the savings required to fund the forecast deficit in 
2020/21 are achieved, General Reserves as at 31 March 2021 are forecast to be 
£20.4m.   

 
13.5 The minimum level of balances for 2021/22 and future years will be reviewed annually 

as part of the budget process. 
 
13.6 The statement below gives details of the General Reserves in hand at 01 April 2019, 

together with the proposed use of reserves from 2019/20 to 2023/24, and the 
resultant balances at 31 March 2024 assuming that the target savings 
recommended in Section 12 are achieved. 
 

 
 
13.7 The level of balances held over the period will be higher than the minimum level 

recommended. This prudent approach is being taken for a number of specific 
reasons, which include: 

 
• The Council is not permitted to budget for a level of General Reserves below the 

minimum level determined by the S.151 Officer 
 

• There remain continuing risks associated with the financial sustainability plans for 
both Adults and Children's Social Care.  For example, should the forecast savings 
over the period General Reserves would be at minimum levels by March 2022.   

 

 General Reserves Forecast - Up to 2023/24 
Financial Year Current 

Year 
£m 

Budget 
2020/21 

£m 

Forecast 
2021/22 

£m 

Forecast 
2022/23 

£m 

Forecast 
2023/24 

£m 

Opening Balance 23.0 23.0 20.4 19.2 17.4 

In Year Surplus / (Deficit) (0.0) (2.6) (1.2) (1.8) 0.0 

Forecast Balance 23.0 20.4 19.2 17.4 17.4 

Page 60



37 
 

• The balances are predicated on total savings (as yet unidentified) of £3.0m being 
achieved over the next 3 years.  If those savings are not made, balances would 
be reduced by £6.0m by 31 March 2024. 
 

• It is a crucial part of the strategy to mitigate against the uncertainty of the Fair 
Funding Review in 2021/22 in order to avoid potentially significant "spikes" in 
savings requirements in any single year  (as described in Section 12 above)  
 

• The uncertainty over the level of funding generally (in particular retained Business 
Rates), demographic cost pressures for care services, inflation and interest rates 
in future years 

 
• The uncommitted balance available in the MTRS reserve of just £8.1m10 means 

there are only limited funds available to fund the implementation costs of future 
efficiency savings (see Section 14) 

 
13.8 Furthermore, the City Council is pursuing a number of initiatives that will rely 

temporarily on the use of the Council's reserves generally in order to deliver them in a 
more cost efficient way (i.e. as opposed to borrowing).  Examples include, the City 
Deal, Dunsbury Hill Farm and the Investment Property Fund.  In the current climate 
where borrowing rates are significantly greater than investment rates, it makes 
financial sense to utilise General Balances and Reserves (that would otherwise be 
invested until required) and defer any borrowing decisions to a later date once 
investment rates recover.  Retaining reserves therefore is an extremely important 
element of delivering the Council's Regeneration Strategy that will ultimately result in 
increased jobs, new homes and improved prosperity for the City.  

 
 
14. Medium Term Resource Strategy Reserve 
 
14.1 The MTRS Reserve was originally established to fund: 

• Spend to Save and Spend to Avoid Cost initiatives 
 
• Invest to Save capital schemes 
 
• Feasibility Studies where there is likely to be an efficiency gain 
 
• One-off redundancy costs arising from proposed savings 
 
• The funding of expenditure of a “one-off” nature that is critical to the successful 

achievement of the outcomes that the residents of Portsmouth value most highly 
and where no other alternative funding source is available 

 
14.2 Historically, the reserve has been replenished by transfers of underspends from 

previous years.  Under the new financial framework of retained underspendings by 
Portfolios, the opportunities for replenishing this reserve are now diminished.  The 
calls on the reserve however, for smaller scale Spend to Save or Invest to Save 

                                            
10  Including the net transfers from the reserve of £5.978m contained with the recommendations of the 
Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 report elsewhere on this agenda and the transfer in of £3.5m 
proposed within this report 

Page 61



38 
 

schemes are also diminished, since these are funded from Portfolio Reserves where 
available. It is important that the reserve is maintained to fund larger scale Spend to 
Save schemes that would otherwise be unaffordable by a Portfolio. 

 
14.3 It is anticipated that the main call on the MTRS Reserve over the next few years will 

be Invest to Save Schemes of a capital nature and the revenue costs associated with 
transforming Services.  Additionally, redundancy costs will also be required, arising 
out of the savings needed to meet the £3.0m forecast Budget deficit. 

 
14.4 In order to provide for future years anticipated redundancy costs (i.e. over the course 

of the coming year and the further 3 year forecast), satisfy the demands for Invest to 
Save Schemes and meet all other commitments, it is anticipated that the uncommitted 
balance on the MTRS Reserve will be £8.1m.  Importantly, Invest to Save (avoid cost) 
proposals are becoming an increasingly important component of the Capital 
Programme and it can reasonably be expected that future Capital Programmes will 
rely more heavily of this as a funding source (e.g. a transfer of £5.978m in 2020/21). 

 
14.5 In future years, for this reserve to continue in this capacity, it will be necessary to 

replenish it either from non Portfolio underspends or alternatively from the Revenue 
Budget.  
 

  
15. Statement of the Section 151 Officer in Accordance with the Local 

Government Act 2003  
 
15.1 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 (“the Act”) requires the Chief Financial 

Officer to report to the City Council on the following matters: 
 

• The robustness of the estimates included in the budget made for the purposes of 
setting the Council Tax; and 

 
• The adequacy of proposed financial reserves  

 
15.2 Section 25 of the Act concentrates on uncertainties within the budget year rather than 

the greater uncertainties in future years. In the current economic climate, there 
continue to be uncertainties in both the current and future years i.e. beyond 2020/21. 
Particular uncertainties exist regarding the extent of successful appeals and 
mandatory reliefs which affect Retained Business Rates, Government Funding levels 
(including the outcome of the Fair Funding Review and the 75% Business Rate 
Retention scheme), the ability of the Council to continue to make the necessary 
savings at the required scale and pace, the likely demographic cost pressures arising 
in demand driven services such as Adults and Children’s Social Care and the extent 
to which new policy changes will be funded (most notably those arising from the Care 
Act).  All of these uncertainties increase the need for adequate reserves and balances 
to be maintained in current and future years. 

 
15.3 A minimum level of revenue reserves must be specified within the Budget. The Local 

Authority must take full account of this information when setting the Budget 
Requirement. 

 
15.4 Should the level of reserves fall below the minimum approved sum of £8.0m as 

proposed in this report,  either arising from an overspend in the previous year or the 

Page 62



39 
 

current year, the S.151 Officer has a duty to report this to the Council with 
recommendations as to the actions that should be taken to rectify the shortfall.  In the 
most extreme of circumstances, the S.151 Officer can impose spending controls until 
a balanced budget is approved by the Council.   

 
 

 (a) Robustness of the Budget 
 
15.5 In setting the Budget, the City Council should have regard to the strategic and 

operational risks facing the City Council. Some of these risks reflect the current 
economic climate and the national issues surrounding local authority funding levels. 

 
15.6 Estimates and forecasts have been prepared to include all known significant financial 

factors over the medium term in order to inform spending decisions. 
 
15.7 Assumptions for the Budget and forecasts for future years are considered to be sound 

and based on the best available information.  These are set out in detail in Sections 
8 and 12 and use the following sources as their evidence base: 
 
• Government funding as set out in the provisional settlement for 2020/21  

 
• An assumption that the increase in the Social Care grant for 2020/21 of £3.9m 

will be top sliced from the re-distribution of Business Rates growth as part of the 
Fair Funding review and Business Rate "reset" to be implemented in 2021/22   

 
• A "no growth" assumption for Retained Business Rates from 2021/22 onwards 

on the basis that any income arising from growth will be offset by both appeals 
and reliefs 

 
• An assumption that the value of successful appeals against the 2017 rating list 

will be the equivalent of 4.7% of the business rate multiplier.   
 

• Increases in Council Tax based on what is likely to be acceptable and within 
expected referendum limits  

 
• Inflation on Retained Business Rates and prices in accordance with inflation 

estimates from the Office for Budget Responsibility 
 
• Provisions for anticipated national policy changes arising out of the Care Act 

based on Portsmouth's share of "relative need"11  
 
• Specific provisions for increases in demand for both Adult and Children’s Social 

Care based on current trends 
 
• Prudential borrowing requirements based on approved Capital schemes 

 
• Revenue contributions to capital based on known commitments and estimates of 

future needs 
 

                                            
11 Relative need is based on the Government's "Relative Needs Formula" that is used in allocating general 
government funding 

Page 63



40 
 

• Balances and contingencies based on a risk assessment of all known financial 
risks 

 
15.8 Savings contained within the Budget are those where Portfolio Holders and Directors 

assess the confidence level of achievement is medium and above.  Savings 
proposals have also been subject to scrutiny by Members. Responsibility and 
accountability for delivering the savings rests with the relevant Portfolio Holders and 
Directors and progress will be monitored throughout the year as part of the Budget 
Monitoring process. 

 
15.9 The most volatile budgets are those of Adult and Children’s Social Care. Budget 

provision has been made available to cover these risks both directly within Service 
cash limits as well as within the City Council’s overall contingency provision. 
 

15.10 Additionally, Portfolios will be able to retain any underspendings in 2019/20 and utilise 
them as necessary in 2020/21 and future years for any purpose but with a clear 
priority to meet essential cost pressures in the first instance. 
 

15.11 The forecasts prepared for the forthcoming and future years are robustly based and 
illustrate the expected costs the City Council will incur in order to deliver current levels 
of service. 
 

15.12 Portfolio Holders will be given regular budget updates by Directors to ensure that 
action to address any potential over or underspend is taken promptly and quarterly 
budget monitoring reports will continue to be presented to the Cabinet. 
 

15.13 To encourage budget discipline, all future overspendings will be deducted from any 
retained underspendings accumulated in Portfolio Earmarked Reserves in the first 
instance and once depleted from the following year’s Cash Limits.  
 

15.14 Prudential Indicators are accurately calculated based on the Council’s audited 
Balance Sheet, notified income streams and in depth financial appraisals of proposed 
capital schemes.  These are published and reviewed on a regular basis to ensure 
that the City Council complies with the concepts of Affordability, Prudence, and 
Sustainability. The City Council has agreed to consider Prudential Borrowing for 
“Spend to Save Schemes” only, as it is currently unaffordable for any other purpose 
given the forecast budget deficits in 2021/22 and future years. 
 

15.15 Future years’ budgets will remain challenging due to continued funding reductions 
and uncertainties.  The Council's forecasts provide for a savings target of £1.0m in 
2021/22, a further £1.0m in 2022/23 and a further £1.0m in 2023/24.   
 
 
(b) The Adequacy of Proposed Financial Reserves 

 
15.16 During 2019/20, a review of the level and nature of all revenue reserves and balances 

has been undertaken.  All of the City Council’s potential financial risks over the next 
few years and the probability of each risk happening has been assessed.  The 
outcome from this review concludes the need to maintain the minimum level of 
General Reserves of £8.0m as at 31 March 2021 (£8.0m in the current year). 
 

Page 64



41 
 

15.17 Balances provide a buffer against unexpected costs such as pay awards, inflation, 
shortfalls in income and overspends and enable the City Council to manage change 
without undue impact on the Council Tax or immediate reductions to services. They 
are a key element of strong financial standing and resilience as they mitigate risks 
such as increased demand and other cost pressures.  
 

15.18 The level of balances held will be higher than the minimum level recommended. This 
prudent approach is being taken for a number of specific reasons as set out in Section 
13.  The position will continue to be reviewed and reported to Members on an annual 
basis. 
 

15.19 As previously mentioned, the Council will maintain Portfolio Earmarked Reserves to 
retain accumulated Portfolio underspends in order that Portfolios can better manage 
any known or unknown cost pressures that arise.  It is forecast that Portfolio Reserves 
will amount to £1.1m as at 31 March 2020 which will be available for 2020/21. 
 

15.20 The MTRS Reserve is the Council’s primary vehicle for funding Spend to Save and 
Spend to Avoid Costs Initiatives, Feasibility Studies and redundancy costs.  Taking 
account of all approvals from this reserve and future estimated redundancy costs 
over the next 4 years, it is estimated that the Reserve will have an uncommitted 
balance of £8.1m.  In order for this Reserve to continue in this capacity, it will be 
necessary to replenish it from any non Portfolio underspendings, transfers from other 
reserves no longer required or alternatively from the Revenue Budget. 
 

15.21 The Council maintains a number of other Earmarked Reserves for specific purposes, 
all of which are at the levels required to meet known future commitments.  The major 
reserves include the following: 
 
• Revenue Reserve for Capital – to fund the Capital Programme 

 
• Highways PFI Reserve – to fund future commitments under that contract 

 
• Off Street Parking Reserve – to fund investment in transport 

 
• Insurance Reserve – to fund potential future liabilities 

 
15.22 The Council’s contingency provision for 2020/21 has been set on a risk basis at 

£10.3m and reflects anticipated calls on the budget where the timing and value is not 
yet known. The use and application of the contingency will continue to be exercised 
tightly.   
 

 
16. Conclusion   
 

16.1 The proposed Budget 2020/21 has been prepared to incorporate the resolution of Full 
Council in February 2019 to make savings amounting to £2.5m and provides for an 
overall Council Tax increase of 3.99%, of which 2.0% is passported directly to provide 
services for Adult Social Care.   

  

Page 65



42 
 

16.2 The proposals within this report are made as part of a co-ordinated package of 
measures for both the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme that are aligned with 
the approved Medium Term Financial Strategy with its stated aim that:  
 

"In year" expenditure matches "in year" income over the medium term whilst 
continuing drive towards regeneration of the City, being innovative, creative 

and protecting the most important and valued services 
 
 

16.3 The proposed Budget for 2020/21 is financially balanced, robustly based and 
provides sufficient cover for anticipated and potential financial risks within the year.  
Furthermore, the overall financial health of the Council currently remains sound 
providing a good degree of resilience against an uncertain future. 
 

16.4 Due to prudent financial management over a number of years, the scale of savings 
is now at more moderate levels and the forecast budget deficit for the 3 year period 
2021/22 to 2023/24 has reduced to £3.0m amounting to £1.0m per annum for each 
of the next 3 years.  

 
16.5 Funding uncertainty still remains, particularly in 2021/22 when the Local Government 

funding system changes to 75% Business Rate Retention alongside the simultaneous 
implementation of the Fair Funding review; combined these have the potential to 
affect the Councils forecasts either positively or negatively by circa £4m.   
 

16.6 Given the level of savings required over the next 3 years of £3.0m, the degree of 
uncertainty that exists and the inevitable financial pressures that the Council will face, 
it is important that the Council continues to follow its Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and maintain Reserves at adequate levels.  The Council should also be particularly 
mindful of the potential future income or reduced demand / costs that the Council 
could derive through the delivery of its Capital Programme.  This is likely to be the 
biggest influence on enabling jobs, growth and overall improved prosperity within the 
City.   
 
 

17. Integrated Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
17.1 Consideration of the impact of budget pressures and proposed savings on all 

customers, services and staff has been taken into account in formulating this budget.  
The savings proposals set out within this report are proposals only for the purposes 
of setting Portfolio Cash Limits and the overall City Council Budget.  Whilst most are 
likely to be implemented, there will be some that require further consultation and 
appropriate Integrated Impact Assessments to be considered before any 
implementation can take place.  For this reason, Portfolio holders have the discretion 
to alter, amend or substitute any proposal with an alternative proposal following 
appropriate consultation. 
 

17.2 A city-wide budget consultation took place during October and November to help 
inform how to make £7.5m of savings over the period 2020/21 to 2022/23 as well as 
how the Council should prioritise its spending plans.  The consultation took the form 
of a survey questionnaire which was also supplemented by consultation events at 
various locations across the City. 

Page 66



43 
 

17.3 The Scrutiny Management Panel also met to consider the proposals contained within 
this report and have the opportunity to make their representations to the Cabinet prior 
to their recommendation to the City Council.  A public meeting of the Scrutiny 
Management Panel was held on the 31 January 2020 where a presentation was 
made of the proposed Council Tax and Revenue Budget 2020/21, the Council's future 
financial forecasts for 2021/22 to 2023/24 and the proposed Capital Investment plans.   
 
 

18. City Solicitor’s Comments 
 
18.1 The Cabinet has a legal responsibility to recommend a Budget and Council Tax 

amount to the Council and the Council has authority to approve the recommendations 
made in this report.  

 
18.2 The S.151 Officer has a statutory duty under the Local Government Act 2003 to report 

on the robustness of the budget proposals and adequacy of reserves. The S.151 
Officer’s Statement within this report fulfils those obligations. 
 

 
19. S.151 Officer's Comments 
 
19.1 All of the financial information is reflected in the body of the report and the 

Appendices.  
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Section 151 Officer 

Page 67



44 
 

Appendices: 
A General Fund Summary 
B Forecast Expenditure 2020/21 to 2023/24 
C Indicative Budget Savings 2020/21 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 
Title of document Location 
Budget Working Papers Office of Director of Finance & Resources 

Local Government Finance Settlement 
2020/21 

Office of Director of Finance & Resources 

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved / approved as amended / deferred / 
rejected by the City Council on 11 February 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Leader of Portsmouth City Council  
  

Page 68



45 
 

 
APPENDIX A

Calculation of the Council Tax 2020/21

Portsmouth City Council 2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Gross Expenditure 478,744,767 481,710,889

LESS: Gross Income (362,673,725) (384,940,505)

Net Expenditure 2020/21 116,071,042 96,770,384

LESS: Government Grants (32,216,438) (17,054,314)

Council Tax Requirement - Portsmouth City Council Purposes 83,854,604 79,716,070

Council Tax Base 57,735.2 57,075.4

Council Tax - Portsmouth City Council Purposes at Band D
83,854,604
57,735.2 = £1,452.40 £1,396.68

Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner Precept 12,208,685 11,498,410

Council Tax - Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner Purposes at Band D £211.46 £201.46

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority Precept 3,987,193 3,864,575

Council Tax - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority Purposes at Band D £69.06 £67.71

The Council Tax to be levied for all bands in 2020/21 will be as follows :

Portsmouth Police & Crime Hampshire TOTAL TOTAL
City Commissioner Fire & Rescue 2020/21 2019/20

Council For Hampshire Authority
£ £ £ £ £

Estimated Valuation as 1 April 1991
Up to £40,000 A 968.27 140.97 46.04 1,155.28 1,110.57
£40,001 - £52,000 B 1,129.64 164.47 53.71 1,347.82 1,295.66
£52,001 - £68,000 C 1,291.02 187.96 61.39 1,540.37 1,480.76
£68,001 - £88,000 D 1,452.40 211.46 69.06 1,732.92 1,665.85
£88,001 - £120,000 E 1,775.16 258.45 84.41 2,118.02 2,036.04
£120,001 - £160,000 F 2,097.91 305.44 99.75 2,503.10 2,406.23
£160,001 - £320,000 G 2,420.67 352.43 115.10 2,888.20 2,776.42
£320,001 and over H 2,904.80 422.92 138.12 3,465.84 3,331.70

Page 69



46 
  

APPENDIX A 
Original Revised Original
Budget NET REQUIREMENTS OF PORTFOLIOS Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast
2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £ £

29,428,800 Children & Families 29,650,500 36,049,800 38,889,000 39,136,600 40,071,900
2,085,700 Community Safety 2,084,100 2,658,900 2,676,300 2,705,200 2,785,900
9,732,460 Culture Leisure & City Development 9,906,860 11,504,900 12,193,100 12,546,800 12,540,800

24,283,257 Education 24,580,357 21,047,200 21,321,400 21,577,100 21,840,700
14,283,513 Environment & Climate Change 14,349,713 14,080,100 14,505,100 15,121,100 14,087,100
47,682,279 Health, Wellbeing & Social Care 47,882,379 51,013,400 53,789,400 56,002,200 58,189,500
11,105,728 Housing 11,135,528 8,469,500 8,620,500 9,181,300 9,358,800
(9,681,818) Leader (11,999,818) (24,229,200) (25,641,400) (27,377,200) (28,082,900)
21,408,334 Resources 22,677,834 25,459,700 27,041,100 27,676,500 28,081,700
17,012,607 Traffic & Transportation 18,068,307 21,206,100 22,313,400 23,421,900 25,434,500

(228,095) Licensing Committee (223,495) (129,000) (133,100) (137,300) (141,600)

167,112,765 Portfolio Expenditure 168,112,265 167,131,400 175,574,800 179,854,200 184,166,400

Other Expenditure
8,018,900 Pension Costs 7,803,800 1,470,700 1,506,200 1,542,600 5,579,900
9,489,000 Contingency Provision 8,534,500 10,345,500 4,631,000 4,631,000 4,631,000
6,600,000 Revenue Contributions to Capital Reserve 11,379,900 10,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 0
(570,600) Transfer to / (from) Other Reserves (7,630,400) 2,926,500 1,405,500 2,036,200 36,200

(28,643,765) Treasury Management (27,068,765) (19,983,600) (18,372,200) (18,488,200) (18,918,600)
2,995,700 Other Expenditure 4,780,700 2,697,900 2,621,400 3,145,000 3,145,000

(2,110,765) Other Expenditure (2,200,265) 7,457,000 (5,208,100) (4,133,400) (5,526,500)

165,002,000 TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 165,912,000 174,588,400 170,366,700 175,720,800 178,639,900

FINANCED BY:

(42,690) Contribution (to) from Balances and Reserves 20,238 2,579,937 2,165,650 3,843,153 3,036,470
0 Revenue Support Grant 0 11,669,696 0 0 0

66,700,841 Business Rates Retention 66,834,896 55,391,749 62,276,977 64,422,667 66,629,273
17,054,314 Other General Grants 17,767,331 20,546,742 20,400,921 20,229,795 20,013,451
81,289,535 Council Tax 81,289,535 84,400,276 85,523,152 87,225,185 88,960,706

165,002,000 165,912,000 174,588,400 170,366,700 175,720,800 178,639,900
BALANCES & RESERVES

23,022,170 Balance brought forward at 1 April 23,022,156 23,001,918 20,421,981 18,256,331 14,413,178
42,690 Deduct (Deficit) / Add Surplus for Year (20,238) (2,579,937) (2,165,650) (3,843,153) (3,036,470)

23,064,860 Balance carried forward at 31 March 23,001,918 20,421,981 18,256,331 14,413,178 11,376,708

8,000,000 Minimum Level of Balances 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000

(42,690) Underlying Budget Deficit  / (Surplus) 20,238 2,579,937 2,165,650 3,843,153 3,036,470

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY - 2019/20 to 2023/24

P
age 70



47 
 

 

      APPENDIX B 
         

BUDGET AND FORECAST EXPENDITURE 2019/20 to 2023/24 
         

  Budget  Forecast  Forecast  Forecast 

  
2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 

  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

         
Service Cash Limits  115,621  124,062  128,340  132,650 
Contingency  10,346  4,631  4,631  4,631 
Debt financing costs  30,158  31,769  31,653  31,223 
Levies and insurance premiums  1,369  1,371  1,373  1,375 
Other income/expenditure  17,095  8,533  9,723  8,762 

         

  174,589  170,366  175,720  178,641 
Less         
- Council Tax Income  84,400  85,523  87,225  88,961 
- Revenue Support Grant  11,670  0  0  0 
- Business Rates Retention  55,392  62,277  64,423  66,629 
- Other General Grants  20,547  20,401  20,230  20,013 

         

  172,009  168,201  171,878  175,603 
         

Budget (Deficit)/Surplus  (2,580)  (2,165)  (3,842)  (3,038) 

         
Deficits in 2021/22 to 2023/24 reflect future savings requirements     

P
age 71



48 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is left intentionally blank  

Page 72



Appendix C INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2020/21 

Saving 
2020/21 

£ 

Saving 
2021/22 

£ 

Saving 
2022/23 

£ 
Indicative Savings Proposal 

 

49 
 

Children and Families Portfolio  

Children and Families Portfolio Total 0 0 0 

Community Safety Portfolio 
   

Community Safety Portfolio Total 0 0 0 

Culture and City Development Portfolio 
   

 
Director of Culture, Leisure & Regulatory Services 
 
001 Income generation from sites on the seafront No impact - Avoids cuts to services 50,000 50,000 50,000 
 
002 Reduction in IT software costs 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
2,000 

 
2,000 

 
2,000 

Culture and City Development Portfolio Total  52,000 52,000 52,000 

Education Portfolio 
    

 
Director of Regeneration 
 

    

003 Ceased commercial sign production activity at PCMI 
which was not covering manufacturing costs 

This was a loss making operation. Its closure has now 
increased the financial resources available to the 
Employment, Learning & Skills Service resulting in 
increased social benefit to the community 

30,000 30,000 30,000 

Education Portfolio Total  30,000 30,000 30,000 
 

Environment and Climate Change Portfolio 
    

 
Director of Housing, Neighbourhood & Building Services 
 

    

004 Savings arising from re-negotiation of the Waste Disposal 
contract in 2015 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 200,000 200,000 200,000 

005 Waste Managers Post deleted Limited Impact on Service as duties have now been 
transferred to existing staff 

54,000 54,000 54,000 

Environment and Climate Change Portfolio Total  254,000 254,000 254,000 

P
age 73



Appendix C INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2020/21 

Saving 
2020/21 

£ 

Saving 
2021/22 

£ 

Saving 
2022/23 

£ 
Indicative Savings Proposal 

 

50 
 

 

Health, Wellbeing and Social Care Portfolio 
 
Director of Adult Services 
 
006 Provision of a robust reablement/rehabilitation service, 

providing the right reablement focused care at the right 
time, in the right place to prevent admissions into 
hospital and more expensive long term care 

An effective reablement/rehabilitation service, will provide 
packages of care to meet the individual needs of the person 
to enable them to lead independent healthy lives at home. 
Therefore the outcome for service users is greater 
independence and more effective support. This preventative 
approach will avoid more expensive care costs 

604,000  604,000 604,000 

Health, Wellbeing and Social Care Portfolio Total  604,000  604,000 604,000 
 
Housing Portfolio 

    

 
Director of Housing, Neighbourhood & Building Services     

 
007 Enter into a Power Purchase Agreement for electricity 

costs with the HRA 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
50,000  

 
50,000 

 
50,000 

008 Savings from procurement of Supporting People 
Contracts 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 57,000  57,000 57,000 

009 Disabled Facilities Grant administration provided to Third 
Parties which can be charged for 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 50,000  50,000 50,000 

Housing Portfolio Total  157,000  157,000 157,000 
 
Leader Portfolio 
 

    

Director of Regeneration 
 

    

010 Additional commercial rental income from the expansion 
of Dunsbury Business Park 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 270,000  270,000 270,000 

 
011 Property Investment Income - Lakeside 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
386,800  

 
386,800 

 
386,800 

Leader Portfolio Total  656,800  656,800 656,800 

P
age 74



Appendix C INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2020/21 

Saving 
2020/21 

£ 

Saving 
2021/22 

£ 

Saving 
2022/23 

£ 
Indicative Savings Proposal 

 

51 
 

Resources Portfolio 
 
Director of Corporate Services 
 
012 Network consolidation and simplification arising from the 

ongoing implementation of the IT strategy to move to Cloud 
based services 

Improved resilience as the number of supported network 
lines will reduce from up to three separate lines into a 
building to one line 

5,000 5,000 5,000 

013 Reduction in website and hosting licensing costs No impact - Avoids cuts to services 16,600 16,600 16,600 
 
014 Reduction in Public Relations management software and 

media monitoring contracts 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
3,600 

 
3,600 

 
3,600 

015 Additional income generated through the PortCreative 
agency model, which sells market research, marketing and 
communications, design and digital services externally 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 15,000 15,000 15,000 

 
016 Renegotiation of Multi Function Device (MFD) Contract 

(i.e. photocopier, scanner & printer) 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
54,000 

 
54,000 

 
54,000 

017 Phase out VPN two factor authentication (security tokens) 
and replace with Windows 10 built in solution 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 35,000 35,000 35,000 

018 Delete vacant Training and Contract Manager post No further impact - Avoids cuts to services 54,000 54,000 54,000 

Director of Culture, Leisure & Regulatory Services 
 

    

019 Transfer of Coroner service to Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) and associated change to the cost apportionment 
between HCC & PCC 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 150,000        150,000      150,000 

 
 

 

P
age 75



Appendix C INDICATIVE BUDGET SAVINGS 2020/21 

Saving 
2020/21 

£ 

Saving 
2021/22 

£ 

Saving 
2022/23 

£ 
Indicative Savings Proposal 

 

52 
 

Director of Finance 
 
020 Increased take up of salary sacrifice scheme for 

employee Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) to 
their pensions - Employers National Insurance saving 

No impact - Avoids cuts to services 5,000 5,000 5,000 

021     Revenue & Benefits activity currently undertaken at one 
area housing office is relocated to the Civic Offices resulting 
in a reduction in management overhead 

Limited impact, customers are using Area Offices less 
frequently as on-line facilities are available which are more 
convenient and the Civic Offices are in close proximity 

33,000 33,000 33,000 

 
022 Charge the HRA with an equitable apportionment of bank 

charges. Currently no charge is made to the HRA for 
banking arrangements 

 
No impact - Avoids cuts to services 

 
46,000 

 
46,000 

 
46,000 

023 Reduction in annual insurance premium costs No impact - Avoids cuts to services 50,000 50,000 50,000 
024 Reduce Council Tax discount relating to properties 

undergoing renovation to nil (From 40%) 
Beneficial to local residents as it will encourage building works 
to proceed efficiently 

115,000 115,000 115,000 

025 Commencement of the phased increase in the empty 
homes premium to the maximum permitted by Regulation 
(i.e. to charge 200% of the Council Tax due on properties 
that been empty for 5 years or more) - Decision previously 
approved in February 2019 

The premium in itself provides an incentive to property 
owners to bring properties back into usage 

65,000 65,000 65,000 

 

Director of Public Health 
 

026      Health Watch contract review No impact - Avoids cuts to services 4,000 4,000 4,000 
Resources Portfolio Total  651,200 651,200 651,200 
 
Traffic and Transportation Portfolio 

    

 
Director of Regeneration 

    

027     Increase Pay & Display Parking income by an average 
1.93% 

Discourages the use of cars as the preferred travelling 
method to enter Portsmouth, whilst not immediately 
affecting businesses 

95,000 95,000 95,000 

Traffic and Transportation Portfolio Total  95,000 95,000 95,000 
     

Grand Total  2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 
 

P
age 76



 
 

                                                                                       Agenda item: 
 
 

Decision maker: 
 

Cabinet 
City Council 

 
Subject: 
 

 
Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 
 

Date of decision: 
 

4th February 2020 (Cabinet) 
11th February 2020 (City Council) 

 
Report by: 
 

 
Director of Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer 

Wards affected: 
 

All  

Key decision: 
 

Yes 

Budget & policy framework 
decision: 
 

Yes 

 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 
 

1.1 In accordance with the Council's Capital Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
the Administration, through these proposals, have prioritised those schemes that meet 
the Council's statutory responsibilities and those that are most likely to drive cost 
reduction for the Council, innovation and clean economic growth and productivity for 
the City. 

 
1.2 The Administration's new scheme proposals contained within this report will lead to 

additional capital investment totalling £68.6m.   
 

1.3 The programme has been designed to support the environment and climate change 
agenda by investing £36.4m into green infrastructure which will deliver quality of life 
and environmental benefits to the city's residents and visitors. Included in this 
investment is: £22.2m for the construction of an anaerobic food waste digestion plant; 
a £10.2m investment to improve air quality through measures which will reduce carbon 
dioxide and nitrogen dioxide levels within the city; plans for the port to invest £2.9m to 
enable the installation of wind turbines, conversion from diesel to electric vehicles and 
a feasibility study and design of a "shore to ship" plug in facility to enable ships to 
switch off their generators whilst in port. These measures, once implemented, will 
significantly reduce port related emissions compared to current levels; further 
investment totalling £1.1m into electric vehicle charging infrastructure; expansion and 
extension of the food waste recycling pilot; the planting of new trees including street 
trees & other types of green infrastructure along with measures that will encourage 
walking and cycling as well as improve the neighbourhood and living environment are 
also planned. 

 
1.4 The programme also supports educational attainment by investing £4.8m into school 

buildings. Of which £2.8m is to address an urgent need for forty additional places by 
September 2021 for pupils with complex educational needs. In addition, a contribution 
of £2m has been made to a phase 2 scheme to address, potential, future demand in 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



excess of one hundred places across mainstream and special schools over the next 
three to five years. A further £3.4m is also being invested into council buildings to 
ensure that they remain fit for purpose including improvements to cultural and leisure 
facilities totalling £1.3m. 
  

1.5 Significant investment into the cultural, leisure and entertainment sectors amounting to 
£6.7m is planned. This includes an investment in the Kings Theatre and Guildhall 
totalling £6.4m which will ensure that the cultural and entertainment offer provided by 
these facilities meets the requirements of 21st Century audiences and also assures 
their financial sustainability into the long term. The programme also includes provision 
for a feasibility study/outline planning to replace Eastney swimming and phase 1 
funding for public realm improvements as the Southsea sea defences scheme 
proceeds. 

 
1.6 A full review of the current IT infrastructure has identified that significant new 

investment is necessary. Hardware currently deployed is old, increasingly costly to 
maintain and will require significant ongoing investment to refresh and keep current.  
In addition, the Council currently operates a single data centre and as a consequence, 
disaster recovery and overall resilience is limited whilst operating under this approach. 
It is proposed that the council moves to cloud based infrastructure by investing £6.6m 
over a three year period in order to achieve both the transformation of the IT function 
and to ensure that infrastructure is fit for purpose.  Failure to adopt a cloud based 
approach at this time will result in the Council being increasingly vulnerable to 
significant ongoing operational and financial risk due to increasing obsolescence of the 
current infrastructure.  A move to cloud will result in revenue savings over time as the 
Council's applications are moved off the data centre and into the cloud.  A significant 
benefit of cloud platforms are their security features which are updated on a regular 
basis. Currently, the council is dependent on applying a complex suite of security to 
software that must be maintained, aligned and updated by staff.  Implementing cloud 
based infrastructure also provides climate change benefits and a significant 
contribution to the Council's aspiration to become carbon neutral by 2030. The Azure 
cloud platform proposed is already carbon neutral. The energy costs attributed to the 
data centre currently amount to £66,000 per annum and represents 135 metric tonnes 
of carbon dioxide emissions per annum. 

  
1.7 A further investment of £3.2m to reduce homelessness within the City through the 

acquisition of new council housing (£1.7m) and transitional accommodation for the 
homeless (£1.5m) is planned. £1m has also been provided to meet the cost of 
adaptations to carers' homes, or provide support to move home, to allow more children 
to be looked after by their extended family, to be adopted or to be fostered by in house 
foster carers.  

  
1.8 As a key enabler of vibrant local communities, the underpinning and enabling of 

regeneration and the move towards a sustainable future, significant investment 
continues to be made into the core local transport infrastructure amounting to £1.6m 
to ensure transport networks are reliable and efficient; improve road and transport 
safety; manage the adverse impact of transport on the environment, and promote 
healthier travel. 

 
1.9 Finally, spending of £4.8m on major regeneration activities are proposed, including 

port dredging to ensure the continued viability of port operations and the provision of a 
city centre co-working space which will be rented to SME's and start-up businesses to 

Page 78



bring employment back into the city centre and support the regeneration of the 
Commercial Road area. 

 
1.10 The Council has the opportunity through its capital programme and borrowing powers 

to invest in both the regeneration of the City and cost reduction schemes for the Council 
itself.  Capital investment needs and aspirations however, continue to significantly 
exceed the resources available.  Importantly, there are likely to be opportunities 
throughout the year to lever in additional external capital funding for schemes that have 
strong potential to be catalytic for economic growth but only if, the Council itself can 
provide matched funding contributions.  As a consequence, to maximise the Capital 
Investment opportunities for the City, the "Budget & Council Tax 2020/21 & Medium 
Term Budget Forecast 2021/22 to 2023/24" report, elsewhere on this agenda, 
proposes that any further underspending, which arises at year end, will also be used 
to supplement the Capital Resources available for 2020/21 and future years. 
 
 

2. Purpose 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Summarise the key features of the Capital Strategy approved by the City Council 
on 19th March 2019 "for investment in assets and for obtaining the resources 
required for that investment" 

 
 Highlight the inter-relationship between the Capital Programme, the Revenue 

Budget, the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Treasury Management 
 
 Determine the corporate capital resources available including: 

 
o Adjustments for under and overspendings to the existing approved Capital 

Programme 
 
o Update the capital resources available for all new and changed grants, capital 

receipts, revenue contributions and other contributions 
 
o The identification of any additional assets which the Administration wishes to 

declare surplus to requirements 
 

 Seek approval of the overall Capital Programme and "new starts" (including the 
Housing Investment Capital Programme) for 2020/21 and future years in 
accordance with the Capital Strategy 

 
 Describe and approve the Prudential Indicators arising from the revised Capital 

Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 
 
 Delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer to alter the mix of capital funding to 

make best use of City Council resources  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



3. Recommendations 
 

3.1 That the following be approved in respect of the Council's Capital Programme: 
 

1) The Revised Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 attached as Appendix 1 
which includes all additions, deletions and amendments for slippage and re-
phasing described in Sections 6 and 8 be approved 

 
2) The Section 151 Officer be given delegated authority to determine how each 

source of finance is used to fund the overall Capital Programme and to alter the 
overall mix of financing, as necessary, to maximise the flexibility of capital 
resources used and minimise the ongoing costs of borrowing to the Council 

  
3) That the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council be 

given delegated authority to release capital resources held back for any 
contingent items that might arise, and also for any match funding requirements 
that may be required of the City Council in order to secure additional external 
capital funding (e.g. bids for funding from Government or the Solent Local 
Enterprise Partnership)  

 
4) Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance 

and Resources & Section 151 Officer, the following schemes as described in 
Section 9 and Appendix 2 be reflected within the recommended Capital 
Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25 and be financed from the available corporate 
capital resources: 

 
 

Recommended New Capital Schemes Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Community Safety   
 Redeployable CCTV Cameras 50,000 50,000 
Culture & City Development   
 CCTV - Portsmouth Museum & Cumberland House 50,000 50,000 
 City Museum 195,000 195,000 
 Farlington Pavilion 170,000 240,000 
 Portsmouth Watersports Centre 90,000 90,000 
 Southsea Castle 100,000 100,000 
 Kings Theatre Regeneration 350,000 4,650,000 
 Bransbury Park Pavilion 150,000 150,000 
 Kings Theatre Landlord's Backlog Maintenance 

Obligations 
300,000 300,000 

 Southsea Common & Town Centres Litter 
Management 

50,000 50,000 

 New Eastney Swimming Pool - Feasibility / Outline 
Plan 

100,000 100,000 

Education   
 School Places SEND - Phase 1 & Phase 2 2,000,000 4,768,000 
Environment & Climate Change   
 Greening the City 100,000 100,000 
 Anaerobic Digestion Plant 200,000 22,200,000 

Page 80



Recommended New Capital Schemes Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

 Food Waste Collection (Recycling) - expand by a 
further round 

221,000 221,000 

 Southsea Sea Defences - Public Realm 
Enhancements Phase 1 

200,000 200,000 

Health, Wellbeing & Social Care   
 Medina House Heating & Cooling System 110,000 110,000 
Housing   
 Landlord's Maintenance - Repairs across the whole  

City Council Estate 
2,140,000 2,140,000 

 Transitional Accommodation for Homeless - 
Adaptations to General Fund Property 

700,000 700,000 

Leader   
 Electrification of Light Goods Vehicles 80,000 100,000 
 Living Walls Phase 1 20,000 20,000 
 Wind turbines at the Port 800,000 2,700,000 
 The Camber Quay - Structural Investigations 50,000 50,000 
 Shore to Ship Electric "Plug In" Facility (Feasibility / 

Design) 
75,000 75,000 

Resources   
 LAN Access Switches 528,000 528,000 
 CISCO Data Centre Switches 60,000 60,000 
 Replacement Servers & Storage 945,000 945,000 
 Upgrade to Planet Press 650,000 650,000 
 Checkpoint Internal Firewall 142,000 142,000 
 Enterprise Voice (CISCO IPT) 630,000 630,000 
Traffic & Transportation   
 Local Transport Plan 3 835,000 835,000 
 Air Quality Improvement 220,000 10,220,000 
 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 76,000 306,000 
 Local Cycling and Walking Investment Plan 100,000 100,000 
 Continuous Improvements to Neighbourhood Living 

and Street Environment 
100,000 240,000 

 Cycle Parking Across the City 25,000 25,000 
 One-way Streets and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods 120,000 120,000 
 Full Business Case For Extension to Tipner Park & 

Ride Multi Storey Car Park 
500,000 500,000 

 Non-PFI Asset Management Register/Plan 100,000 100,000 
Total Recommended Sum To Be Approved 13,332,000 54,760,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



5) Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance 
and Resources & Section 151 Officer the following schemes as described in 
Section 10 be funded from Prudential Borrowing up to the amounts shown 

 
 Total 

Prudential 
Borrowing  

£ 
Anaerobic Digestion Plant 22,000,000 
Port - Floating Dock Jetty Dredge 2,000,000 
Wind turbines at Port 1,900,000 
City Centre Co-working space 450,000 
Kings Theatre Regeneration 3,000,000 
Guildhall Regeneration 1,700,000 
Acquisition of New Council Housing 1,700,000 
Transitional Accommodation for Homeless (Adaptations to 
HRA Property) 

800,000 

Total Recommended Sum To Be Approved 33,550,000 
  

6) Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance 
and Resources & Section 151 Officer the following schemes as described in 
Section 11 be funded from the MTRS Reserve 

 
Scheme Total MTRS 

Funding  
£ 

Port - Floating Dock Jetty Dredge 1,000,000 
City Centre Co-working space 450,000 
Adaptions to Carers' Homes 1,000,000 
Applications Upgrade linked to Software Modernisation 250,000 
Office 365 820,000 
Implementation of Northgate Citizen Access Suite 110,000 
Migration to Azure (Cloud Servers) 2,348,000 
Total Recommended Sum To Be Approved 5,978,000 

 
7) The following Schemes as described in Section 13 be included within the 

“Reserve List” of Capital Schemes to be considered once additional capital 
resources are identified 

 

Future Priority Capital Schemes – Not in Priority Order 
Additional School Places - Primary & Secondary 
Anti-Poverty Projects 
Digital Strategy (incl. modernisation of Information Technology systems) 
Landlord's Repairs and Maintenance 
Local Transport Plan - Road safety and traffic improvement schemes 
Local Football Facilities (Park Life) 
Sea Defences 
Berth 4 Replacement & Jetty Repairs at The Camber Quay 
Cathodic Protection at the Hard 
Design and Build of 2,000 Space Multi Storey Car Park at the Existing Park & 
Ride Site 

 

Page 82



8) The Prudential Indicators described in Section 14 and set out in Appendix 3 be 
approved. 

 
3.2 That the following be noted in respect of the Council's Capital Programme:  

 

1) The passported Capital Allocations (Ring-fenced Grants) as set out in Section 7 
 
2) That Cabinet Members, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer, have 

authority to vary Capital Schemes and their associated funding within their 
Portfolio in order to manage any potential overspending or funding shortfall or to 
respond to emerging priorities 

 
3) As outlined in Section 12 and Appendix 2 the release of £229,000 from the 

Culture & City Development Portfolio Reserve to fund the following schemes 
Canoe lake de-silting (£25,000); Parks & Open Spaces Boundary Protection 
Measures (£10,000); Burfields Road Barns - Demolition (£162,000), Hotwalls 
Paving Maintenance (£32,000) 

 
4) As outlined in Section 12 and Appendix 2 the release of £20,000 from the Leader 

(Port) Portfolio Reserve towards a £100,000 scheme for the Electrification of Light 
Goods Vehicles 

 
5) The City Council note that Prudential Borrowing can only be used as a source of 

capital finance for Invest to Save Schemes as described in Sections 8 and 14 
 
 
4. Background 
 
4.1 On the 19th March 2019 the City Council approved the Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 

2028/29.  The key features of that strategy, which have been considered in the 
development of the Administration’s Capital Programme proposals, are as follows: 

 Contribution to Council Plan / Priorities 
 Statutory Obligations 
 Financial Appraisal 
 Option Appraisal 
 Risk and  approach to risk - the expected benefits must outweigh the risk 
 Any overspendings on approved Capital Schemes being the first consideration 

for the use of any available capital resources 

New Capital Expenditure will be targeted towards income generation and economic 
growth whilst ensuring the Council's statutory obligations are also met, (e.g. school 
places).  The priority of new capital expenditure will be assessed in accordance with 
the following capital expenditure criteria:  

 
 

o Essential to maintain operational effectiveness - including statutory 
responsibilities 

 
o Essential to preserving and enhancing the natural environment and renewable 

resources 
 

Page 83



o Continued drive towards the regeneration of the City - by increasing prosperity 
through employment and reducing the extent to which the population needs 
Council services 

 
o Income Generation - reducing dependency on central government grants 
 
o Invest to Save - increasing  the efficiency and effectiveness of the Council's 

activity 
    
4.2 The Capital Programme fully embraces the revised financial framework for allocating 

capital resources to new capital schemes. The financial framework approved within 
the Capital Strategy has evolved from the previous framework based on passporting 
of funding, to one that is based on pooling resources designed to offer Members 
greater choice and transparency with the overall aim of delivering better outcomes 
from the resources available. It seeks to strike the correct balance of allocating capital 
resources between short and medium term needs and priorities and longer term 
aspirations, in order to support the delivery of the long term Capital Strategy. 
  

4.3 The Administration have focussed a significant proportion of their available Capital 
Resources towards supporting the environment and climate change agenda by 
investing into green infrastructure which will deliver quality of life and environmental 
benefits to the city's residents and visitors. 
 

4.4 The next large physical regeneration projects planned by the City Council over the 
next 5 - 10 years are the seafront development and improvements to transport 
infrastructure to enable city development and growth. The seafront development 
includes improvement of sea defences and key sites identified in the Seafront Master 
Plan. Consistent with this plan, the Council expects to be awarded £107m by The 
Environment Agency to complete improvements to the sea defences along Southsea 
Seafront leading to the protection of 8,000 properties from flooding. To unlock the 
economic potential of the City, the Council will also seek to embark on the first 
transport phase of a wider project to regenerate the City Centre by improving public 
transport links between Havant, Waterlooville, Fareham, Gosport and the Isle of 
Wight. 
 

4.5 Other regeneration schemes in the pipeline include housing and employment space 
developments at Tipner and Horsea under the City Deal Programme and the 
continued development of a Business Park at Dunsbury Hill Farm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



4.6 There remain significant future capital obligations and aspirations.  These include 
schemes such as the following where funding has yet to be identified to meet them 
in full but which will likely require funding in the short or medium term: 
 

Capital Scheme - Significant Obligation / Aspiration Unfunded 
Requirement 

£m 
Additional School Places - Primary & Secondary 0 - 5.0 
Anti-Poverty Projects 0.4 
Digital Strategy (incl. modernisation of Information Technology 
systems) 

1.5 - 2.0 

Landlord's Repairs and Maintenance 2.0 - 3.5 
Local Transport Plan - Road safety and traffic improvement 
schemes 

1.5 - 2.0 

Local Football Facilities (Park Life) 2.0 - 4.0 
Sea Defences 0 - 25.0 
Berth 4 Replacement & Jetty Repairs at The Camber Quay 4.8 - 5.5 
Cathodic Protection at the Hard 1.3 - 2.0 
Design and Build of 2,000 Space Multi Storey Car Park at the 
Existing Park & Ride Site 

31.0 - 33.0  

  
Total Funding Requirement 44.5 - 82.4 

 
4.7 The scale of the funding required for these obligations and aspirations is such that it 

far outstrips the annual capital grant funding, capital receipts and CIL contributions 
that the Council receives (circa £7m per annum) plus any Government funding which 
may be available for school places.  With potentially available capital funding of £7m 
versus core obligations and aspirations of between £44.5m to £82.4m of Capital 
Investment, there is a hugely significant shortfall ("Capital Gap") to be met. 

4.8 Given that some of this Capital investment is likely to have a transformational effect 
on both the City's growth and its role in addressing the challenge of climate change, 
there is a recommendation elsewhere on this agenda, to transfer any further 
underspending in 2019/20 arising at the year-end (outside of those made by 
Portfolios) to Capital Resources in order to provide funding for both the Council's 
statutory obligations and also to transform the City's growth potential. 

 
5. Considerations in Formulating the Revised & Future Capital Programme 
  
5.1 In considering the revised Capital Programme for 2019/20 and the future Capital 

Programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25, the following factors have been taken into 
account: 

 
 The Medium Term Financial Strategy with its bias towards innovative activities 

and driving regeneration 
 

 The Council’s Capital Strategy, which informs the capital investment needs, 
priorities and aspirations of the Council 

 
 Any over or underspending against approved capital schemes 
 

Page 85



 The priority and immediacy of new capital schemes and the revenue impacts 
of those capital schemes 

 
 The availability of capital resources and the potential risks associated with 

those capital resources being realised 
 
 The inter-relationship with the Revenue Budget, in particular the additional 

revenue costs/savings associated with the proposed new capital schemes 
 

 The effective exclusion of the use of Prudential Borrowing, except for Invest to 
Save Schemes, arising from the unaffordability of its associated borrowing 
costs 

 
5.2 To determine the capital resources available, all capital funding sources have been 

reviewed. This review covered all of the resources anticipated to be available over 
the medium term.  In assessing the level of anticipated capital resources available, a 
prudent and responsible approach has been taken and only those resources that 
have a high degree of certainty and that are likely to be available within a reasonable 
time frame have been included. 
 

5.3 In determining the capital resources available, an amount has been retained as a 
contingency: to mitigate the risk of capital receipts, Community Infrastructure Levy 
and Government Grants being lower than expected; to meet unavoidable increases 
in costs to approved schemes; as a source of finance to attract match funding from 
external capital grants that may become available, and as a funding source for small 
scale capital schemes that arise after the capital programme has been approved. 

 
 
6. Revised Capital Programme – 2019/20  to 2024/25  

 
6.1 Since the revised Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2023/24 was approved in February 

2019, other schemes that have not required corporate capital resources have been 
added to the recommended Capital Programme shown in Appendix 1. These 
schemes have been funded from sources such as Specific Grants, Contributions or 
other scheme specific capital resources. 

 
6.2 The Capital Programme approved in February 2019 (incorporating the Housing 

Investment Programme) has been further revised to reflect additions, changes, under 
and overspendings, slippage and revised phasing of capital schemes.  Further details 
of these changes are set out in Section 8.  The revised capital programme for 2019/20 
and beyond is attached at Appendix 1 and is recommended for approval.  
 

 
7. Passported Capital Allocations (Grants) 
 
7.1 Set out below is the current position on all new ring-fenced Grant Allocations for 

2019/20. The allocation is passported directly to the relevant Portfolio/Board so that 
they can be applied in accordance with the conditions for their use.   
 

 

Page 86



Grant Grant Description Allocation 
£ 

Children’s & Education Services:  
Devolved 
Formula  

Devolved Formula Capital Grant (DFCG) is a 
grant that allocates capital funding to schools. The 
grant is used to fund capital 
improvements/maintenance, remodelling and/or 
new build. (announcement of  2020/21 is awaited) 

159,800 

Health & Wellbeing Board:  
Disabled 
Facilities 
Grant  

To be allocated in accordance with the 
arrangements for the distribution of the Better 
Care Fund (announcement of 2020/21 is awaited) 

1,682,300 

Total  1,842,100 
 

 
8. Forecast of Corporate Capital Resources (Non Passported) 2019/20 & Beyond 

 
8.1 The forecast of corporate capital resources (i.e. non passported sources of finance) 

available to the City Council for new capital schemes comprise the following and are 
described in more detail in the paragraphs below: 

 
 Contributions to the “Corporate Pool” of all non ring-fenced capital grants  from 

Government, commonly referred to as the “Single Capital Pot” allocations 
 
 The anticipated balance on the Revenue Reserve for Capital 
 
 Changes to the existing Capital Programme - additions or deductions for any 

changes in the costs or funding requirements associated with the existing capital 
programme 

 
 Any allowances for Prudential Borrowing 
 
 The forecast value of additional capital receipts taking into account: 

 
 New assets declared surplus to requirements 

 
 Any increase or decrease in the estimated value of existing assets to 

be disposed of 
 

 Any requirements to provide for affordable housing, parking or any 
other conditions which could have a significant impact on the disposal 
value and other costs associated with disposal 

 
 Other Corporate Capital Grants & Contributions e.g. Community Infrastructure 

Levy 
 

 Any Revenue Contributions to Capital 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



Contributions to the Corporate Pool including the “Single Capital Pot” allocations 
 

8.2 The Council receives allocations of capital funding each year under the guise of the 
“Single Capital Pot”.  The “Single Capital Pot” is not a grant or capital allocation in 
itself but is a term used to define all non ring-fenced Government Grants.  

 
8.3 The Single Capital Pot is intended to be a non ring-fenced source of finance and 

available for directing towards the priorities of the Authority.  In practice however, the 
Single Capital Pot allocations are notified to individual Authorities in terms of the 
amounts that each Government Department has contributed. Furthermore, those 
Government Departments have an expectation that the amounts that they have 
allocated to each Authority will be directed towards their services.  If these sums are 
not spent in the areas to which they are allocated, it is possible that future allocations 
could be jeopardised. This practice is contradictory to the principles of both the Single 
Capital Pot and the Council’s Capital Strategy that is now in place. 
 

8.4 In addition, there are other non ring-fenced sources of capital funding that are 
Corporately Pooled such as: 

 
 Capital Receipts from the Sale of Council Houses 
 Capital Receipts from the Sale of other HRA Assets 

 
8.5 The allocations which were previously passported directly to Portfolios and which now 

contribute towards the “Corporate Pool” as part of the overall sum of Capital 
Resources available are as follows: 

 

Contributions to Corporately Pooled 
Resources 

Full Year 
Grant 

Allocation 
£'000's 

Grant 
Allocated 

in 
Previous 

Years 
£'000's 

Available 
Resources 

To Be 
Pooled 
£'000's 

Education    
LA Basic Need    

2019/20 2,283 (2,283) 0 
2020/21 12,925 (12,925) 0 

Capital Maintenance    
2019/20 736 (736) 0 
2020/21 736 (736) 0 

Housing    
Housing Capital Receipts   2,168 

Traffic & Transportation    
Local Transport Plan (Integrated 

Transport) 
   

2019/20 1,851 (1,851) 0 
2020/21 1,851 0 1,851 

CIL   3,177 
    
Total Contribution to Corporate Pool   7,196 

 
 
 

Page 88



8.6 It should be noted that: 
 
 the maintenance element of the Local Transport Plan (LTP) has not been pooled 

and is earmarked to fund part of the Unitary Charge paid to Ensign under the 
Highways PFI contract. This amounts to £1.151m in 2020/21.  The Council has 
not yet been notified whether an allocation from the Pothhole Action Fund will 
be received in 2020/21, however any award will also be earmarked to fund the 
Unitary Charge paid to Ensign. 
  

 that the Administration, in a previous, year has relied on all of the LA Basic Need 
Grant for the year 2020/21 to fund scheme proposals for additional school 
places required over the medium term. 
 

Revenue Reserve for Capital & Revenue Contributions to Capital 
 

8.7 The Revenue Reserve for Capital has been built up over a number of years from 
Revenue Contributions to finance capital schemes and as at 31st March 2019 stood 
at £36.2m. Sums are transferred into this reserve in advance and then drawn from 
the reserve once the capital expenditure is incurred.    

 
8.8 The balance on the Revenue Reserve for Capital and Revenue Contributions from/to 

this reserve have been taken into account in arriving at the overall level of capital 
resources available. 

 
Changes to the Existing Capital Programme 

 
8.9 In arriving at the overall level of capital resources available, the current approved 

Capital Programme has been reviewed and amended, in accordance with the 
approved Capital Strategy, for under and overspending plus any adjustments for 
additions to, or shortfalls in estimated funding.  These adjustments are reflected in 
the proposed Capital Programme at Appendix 1. The more significant amendments 
to the existing Capital Programme are set out below: 

 
Underspendings: 
 

 Southsea Seafront Investment D-Day 75 
 Reconfiguration of Corben Lodge 
 Eastern Road Waterbridge 
 

Overspendings / Funding Shortfalls: 
 

 Children's Case Management Software Replacement 
 Additional Special School Places - The Lantern 
 Oakdene SJH Purchase & Remodelling 
 Development of Cruise & Ferry Port 
 Local Full Fibre Network Project 
 Angelsea Road Footbridge 
 Central Corridor 

 
 
 
 

Page 89



In Year Additions: 
 

 Capital Grants for Disabled Looked After Children 
 EC Roberts Centre Refurbishment Loan 
 Lakeside North Harbour  
 Portico Crane (Leased Plant & Equipment) 
 Anodes 
 Transforming Cities Fund 
 Dunsbury Hill Farm Plot 5a 
 Safer Roads Scheme 

 
8.10 The funding required to finance the overall recommended Capital Programme 

attached at Appendix 1 plus the changes described in this Section and Sections 6 
and 7 have been fully taken into account in arriving at the capital resources available. 

 
Prudential Borrowing 

 
8.11 Prudential Borrowing is what was formerly known as “unsupported borrowing” and 

means that the Government does not provide any revenue support through 
Government Grant for the repayment of that debt (neither principal nor interest). The 
City Council therefore, must fund all of the repayments associated with this type of 
borrowing. There are strict rules governing the use of Prudential Borrowing around 
the concepts of Affordability, Sustainability and Prudence. Thus far, the City Council 
has only been able to utilise Prudential Borrowing for Invest to Save Schemes where 
there is a demonstrable case that the capital expenditure incurred will result in 
savings that at least cover either the cost of borrowing or, alternatively, where other 
savings can be made to cover those borrowing costs. 
 
Capital Receipts 

 
8.12 In forecasting the level of Capital Resources available to the City Council over the 

medium term, the following core assumptions have been made: 
 

 Capital receipts have only been assumed for the disposal of assets that 
have been approved by Members 

 
 Capital receipts are only assumed where they are expected to be realised 

within a reasonable timeframe since there are inherent risks associated with 
changing circumstances over longer time periods  

 
 Some of the more significant capital receipts being relied upon to fund the 

current capital programme include: 
 

 Revisions to reflect the current financial conditions in the property market 
 
Corporate (Non ring-fenced Capital Grants) 
 

8.13 The Capital Programme also relies upon other non ring fenced Capital Grants 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



Summary of Total Available Capital Resources 
 

8.14 Taking all of the above factors into account, as well as making some contingency 
provision for contractual disputes, likely match funding contributions for funding bids 
and other potential costs, the Capital Resources available at this time are as follows: 
 
 

CORPORATE CAPITAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE £'000s 
 

Corporate Capital Resources (including "Pooled Resources") 13,212 
  
Add:  
Funds Released from Uncommitted Schemes 120 
  
Total Corporate Capital Resources Available 13,332 

 
 

9. Priority Capital Schemes – 2020/21 & Beyond (Corporate Resources) 
 
9.1 The programme has been specifically designed to support the environment and 

climate change agenda which will deliver quality of life and environmental benefits to 
the city's residents and visitors. These measures include expansion and extension of 
the food waste recycling scheme to up to 9,000 additional properties; the installation 
of up to 9 wind turbines at the Port; a programme of measures to improve air quality 
which will reduce carbon dioxide and nitrogen dioxide levels across the City; the 
electrification of Port light goods vehicles and expansion of the electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure; the planting of new trees including street trees and other 
types of green infrastructure and measures which will encourage walking and cycling 
and improve the neighbourhood and living environment. The value of these 
environmental proposals total £36.4m of which £2.1m will be funded from corporate 
resources. 
  

9.2 The programme also supports educational attainment by investing £4.8m into school 
buildings. Of which £2.8m is to address an urgent need for forty additional places by 
September 2021 for pupils with complex educational needs. In addition a contribution 
of £2m has been made to a phase 2 scheme to address, potential, future demand in 
excess of one hundred places across mainstream and special schools over the next 
three to five years. 
 

9.3 The Administration also plan to support some of the most vulnerable people within 
the community by investing corporate resources into transitional accommodation for 
homeless families and the acquisition of 5 redeployable CCTV cameras to 
compliment the fixed cameras already deployed across the City to help prevent and 
tackle crime and disorder. 
 

9.4 A full review of the current IT infrastructure has identified that significant new 
investment is necessary. Hardware currently deployed is old, increasingly costly to 
maintain and will require significant ongoing investment to refresh and keep current. 
In addition the council currently operates a single data centre and as a consequence, 
disaster recovery and resilience is limited whilst operating under this approach. It is 
proposed that the council moves to cloud based infrastructure by investing £6.6m 
over a three year period of which £3.0m will be funded from corporate resources in 

Page 91



order to achieve both the transformation of the IT function and to ensure that 
infrastructure is fit for purpose.  Failure to adopt a cloud based approach at this time 
will result in the council being increasingly vulnerable to significant ongoing 
operational and financial risk due to increasing obsolescence of the current 
infrastructure. A move to cloud will result in revenue savings over time as the council's 
applications are moved off the data centre and into the cloud.  A significant benefit of 
cloud platforms are their security features which are updated on a regular basis. 
Currently, the council is dependent on applying a complex suite of security to software 
that must be maintained, aligned and updated by staff.  Implementing cloud based 
infrastructure also provides climate change benefits and a significant contribution to 
the council's aspiration to become carbon neutral by 2030. The Azure cloud platform 
proposed is already carbon neutral. The energy costs attributed to the data centre 
currently amount to £66,000 per annum and represents 135 metric tonnes of carbon 
dioxide emissions per annum. 

 
9.5 Significant investment into other core services such as transportation and leisure 

services are planned, including: continued investment in transport networks to ensure 
they are reliable and efficient; improve road and transport safety; manage the adverse 
impact of transport on the environment and promote healthier travel. Funding for 
feasibility and design work is included for a new Eastney swimming pool along with 
funding provision for phase 1 public realm improvements to compliment the sea 
defence works planned in Southsea, investment in leisure facilities including football 
facilities and associated changing facilities, repair works to Southsea Castle along 
with significant backlog maintenance works at the Kings Theatre are also planned. 
 

9.6 As described in Section 8, the Administration have “stretched” the Capital Resources 
available by relying on future years’ capital grant allocations. The consequence, 
therefore, of delivering these high impact schemes is to reduce the resources that 
would otherwise be available in future years. The Administration considers that this 
is the best way of utilising capital resources in accordance with the Capital Strategy. 
 

9.7 At this time, the Administration is recommending the allocation of £13.3m to the 
following new capital schemes, which it deems to be of particular importance to the 
delivery of its Capital Strategy:  

 
 

Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Redeployable CCTV 
Cameras 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

50,000 50,000 

CCTV - Portsmouth 
Museum & Cumberland 
House 

encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

50,000 50,000 

City Museum Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 

195,000 195,000 

Farlington Pavilion Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 

170,000 240,000 

Page 92



Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Portsmouth Watersports 
Centre 

encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

90,000 90,000 

Southsea Castle encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

100,000 100,000 

Kings Theatre Regeneration Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 

350,000 4,650,000 

Bransbury Park Pavilion encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

150,000 150,000 

Kings Theatre Landlord's 
Backlog Maintenance 
Obligations 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

300,000 300,000 

Southsea Common & Town 
Centres Litter Management 

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 

50,000 50,000 

New Eastney Swimming 
Pool - Feasibility / Outline 
Plan 

Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

100,000 100,000 

School Places SEND - 
Phase 1 & Phase 2 

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 
 

2,000,000 4,768,000 

Greening the City Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

100,000 100,000 

Anaerobic Digestion Plant Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

200,000 22,200,000 

Food Waste Collection 
(Recycling) - expand by a 
further round 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

221,000 221,000 

Southsea Sea Defences - 
Public Realm 
Enhancements Phase 1 

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 

200,000 200,000 

Page 93



Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Medina House Heating & 
Cooling System 

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 
 

110,000 110,000 

Landlord's Maintenance - 
Repairs across the whole 
City Council Estate 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 
 
 

2,140,000 2,140,000 

Transitional 
Accommodation for 
Homeless - Adaptations to 
General Fund Property 

Make Portsmouth a city that works 
together, enabling communities to 
thrive and people to live healthy, safe 
and independent lives 

700,000 700,000 

Electrification of Light 
Goods Vehicles 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

80,000 100,000 

Living Walls Phase 1 Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

20,000 20,000 

Wind Turbines at the Port Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

800,000 2,700,000 

The Camber Quay - 
Structural Investigations 

Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

50,000 50,000 

Shore to Ship Electric "Plug 
In" Facility (Feasibility / 
Design) 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

75,000 75,000 

LAN Access Switches Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

528,000 528,000 

CISCO Data Centre 
Switches 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

60,000 60,000 

Page 94



Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Replacement Servers & 
Storage 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

945,000 945,000 

Upgrade to Planet Press Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

650,000 650,000 

Checkpoint Internal Firewall Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

142,000 142,000 

Enterprise Voice (CISCO 
IPT) 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener; 
Make sure our council is a caring, 
competent and collaborative 
organisation that puts people at the 
heart of everything we do 
 

630,000 630,000 

Local Transport Plan 3 Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

835,000 835,000 

Air Quality Improvement Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

220,000 10,220,000 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

76,000 306,000 

Local Cycling and Walking 
Investment Plan 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

100,000 100,000 

Continuous Improvements 
to Neighbourhood Living 
and Street Environment 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener  

100,000 240,000 

Cycle Parking Across the 
City 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

25,000 25,000 

One-way Streets and Low 
Traffic Neighbourhoods 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 

120,000 120,000 

Page 95



Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Corporate 
Resources 
Required £ 

Total 
Scheme 
Value £ 

Full Business Case For 
Extension to Tipner Park & 
Ride Multi Storey Car Park 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener;  
encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 
 

500,000 500,000 

Non-PFI Asset 
Management Register/Plan 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener;  
encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 

100,000 100,000 

  13,332,000 54,760,000 
 

9.8 The proposed Capital Schemes recommended for approval are described in more 
detail in Appendix 2 and set out: 

 
 Description of the Scheme and its key aims 
 The total cost of the scheme including funding from other sources 
 The net cost of the scheme to be funded from Corporate Capital Resources 
 Any additional on-going revenue costs/savings associated with the scheme 

 
 
10. New Capital Schemes To Be Funded From Prudential Borrowing 
  
10.1 The following schemes meet the Prudential Borrowing Criteria outlined at paragraph 

8.11 and it is recommended that prudential borrowing up to the limit shown for each 
scheme is approved. 
 

Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Prudential 
Borrowing 
Required £ 

Anaerobic Digestion Plant Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

22,000,000 

Port - Floating Dock Jetty 
Dredge 

Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

2,000,000 

Wind Turbines at the Port Make our city cleaner, safer and 
greener 
 

1,900,000 

City Centre Co-working 
space 

Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 
 

450,000 

Page 96



Capital Scheme Capital Strategy - Portsmouth's 
Vision & Corporate Plan Delivering 
Our five priorities 

Prudential 
Borrowing 
Required £ 

Kings Theatre Regeneration Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 
 

3,000,000 

Guildhall Regeneration Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 
 

1,700,000 

Acquisition of New Council 
Housing 

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, 
learn and play, so our children and 
young people are safe, healthy and 
positive about their futures 
 

1,700,000 

Transitional 
Accommodation for 
Homeless (Adaptations to 
HRA Property) 

Encourage regeneration built around 
our city's thriving culture, making 
Portsmouth a great place to live, work 
and visit 
 

800,000 

  33,550,000 
 

10.2 There is an expected prudential borrowing investment requirement for an Anaerobic 
Digestion Plant to enable additional recycling facilities for food waste. Approval of 
Prudential Borrowing totalling £22m is dependent upon the satisfactory conclusion of 
a feasibility study, site selection and a full business case approved by the Director of 
Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer.  
 

10.3 Prudential borrowing totalling £4.7m is also recommended to enable the regeneration 
of the Kings Theatre and Guildhall to enable these venues to meet the requirements 
of 21st Century audiences and also assure their financial sustainability into the long 
term. This borrowing is subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the 
Director of Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer and the conclusion of legal 
terms with the respective operators of these venues acceptable to the City Solicitor.   
 
  

11. New Capital Schemes To Be Funded From The MTRS Reserve 
 

11.1 Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance & 
Resources & Section 151 Officer it is proposed that seven schemes receive funding 
via the MTRS Reserve as follows: 
 

o An investment of £3m is planned to enable dredging next to the former floating 
dock jetty which will ensure sufficient depth is available for large ships calling 
at the Port and Portico to navigate the channel. As a consequence it is 
proposed that £1m of this investment is met from the MTRS Reserve as it will 
secure long term income streams at both the Port and Portico. 
 

Page 97



o Creation of city centre co-working office space on the first floor of the site 
formerly occupied by Marks & Spencer in Commercial Road is estimated to 
cost £1.8m. It is proposed that £450,000 is met from the MTRS Reserve. 

 
o An investment of £1m is proposed to provide either adaptations for carers' 

homes or support to move home, to allow children to be looked after by either 
their extended family, to be adopted or to be fostered by in house foster carer.  
This will deliver estimated savings of £800,000 per annum relating to Looked 
After Children. 

 
o Following database and hardware upgrades it is necessary to also update the 

applications that operate on these databases and hardware platforms. It is 
proposed this cost totalling £250,000 is met from the MTRS Reserve as the 
investment avoids additional costs that would otherwise arise. 
 

o Replacement of the Council's 'MS Office' Software with 'Office 365' is 
estimated to cost £820,000, it is proposed that this cost is met from the MTRS 
Reserve as the investment avoids additional costs that would arise if the 
council continued to operate 'MS Office' 
 

o Implementation of Northgate Citizen Access Software Suite is estimated to 
cost £180,000. It is proposed that £110,000 is met from the MTRS Reserve as 
it is expected to result in future savings of £30,000 per annum. 
 

o Migration to Azure (Cloud Servers) is estimated to cost £2,348,000.  Migration 
to Cloud Servers avoids significant additional costs compared to maintaining 
the server estate on-premis in the medium term. It is therefore proposed that 
this investment cost is met from the MTRS Reserve. 

 
 
12. New Capital Schemes to be Funded From Portfolio Reserve 

  
12.1 City Council note an investment of £229,000 from the Culture & City Development 

Portfolio Reserve to undertake Parks & Open Space Boundary Protection Measures 
(£10,000); to demolish barns at Burrfields Road (£162,000); de-silting of Canoe Lake 
(£25,000) and Paving Maintenance at the Hotwalls (£32,000), as set out in more 
detail in Appendix 2.  
 

12.2 City Council note a contribution of £20,000 from the Leader (Port) Portfolio Reserve 
towards an investment of £100,000 for the replacement of diesel light goods vehicles 
with electrically powered light goods vehicles at the port, as set out in more detail in 
Appendix 2. 
 
 

13. Future Priority Capital Schemes 
 

13.1 In addition to the Capital Investment proposals described above, the Administration 
is keen to plan a path ahead in accordance with the Capital Strategy and set out their 
future proposals for Capital Investment once further Capital Resources become 
available. The Administration’s proposals are set out below: 
 

Page 98



Future Priority Capital Schemes – Not in Priority Order 
Additional School Places - Primary & Secondary 
Anti-Poverty Projects 
Digital Strategy (incl. modernisation of Information Technology systems) 
Landlord's Repairs and Maintenance 
Local Transport Plan - Road safety and traffic improvement schemes 
Local Football Facilities (Park Life) 
Sea Defences 
Berth 4 Replacement & Jetty Repairs at The Camber Quay 
Cathodic Protection at the Hard 
Design and Build of 2,000 Space Multi Storey Car Park at the Existing Park & Ride 
Site 

 
 

14. Prudential Borrowing and Prudential Indicators 
 
14.1 Prudential Borrowing is a potential source of capital finance under the Local 

Government Act 2003.  This requires that Local Authorities comply with the Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance.  The key objective of the Prudential Code is to ensure that 
the capital investment plans of local authorities are Affordable, Prudent and 
Sustainable. The Prudential Code sets out a clear governance procedure for those 
matters that the Authority must have regard to as follows: 

 
 Affordability e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents 
 Prudence and Sustainability e.g. implications of external borrowing 
 Value for money e.g. options appraisal 
 Stewardship of assets e.g. asset management planning 
 Service objectives e.g. strategic planning for the authority 
 Practicality e.g. achievability of the forward plan   

 
14.2 Prudential Borrowing requires that the capital investment of the Authority remains 

within sustainable limits and that the revenue consequences, including both debt 
financing and other revenue costs, are affordable over the long term. In considering 
the affordability of its Capital plans, the Authority must consider all of the resources 
currently available to it and estimated for the future, together with the totality of its 
capital plans, revenue income and revenue expenditure forecasts for the forthcoming 
year and the following two years as a minimum. The Authority is also required to 
consider known significant variations beyond this timeframe and pay due regard to 
risk and uncertainty. 

 
14.3 Current forecast revenue deficits amount to £2.6m in 2020/21, £2.2m in 2021/22, 

£3.8m in 2022/23 and £3.0m in 2023/24.  This means that until such time as the 
Council is able to balance its budget over the medium term, it is unable to 
demonstrate that it can afford any additional borrowing costs over that period and 
therefore cannot demonstrate compliance with the affordability test of the Prudential 
Code. Prudential Borrowing is available however, for Invest to Save Schemes. 

 
14.4 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to impose regulations on Local Authorities 

if it feels that an Authority is either not compliant with the code or if it is in the national 
economic interest.  These reserve powers include: 

 

Page 99



 National Borrowing Limits – if there are national economic reasons 
 
 Borrowing Limits for an individual Authority 

 
 Limits set either nationally or locally for different kinds of borrowing 

 
 Any headroom that a Local Authority has under National Borrowing Limits 

that may be transferred between Authorities 
 
14.5 The Prudential Indicators of the Council are determined largely from its Capital 

Investment decisions. The 4 indicators are presented in Appendix 3 for approval. In 
summary, the Council’s indicators illustrate that its current Capital Programme is 
affordable. Further details setting out what each indictor shown in Appendix 3 
represents is set out below  
  
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
This indicator shows the proportion of the net revenue stream (i.e. the Councils 
Revenue Budget) that is attributable to the cost of financing capital expenditure. 
 
 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
Represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow to fund current and future capital 
expenditure. The CFR arises directly from the capital activities of the Council and the 
resources applied to fund that capital activity. The CFR represents the unfinanced 
element of capital expenditure and is the difference between the value of total fixed 
assets on the balance sheet and the Revaluation Reserve and Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance its current and future capital 
expenditure (i.e. its Capital Financing Requirement) is increasing, primarily as a result 
of planned commercial property investments but will ultimately reduce as provision is 
made to repay debt. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Limit on Indebtedness 
 
Represents the limit on the level of borrowing that the Council can take on in respect 
of the HRA. 
 
Authorised Limit for External Debt & Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
The Council’s Limit for External Debt, recommended for 2020/21, should be broadly 
equivalent to its underlying need to borrow (described above) but should allow for a 
little headroom in excess of it. This has been set accordingly.  Furthermore, the 
Operational Boundary for external debt serves as an early warning tool to highlight 
whether the External Limit is nearing a breach.  This therefore, is set at the level to 
which external debt is more likely to be. 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



15. Conclusion 
 
15.1 The Capital Programme and new capital schemes recommended as part of this report 

attempt to strike the right balance between meeting the short and medium term needs 
and priorities of the Council and the longer term aspirational vision for the City.  It is 
complimentary and intertwined with the Council's Revenue Budget proposals to 
deliver a substantial package of Capital Investment that supports the delivery of the 
Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, its Capital Strategy and other key service 
strategies.   

 
15.2 As a whole, the Capital Programme is designed to make a meaningful contribution 

towards the improving the environment and climate change, drive clean economic 
growth, support schools in their pursuit of improved educational attainment, protect 
the vulnerable, enhance the cultural experience of the city and generate savings and 
income for the Council in order to protect essential services from future cuts.  
 

15.3 This programme also sets out the future Capital Investment agenda for the Council. 
It looks beyond the coming year and uses a financial framework for allocating capital 
resources based on the concept of pooling non-ring fenced resources so that there 
is greater transparency and choice for new capital investment with greater opportunity 
for enhanced outcomes for residents. 

 
 
16. Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
16.1 This Capital Programme earmarks sums for future capital schemes.  Prior to the 

commencement of any capital scheme, a report and financial appraisal on that 
scheme will be approved either by the Portfolio Holder, the Cabinet or the City Council 
and at that time an Integrated Impact Assessment will be undertaken. 

 
 
17. City Solicitor's Comments 
 

17.1 The City Solicitor has confirmed that it is within the City Council's powers to approve 
the recommendations set out above. 
 
 
 

18. S.151 Officer's Comments 
 

18.1 All of the financial information is reflected in the body of the report and the 
Appendices.  
 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Chris Ward 

Director of Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer 

Page 101



 
 
 
Background List of documents –  
 
Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report – 
 
Title of document  
 

Location 

Capital 2020/21 Office of Deputy Director 
of Finance 

Capital Strategy 2019/20 – 2028/29 Council’s Web Site 
  

 
The recommendations set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by the City Council on 11th February 2020 

 
 

Signed: --------------------------------------------- 

Page 102



 

 APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 

& 
FINANCING 

 
2019/20 - 2024/25 

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL APPENDIX 1

Summary of Capital Programme (All Services) Expenditure Revised Expenditure Final
to Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Subsequent Cost

31 March 19 2019/20 2020/21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Children & Families 1,366,107 2,199,331 992,535 547,750 0 0 0 0 5,105,723
Community Safety 437,145 231,433 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 718,578
Culture & City Development 18,647,776 5,607,312 7,456,515 2,239,000 3,850,000 0 0 172,240 37,972,843
Education 52,114,412 19,298,258 11,153,772 4,640,560 2,122,520 0 0 0 89,329,522
Environment & Climate Change 25,499,830 9,894,618 30,667,056 62,216,021 25,013,938 25,435,500 26,472,830 5,282,000 210,481,793
Health, Wellbeing & Social Care 4,820,898 2,708,414 6,390,000 2,855,800 3,210,000 0 0 0 19,985,112
Leader 316,850,153 192,779,863 98,596,589 25,081,950 20,206,372 0 0 0 653,514,927
  Commercial Port 18,796,509 6,410,772 13,082,000 8,205,895 2,930,000 0 0 0 49,425,176
Resources 18,194,253 8,097,040 19,138,150 5,107,000 853,000 550,000 475,000 2,268,264 54,682,707
Traffic & Transport 61,688,292 15,853,316 16,861,350 7,284,682 4,008,173 5,935,404 5,935,404 14,040,646 131,607,267

Total Capital Programme (Excluding Housing Investment Programme) 518,415,375 263,080,357 204,387,967 118,178,658 62,194,003 31,920,904 32,883,234 21,763,150 1,252,823,648

Housing Investment Programme 239,658,512 35,652,144 72,549,871 59,512,062 53,620,856 56,159,687 51,015,416 31,268,275 599,436,823

Total Capital Programme 758,073,887 298,732,501 276,937,838 177,690,720 115,814,859 88,080,591 83,898,650 53,031,425 1,852,260,471

758,073,887 280,538,248 268,840,798 158,552,570 110,707,859 87,227,591 83,348,650 52,556,425 1,849,992,207
Analysis of Programme by Source of Finance

Unsupported Borrowing 187,164,051 71,200,186 56,257,914 32,240,201 21,023,180 16,955,063 2,268,264 387,108,858
Corporate Reserves (Including Capital Receipts) 17,169,992 27,599,003 8,129,265 6,340,999 3,919,937 3,869,937 888,089 67,917,223
Revenue & Reserves 26,806,398 44,347,441 47,586,700 44,009,855 35,601,974 34,500,820 42,640,741 275,493,929
Grants 61,449,696 111,529,366 49,126,089 26,716,501 21,410,774 22,472,830 1,125,321 293,830,577
Contributions 6,142,364 22,261,842 16,590,752 6,507,303 6,124,726 6,100,000 6,109,010 69,835,997

Total Financing 298,732,501 276,937,838 177,690,720 115,814,859 88,080,591 83,898,650 53,031,425 1,094,186,584

P
age 105



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL APPENDIX 1

RESOURCES AVAILABLE Revised Expenditure Final
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Subsequent Cost
2019/20 2020/21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Specific Resources

Prudential Borrowing LINKED 187,164,051 71,200,186 56,257,914 32,240,201 21,023,180 16,955,063 2,268,264 387,108,858

Other Capital Receipts LINKED 4,838,426 8,920,552 4,078,930 3,969,937 3,919,937 3,869,937 350,000 29,947,720

Other Capital Reserves LINKED 22,620,093 42,971,671 47,586,700 44,009,855 35,601,974 34,500,820 42,640,741 269,931,854

Other Contributions LINKED 4,681,005 4,464,945 5,710,545 5,100,000 6,100,000 6,100,000 6,109,010 38,265,505

Government Grants LINKED 1,334,575 35,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,369,575

Other Grants LINKED 41,924,303 95,269,195 43,122,916 17,574,368 21,410,774 22,472,830 1,000,000 242,774,386
Sub Total - Specific Resources 262,562,453 222,861,549 156,757,005 102,894,361 88,055,865 83,898,650 52,368,015 969,397,898

Specific Resources Used LINKED 262,562,453 222,861,549 156,757,005 102,894,361 88,055,865 83,898,650 52,368,015 969,397,898

Specific Resources Available 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Resources
Corporate Capital Receipts 4,100,792 1,026,099 850,000 5,976,891
Corporate Capital Reserves 36,230,536 (689,760) 2,014,000 37,554,776
Corporate S106 Contributions & CIL 18,581,513 6,939,455 1,875,000 1,875,000 0 29,270,968
Capital Settlement - Non Ring Fenced Grants 32,765,417 16,921,134 0 0 49,686,551

Corporate Grants WORKSHEET 2,299,500 0 0 0 2,299,500
Sub Total - Corporate Resources 93,977,758 24,196,928 4,739,000 1,875,000 0 0 0 124,788,686

Corporate Resources Used linked 36,170,048 54,076,289 20,933,715 12,920,498 24,726 0 663,410 124,788,686

Corporate Resources Available 57,807,710 27,928,349 11,733,634 688,136 663,410 663,410 (0) (0)

Total Resources Available 356,540,211 247,058,477 161,496,005 104,769,361 88,055,865 83,898,650 52,368,015 1,094,186,584

Total Resources Used 298,732,501 276,937,838 177,690,720 115,814,859 88,080,591 83,898,650 53,031,425 1,094,186,584

Total Remaining Resources Available 57,807,710 27,928,349 11,733,634 688,136 663,410 663,410 (0)

P
age 106



CHILDREN & FAMILIES PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CROC 94,516             55,484           150,000           
CorpRsv -                  35,000           35,000             

Sub Total 94,516             55,484           35,000           -                -                -                -                -                185,000           

2 CorpRsv 708,868           1,418,747       2,127,615         
CP(DCSF)BN -                  36,528           42,857           79,385             
RCCO -                  317,143         52,857           370,000           
RCCO -                  111,429         18,571           130,000           

Sub Total 708,868          1,883,847       114,285          -                -                -                -                -                2,707,000        

3 CorpRsv 498,385            498,385           
RCCO 7,600               7,600               
CP(DCSF)BN -                  -                  

Sub Total 505,985          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                505,985           

4 CorpRsv 56,738             56,738             

5 MTRS -                  143,250         47,750           191,000           

6 CorpRsv -                  110,000         110,000           
RCCO -                  100,000         100,000           

Sub Total -                  210,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                210,000           

7 RCCO -                  50,000           200,000         250,000           

8 Adaptation to Carers Homes MTRS 500,000         500,000         1,000,000         

Grand Total 1,366,107 2,199,331 992,535 547,750 0 0 0 -              5,105,723

Adaptations to Foster Carer Properties

Children's Case Management Software Replacement

Tangier Road Children's Home

Beechside Children's Home

Enable and Improve Mobile Working

Capital Grant for Disabled Looked after Child

E C Roberts Centre refurbishment Loan

P
age 107



COMMUNITY SAFETY PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 GGNR(HO)SSC 69,500             69,500             
RCCO -                  222,500         222,500           
PR 140,167           6,933             147,100           
CorpRsv 81,515             10,000           91,515             

S106(OS) -                  40,000           40,000             

Sub Total 291,182           229,433         50,000           -                -                -                -                -                570,615           

2 CCTV Systems and Control Room Infrastructure CorpRsv 130,963           2,000             132,963           

OG(PHE)CS 15,000             15,000             

Sub Total 145,963           2,000             -                -                -                -                -                -                147,963           

Grand Total 437,145 231,433 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 718,578

CCTV Upgrades

P
age 108



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CorpRsv 74,200             74,200             
S106(OS) 276,614           15,752           292,366           

Sub Total 350,814           15,752           -                -                -                -                -                -                366,566           

2 Coastal Communities Bid (ARTches) CorpRsv 80,789             10,051           54,683           145,523           
CP(DFT)IT 100,000           100,000           
OG 1,567,185        1,449             1,568,634         
OG(DCLG)CD 44,972             44,972             
PUSH 40,000             40,000             

Sub Total 1,832,946        11,500            54,683           -                -                -                -                -                1,899,129         

3 CorpRsv 528,872           528,872           
LOT 2,793,537        2,793,537         
OG 700,819           700,819           
OC 59,085             59,085             

Sub Total 4,082,313        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                4,082,313         

4 S106(OS) 135,000           135,000           
CorpRsv 76,475             5,049             81,524             

Sub Total 211,475           5,049             -                -                -                -                -                -                216,524           

5 CorpRsv 158,336           6,664             165,000           

6 OG 475,662           124,338         600,000           

7 CP(DCSF)CM 4,945              75,055           80,000             

8 UB 1,184,667        1,115,333       2,300,000         

9 PR 164,000           164,000           

CorpRsv 53,320             53,320             

RCCO -                  -                  

OC 5,000              5,000               

Sub Total 222,320          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                222,320           

Sports and Leisure Facilities Investment

Butterfly House at Cumberland House

Hilsea Splashpool

Southsea Seafront Investment - D Day 75

Drayton Park - Tennis Court Conversion

D Day Museum

Round Tower Improvement Works

DDAY Landscaping Works

P
age 109



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

10 CorpRsv 303,487           26,050           329,537           

RCCO -                  50,000           50,000             

Sub Total 303,487          76,050           -                -                -                -                -                -                379,537           

11 CorpRsv -                  -                  

12 CorpRsv 11,479             11,479             

CRGG 15,600             15,600             

Sub Total 27,079            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                27,079             

13 CRGG 27,992             27,992             

14 CorpRsv 234                 20,000           49,766           70,000             

CILNRsv -                  10,000           10,000             

Sub Total 234                 20,000           59,766           -                -                -                -                -                80,000             

15 CorpRsv 8,570              15,300           16,130           40,000             

16 PR 39,509             39,509             

17 Mountbatten Centre Floodlights RCCO 345,590           345,590           

UB 100,000           100,000           

Sub Total 445,590          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                445,590           

18 OC 310,370           7,991             318,361           

S106(NEW) -                  -                  

CILNRsv -                  -                  

Sub Total 310,370           7,991             -                -                -                -                -                -                318,361            

Edwardian Seafront Shelter

Modifications to Southsea Library

Watersedge Park Building

Kings Bastion

Charles Dickens' Gardens

In-house Parks' Mobilisation - Vehicles & 
Equipment

Re-provision of Bandstand at West Battery 
Gardens

Kingston Recreation Ground Play Improvements

P
age 110



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

19 CorpRsv 46,174             15,426           61,600             

CROC 38,400             38,400             

RCCO 380,000           380,000           

Sub Total 464,574          15,426           -                -                -                -                -                -                480,000           

20 Water Safety Equipment RCCO 32,916             67,084           100,000           

21 CorpRsv -                  61,900           61,900             

S106(OS) -                  8,100             8,100               

CP(DFT)IT -                  170,000         170,000           

OC -                  70,000           70,000             

Sub Total -                  -                310,000         -                -                -                -                -                310,000           

22 CorpRsv -                  50,000           50,000             

23 CorpRsv 138,518           138,518           

24 CorpRsv -                  250,000         250,000           

LOT -                  2,500,000       2,500,000         

Sub Total -                  250,000         2,500,000      -                -                -                -                -                2,750,000        

25 CROC 2,792              17,208           20,000             

26 CROC 28,270             6,730             35,000             

27 CorpRsv -                  40,000           40,000           80,000             

28 RCCO 158,541           158,541           

Allotment Security Grants

Outdoor Fitness Equipment

Farlington Pavilion Refurbishment

Milton Park Barn Thatched Roof

Victoria Park Heritage Lottery Fund

Lumps Fort Sun Huts Maintenance / 
Replacement

New Fountain Refurbishment at Southsea Castle

Track Re-surfacing - MBC and Bransbury AWP 

Disabled Beach Buggies and Access Mat

P
age 111



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

29 CorpRsv -                  303,000         303,000           

S106(OS) -                  19,000           19,000             

CROC -                  13,000           13,000             

OC -                  253,000         253,000           

Sub Total -                  -                588,000         -                -                -                -                -                588,000           

30 S106(OS) -                  10,000           10,000             

Sub Total -                  10,000           -                -                -                -                -                -                10,000             

31 CorpRsv -                  1,400,000       1,400,000         

32 CorpRsv -                  102,000         102,000           

33 CROC -                  45,000           45,000             

34 S106(OS) -                  10,000           10,000             

35 CorpRsv -                  40,000           40,000             

36
CorpRsv

-                  40,000           40,000             

37 CorpRsv 344,683           304                32,773           122,240         500,000           

38 CorpRsv -                  -                 -                  

RCCO -                  -                 -                  

Sub Total -                  -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Invest in Football Facilities Including Changing 
Facilities

Parks & Open Spaces Protection Measures to 
Prevent Incursion

Repair/Refurbishment of Southsea Splashpool

Cont to Architectural Design to Enable 
Regeneration - Kings Theatre

Pyramids Refurbishment

World War 1 Memoral Plaques

Contribution to Roof Repairs at Southsea 
Skatepark

Palmerston Road Improvements

Enterprise Centre Dilapidations

Cont to Architectural Design to Enable 
Regeneration - Guildhall

P
age 112



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

39 UB 2,610,989        2,389,011       5,000,000         

CorpRsv 20,000             43,415           63,415             

MTRS 7,812              77,488           85,300             

OC 22,170             5,600             27,770             

Sub Total 2,660,971        2,515,514       -                -                -                -                -                -                5,176,485         

40 CorpRsv 744,716           744,716           

LEP 302,284           302,284           

UB 3,488,000        3,488,000         

PR 24,646             31,733           56,379             

Sub Total 4,559,646        31,733           -                -                -                -                -                -                4,591,379         

41 S106(OS) 800                 800                  

CorpRsv 394,045           394,045           

CROC 121,600           121,600           

CP(DFT)IT 3,100              3,100               

Sub Total 519,545           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                519,545           

42 CP(DCSF)CM -                  150,000         150,000         300,000           

43 CWCIL -                  230,000         314,000         50,000           594,000           

CP(DFT)IT 200,000         200,000           

Sub Total -                  430,000         314,000         -                -                -                -                50,000           794,000           

44 CWCIL -                  190,000         247,200         437,200           

CorpRsv -                  43,255           43,255             

Sub Total -                  190,000         290,455         -                -                -                -                -                480,455           

45 CorpRsv 51,011             48,989           100,000           

Hampshire Community Bank

Public Realm - Improvements to Station Square 
& Isambard Brunel Road

City Centre Public Realm 2018-19

District Shopping Centre Improvement

Public Realm Improvement by The Hard

Limberline Phase III

City Centre Public Realm Improvements

P
age 113



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

46 CorpRsv -                  167,000         167,000           

CP(DFT)IT -                  83,000           83,000             

Sub Total -                  250,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                250,000           

47 CorpRsv 50,000           50,000             

48 PR 10,000           10,000             

49 CP(DFT)IT 50,000           50,000             

50 CP(DFT)IT 156,000         39,000           195,000           

51 PR 162,000         162,000           

52 PR 25,000           25,000             

53 PR 32,000           32,000             

54 CorpRsv 100,000         100,000           

55 CP(DFT)IT 90,000           90,000             

56 CP(DFT)IT 80,000           20,000           100,000           

57 CP(DFT)IT 120,000         30,000           150,000           

58 UB 3,000,000       3,000,000         

CorpRsv 350,000         350,000           

OC 1,300,000       1,300,000         

Sub Total -                  -                350,000         1,300,000       3,000,000      -                -                -                4,650,000        

Kings Theatre Regeneration

Brougham Road (Arts Centre) - External Repairs

Bransbury Park Pavillion

Southsea Castle

Portsmouth Watersports Centre

New Eastney Swimming Pool

Hotwalls' Paving Maintenenance

Parks & Open Space Boundary Protection 
Measures

CCTV - Portsmouth Museum & Cumberland 
House

Southsea Common & Town Centres Litter 
Management

Canoe Lake De-silting

Burfields Road Barns - Demolition

City Museum

P
age 114



CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

59 CP(DFT)IT 300,000         300,000           

60 UB 850,000         850,000         1,700,000         

Grand Total 18,647,776      5,607,312       7,456,515       2,239,000      3,850,000      -                -                172,240         37,972,843      

Kings Theatre Landlords Backlog Maintenance 
Obligations

Guildhall Regeneration

P
age 115



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 GGR(DCSF)DF 627,703            627,703           
GGR(DCSF)PC 3,233,032        3,233,032         
GGNR(DCSF)LAM 2,274,318        2,274,318         
B 2,000,894        2,000,894         
UB (2,224) (2,224)
GGR(DCSF)DSG 350,512           350,512           
CRGG 415,720           415,720           
CorpRsv 95,248             95,248             
OG(DCLG)CD 3,438,533        3,438,533         
OC 216,383           216,383           
GGR(DCSF)SSEYC 639,840           639,840           
CP(DCSF)BN 882,331            882,331           
GGR(DCSF)TC 121,151           121,151           
CP(DCSF)CM 1,498,859        1,498,859         
CP(EFA)2YR 7,278              7,278               
LOT 26,724             26,724             

Sub Total 15,826,303      -                -                -                -                -                -                -                15,826,303       

2 OG(DCLG)CD 2,912,328        2,912,328         
EEA 1,740,058        1,740,058         
S106(EC) 670,338           670,338           
GGR(DCSF)DF 55,192             55,192             
CP(DCSF)BN 689,966           689,966           
CorpRsv 137,343           137,343           
GGR(DCSF)SF 27,287             27,287             
CP(DCSF)CM 14,508             14,508             
LOT 42,060             42,060             

Sub Total 6,289,080        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                6,289,080        

Primary Capital Programme

Sufficiency Programme Phase One 2013- 2015

P
age 116



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

3 CP(DCSF)BN 2,076,350        2,076,350         
CorpRsv 2,474,953        2,166,181       4,641,134         
UBIR 2,321,605        2,321,605         
CROC 300,000           300,000           
CIL 635,710           635,710           
GGR(DCSF)SSEYC 726,721           726,721           
GGR(DCSF)DF -                  
OC 251,344           251,344           
CP(DCSF)CM 72,000             72,000             

Sub Total 8,858,683        2,166,181       -                -                -                -                -                -                11,024,864       

4 S106(EC) 97,617             97,617             
CP(DCSF)BN -                  -                  

Sub Total 97,617             -                -                -                -                -                -                -                97,617             

5 CP(DCSF)BN 2,408,124        (553,000) 1,855,124         
CorpRsv 539,463           539,463           
CP(DCSF)CM -                  -                  
S106(EC) 121,921           121,921           
CP(DCLG)DFG -                  39,000           39,000             
CP(ESFA)SEND 256,000           514,000         770,000           

Sub Total 3,325,508        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                3,325,508        

6 King Richard School Rebuild 900-1000 places GGR(DCSF)TC 1,251,400        1,251,400         
CorpRsv 139,294           304,469         443,763           
OC 10,917             10,917             
CP(DCSF)BN 6,224              6,224               

Sub Total 1,407,835        304,469         -                -                -                -                -                -                1,712,304         

7 CP(DCSF)CM 153,525           153,525           
OG(DCLG)CD 92,443             92,443             
CP(DCSF)BN 17,517             17,517             
OC -                  -                  

Sub Total 263,485          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                263,485           

Portsmouth College Sufficiency Post 16

Sufficiency Programme Phase Two 2015- 2017

Secondary School Feasibility Study

Vanguard Centre

P
age 117



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

8 Universal Infant Free School Meal Works OG 582,063           582,063           
CorpRsv 140,940           140,940           
CP(DCSF)CM 61,487             61,487             
RCCO 106,100           106,100           

Sub Total 890,590          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                890,590           

9 CRGG 455                 35,130           35,585             
GGR(DCSF)SSEYC 273                 273                  
OC 176,388           176,388           
OG(DCLG)CD 415,012           415,012           
CP(DCSF)CM 1,444              1,444               

Sub Total 593,572          35,130           -                -                -                -                -                -                628,702           

10 Schools Energy Efficiency UBS 99,642             8,141             107,783           
GGR(DCSF)DF 2,420              526                2,946               
CP(DCSF)CM 5,670              5,670               
CorpRsv 7,800              7,800               
SRCCO -                  -                  

Sub Total 115,532           8,667             -                -                -                -                -                -                124,199            

11 CP(DCSF)CM 1,185,033        1,185,033         
GGR(DCSF)DF 123,193           123,193           
CP(EFA)2YR 56,894             56,894             
CorpRsv 79,886             2,013             81,899             

Sub Total 1,445,006        2,013             -                -                -                -                -                -                1,447,019         

Universal Infant Free School Meal Provision

Schools Conditions Projects - Modernisation

P
age 118



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

12 B 1,000              1,000               
UB 42,120             42,120             
CorpRsv 64,026             64,026             
SRCCO 8,727              8,727               
GGR(DCSF)DF 346,705           346,705           
GGR(DCSF)SF 365                 365                  
GGNR(DCSF)LAM 33,998             33,998             
CP(DCSF)BN 3,464              3,464               
CP(DCSF)CM 582,528           582,528           
CP(EFA)2YR 63,733             63,733             
OG(DCLG)CD 1,571,898        1,571,898         
OG 7,936              7,936               

Sub Total 2,726,500        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                2,726,500        

13 CP(DCSF)BN 126,220           65,080           191,300           
CP(DCSF)CM 331,436           6,000             337,436           
GGR(DCSF)DF 427,664           25,000           452,664           
OC -                  -                  

Sub Total 885,320          6,000             90,080           -                -                -                -                -                981,400           

14 CorpRsv -                  -                  
UBIR 626,860           626,860           
CP(DCSF)BN 713,167           713,167           
CP(DCSF)CM 8,211              8,211               
CROC 12,019             20,000           62,743           94,762             
OC 200,000           200,000           

Sub Total 1,560,257        20,000           62,743           -                -                -                -                -                1,643,000         

15 CP(DCSF)BN 1,122,750        1,122,750         
CP(DCSF)CM 68,810             68,810             
RCCO 779,574           1,220,426       2,000,000         
OC -                  -                  

Sub Total 1,191,560         1,220,426       -                -                -                -                -                -                3,191,560         

School Conditions Project 2016-17

Secondary School Places Expansion Phase (1)

Special Education Needs - Building Alterations

School Condition Projects 2014-2016

P
age 119



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

16 GGR(DCSF)DF 877,416           1,042,961       1,920,377         
 GGR(DCSF)DSG 2,050,277        291,088         2,341,365         

CorpRsv 132,071           132,071           
CP(DCSF)BN -                  -                  

Sub Total 3,059,764        1,334,049       -                -                -                -                -                -                4,393,813         

17 CorpRsv -                  467,167         194,653         661,820           
CP(DCSF)BN 257,500           3,005,137       1,252,141       4,514,778         
CP(DCSF)CM 37,802             95,718           39,882           173,402           
GGR(DCSF)DSG 132,500           132,500           

Sub Total 427,802          3,568,022      1,486,676       -                -                -                -                -                5,482,500        

18 Future Secondary School Places CP(DCSF)BN 53,708             61,240           114,948           

CP(DCSF)CM -                  -                  

UBIR 102,842           26,158           129,000           

CorpRsv -                  -                  

Sub Total 156,550           -                87,398           -                -                -                -                -                243,948           

19 School Conditions Project 2017-18 OC 73,131             42,369           100,000         215,500           

CP(DCSF)CM 652,859           77,155           730,014           

Sub Total 725,990          42,369           177,155          -                -                -                -                -                945,514           

20 Beacon View Primary School - Kitchen Block RCCO 39,732             5,268             45,000             

21 CP(DCSF)CM 681,994           412,779         1,094,773         

CP(DCSF)BN 20,000             20,000             

CorpRsv -                  147,417         147,417           

OC 30,000             70,000           100,000           

-                  

Sub Total 731,994           630,196         -                -                -                -                -                -                1,362,190         

Schools DFC Balances and devolved 2016-17 

Sufficiency of Secondary School Places

Schools' Conditions Project 2018-19

P
age 120



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

22 CP(DCSF)BN 496,686           5,137,645       4,599,369       10,233,700       

CP(DCSF)CM 34,100             170,707         204,807           

Sub Total 530,786          5,308,352      4,599,369      -                -                -                -                -                10,438,507       

23 CorpRsv 58,724             866,164         1,128,812       2,053,700         

RCCO -                  500,000         500,000         1,000,000         

Sub Total 58,724            1,366,164       1,628,812       -                -                -                -                -                3,053,700        

24 CP(DCSF)CM 45,500             325,000         370,500           

CorpRsv 21,408             8,092             29,500             

Sub Total 66,908            333,092         -                -                -                -                -                -                400,000           

25 CorpRsv 46,641             23,359           70,000             

26 CorpRsv -                  30,000           30,000             

27 Early Year Places Provision GGR(DCSF)SSEYC -                  10,000           10,000             

28 CorpRsv -                  132,100         132,100           

CP(DCSF)BN -                  249,300         249,300           

CP(DCSF)CM -                  518,600         754,619         1,273,219         

OC -                  100,000         100,000           

Sub Total -                  1,000,000       754,619         -                -                -                -                -                1,754,619         

29 CorpRsv 13,099             486,001         499,100           

OC -                  179,200         179,200           

CP(ESFA)SEND -                  359,300         359,300           

Sub Total 13,099             1,024,501       -                -                -                -                -                -                1,037,600         

Sufficiency of School Places 2018-19

Sufficiency of Special School Places - Redwood Park 
Academy

Sufficiency of Special School Places - The Willows Centre

Milton Childcare Sufficiency

Forest School at Foxes Forest - Community Accessible 
Education Centre

Maintained Schools - Urgent Conditions Projects

Additional Special School Places - The Lantern

P
age 121



EDUCATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

30 CorpRsv -                  200,000         50,000           250,000           

31 CP(DCSF)BN -                  650,000         650,000           

32 CP(DCSF)BN -                  1,173,400       1,706,200       1,173,400       4,053,000         

Sub Total -                  -                1,173,400       1,706,200       1,173,400       -                -                -                4,053,000        

33 CorpRsv -                  20,000           50,000           70,000             

CP(DCSF)BN -                  12,000           12,000             

Sub Total -                  20,000           62,000           -                -                -                -                -                82,000             

34 CP(DCSF)BN -                  87,000           87,000             

35 School Places - SEND Phase 1 & Phase 2 CIL 395,520       1,186,560    395,520       1,977,600      
S106(EC) 22,400         22,400           
CP(DCSF)BN 553,600       1,660,800    553,600       2,768,000      

Sub Total -               -              971,520       2,847,360    949,120       -              -              -              4,768,000      

Grand Total 52,114,412    19,298,258  11,153,772   4,640,560    2,122,520    -              -              -              89,329,522    

Wimbourne Amalgamation

Additional School Places in Mainstream Schools - Design

Sufficiency at Wymering Site improvement 

Additional Secondary School Places - St Edmunds 
Catholic School - Grant

Additional School Places - 2020/21

P
age 122



ENVIRONMENT & CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 OGENV 15,762,685      5,846,922       4,878,084       7,362,948       6,574,368       2,410,774       1,472,830       44,308,611       

CorpRsv -                  282,000         282,000           

Sub Total 15,762,685      5,846,922      4,878,084      7,362,948      6,574,368      2,410,774       1,472,830       282,000         44,590,611       

2 GGR(DEFRA)AQME 171,781           171,781           
CorpRsv 15,307             15,307             

Sub Total 187,088           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                187,088           

3 Southsea Enhancement Design S106(OS) 34,988             39,572           39,572           39,572           39,570           24,726           218,000           

CorpRsv -                  -                  

Sub Total 34,988            39,572           39,572           39,572           39,570           24,726           -                -                218,000           

4 Emergency Repairs to Southsea Sea Defences OGENV 631,130           33,561           664,691           

5 Southsea Coastal Flood Defence OGENV 7,469,832        3,000,000       14,000,000     30,530,168     11,000,000     19,000,000     21,000,000     1,000,000       107,000,000     

PCCOC -                  2,000,000       3,000,000       4,000,000       4,000,000       4,000,000       17,000,000       

CIL -                  4,800,000       4,800,000         

CorpRsv 80,732             326,035         458,333         865,100           

CP(DCSF)CM 60,935             873,965         934,900           

Sub Total 7,611,499        3,000,000      20,000,000    32,988,501     14,000,000     23,000,000    25,000,000    5,000,000      130,600,000     

6 Household Waste Collection CorpRsv -                  111,200         111,200           

7 Old Portsmouth Seawalls' Maintenance CorpRsv 27,947             52,053           40,000           120,000           

Portsea Island - Flood Cell 4: North Portsea Island - 
Coastal Flood and Erosion Risk Management

Air Quality Action Plan

P
age 123



ENVIRONMENT & CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

8 CorpRsv 10,486             114,514         125,000           

RCCO -                  200,000         200,000           

PR 55,000             -                 55,000             

Sub Total 65,486            314,514          -                -                -                -                -                -                380,000           

9 CorpRsv 959,155           160,845         1,120,000         

10 RCCO 9,549              8,451             18,000             

11 OGENV 210,303           8,500             218,803           

RCCO -                  -                 -                  

Sub Total 210,303           8,500             -                -                -                -                -                -                218,803           

12 CorpRsv -                  100,000         100,000           

13 CorpRsv -                  150,000         150,000           

14 UB -                  4,838,400       4,838,400         

15 UB -                  4,125,000       4,125,000         

16 RCCO -                  130,000         130,000           

17 RCCO -                  189,000         189,000           

CP(DFT)IT -                  29,200           29,200             

CorpRsv -                  191,800         191,800           

Sub Total -                  189,000         221,000         -                -                -                -                -                410,000           

18 Anaerobic Digestion Plant CorpRsv 200,000         200,000           

UB 17,600,000     4,400,000       22,000,000       

Sub Total -                  -                200,000         17,600,000     4,400,000      -                -                -                22,200,000      

Public Toilets New Provision, across the City

Wheeled Bins for Refuse

Dog Kennels Vehicles

Southsea Seafront Emergency Work to Sea Defences

Air Quality Equipment & Monitoring Station

Single Material Recycling Facility

Waste collection Vehicle Replacement

Food Waste Recycling - Pilot

Air Quality Initiatives

Replacement of WC Hand Washing and Drying Units

P
age 124



ENVIRONMENT & CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

19 CP(DFT)IT 100,000         100,000         200,000           

20 Greening the City CorpRsv 100,000         100,000           

Grand Total 25,499,830 9,894,618 30,667,056 62,216,021 25,013,938 25,435,500 26,472,830 5,282,000 210,481,793

Southsea Sea Defences - Public Realm Enhancements 
Phase 1

P
age 125



HEALTH, WELLBEING & SOCIAL CARE  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 OG 17,699             801                18,500             

2 S106(Hsg) 59,000             59,000             

CP(DCSF)CM 1,091,000        1,091,000         

OC 988,182           25,000           1,013,182         

 

Sub Total 2,138,182        25,000           -                -                -                -                -                -                2,163,182         

3 Portsmouth Recovery Centre OG(PHE)Health 265,953           265,953           

4 CROC 80,200             80,200             

CRGG 700                 700                  

CorpRsv -                  121,094         121,094           

CP(DH)CG 319,100           319,100           

OR 184,094           78,906           263,000           

BCF(OG)DOH 496,000           496,000           

GGR(DH)CAF 51,383             51,383             

Sub Total 1,131,477         200,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                1,331,477         

5 BCF(DFG)DCLG -                  50,000           100,000         150,000           

OR -                  -                  

Sub Total -                  50,000           100,000         -                -                -                -                -                150,000           

6 CorpRsv 65,003             (15,003) 50,000             

RCCO -                  25,000           25,000             

Sub Total 65,003            9,997             -                -                -                -                -                -                75,000             

Autism Capital Grants

Reconfiguration of Corben Lodge

Swift Software Replacement

Assistive Technology

Shearwater House - Backup Power Supply

P
age 126



HEALTH, WELLBEING & SOCIAL CARE  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

7 OC -                  196,818         196,818           

OG -                  84,200           550,000         35,800           670,000           

CorpRsv 150,000           113,182         263,182           

RCCO -                  426,416         426,416           

UBIR 1,041,758        1,041,758         

OR 10,826             10,826             

Sub Total 1,202,584        820,616         550,000         35,800           -                -                -                -                2,609,000        

8 CorpRsv -                  4,506,300       4,506,300         

CP(DH)CG -                  70,000           23,700           93,700             

UB -                  2,626,000       3,210,000       5,836,000         

OR -                  1,000,000       1,000,000         

BCF(DFG)DCLG -                  1,100,000       194,000         1,294,000         

OC -                  -                  

Sub Total -                  1,070,000       5,630,000      2,820,000      3,210,000       -                -                -                12,730,000       

9 CorpRsv -                  250,000         250,000           

OC -                  100,000         100,000           

Sub Total -                  350,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                350,000           

10 OR -                  182,000         182,000           

11 Medina House - Heating & Cooling System CorpRsv -                  110,000         110,000           

Grand Total 4,820,898     2,708,414    6,390,000    2,855,800    3,210,000    -              -              -              19,985,112     

Oakdene SJH Purchase & Remodelling

Older Persons Supported Living (Extra Care Housing)

Kestrel Centre Relocation to Civic Offices

Enable Mobile Working

P
age 127



LEADER PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CorpRsv -                 5,200             5,200               
S106(OS) 22,209            30,000              30,000           30,100           112,309           

CP(DFT)IT 4,135              10,065           14,200             

OC -                 -                  

Sub Total 26,344            30,000             30,000           45,365           -                -                -                -                131,709           

2 CorpRsv -                 293,482         293,482           
CP(DFT)IT 721,866           101,904         823,770           

UBIR 557,484           557,484           

UB 8,291              8,291               

OG(DCLG)CD 1,036,008        1,036,008        

CIL 658,174           788,265            10,254,614     8,556,675       20,257,728       

S106(ST) -                 42,935              42,935             

S106(EW) 5,440              5,440               

CRGG -                 18,800              18,800             

OC -                 -                  

LEP 500,000           500,000           

CROC 32,566            32,566             

Sub Total 3,519,829        850,000            10,650,000     8,556,675      -                -                -                -                23,576,504      

3 CorpRsv -                 -                  
UBIR 280,440           280,440           
OG(DCLG)CD 568,954           568,954           

OC 4,540,000         4,540,000        

LEP 241,078           241,078           

UB 4,812,490        17,872-              300,000         59,910           5,154,528        

Sub Total 10,442,962      17,872-              300,000         59,910           -                -                -                -                10,785,000      

4 UB 10,640,428      467,909            914,413         12,022,750       

Sub Total 10,640,428      467,909            914,413         -                -                -                -                -                12,022,750      

Horsea Island Country Park - Fencing

City Centre Development - Road

Dunsbury Hill - Utilities & Enabling

Dunsbury Hill Farm - Access Road

P
age 128



LEADER PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

5 Dunsbury Hill - Plot 2 UB 2,421,346        52,099              2,473,445        

LEP 7,176,000        7,176,000        

Sub Total 9,597,346       52,099             -                -                -                -                -                -                9,649,445        

6 Dunsbury Hill - Plot 3 UBIR 19,047            19,047             

UB 6,656,940        624,013            7,280,953        

Sub Total 6,675,987       624,013            -                -                -                -                -                -                7,300,000        

7 OG(DCLG)CD 4,072,035        4,072,035        
CorpRsv 934,725           (934,725) 934,725         293,062         1,227,787        

CIL -                 972,213         972,213           

OC 143,093           (22,004) 121,089           

ORCD -                 1,636,380       1,636,380        

OG(DCLG)CD -                 -                  

UB -                 22,004              2,171,538       934,725         3,128,267        

CP(DCSF)CM 1,828,294        1,860,000         34,157           3,722,451        

CP(DCSF)BN -                 1,553,041       2,925,271       4,478,312        

CP(DH)CG 654,533           654,533           

CP(DFT)IT -                 1,744,582       1,706,700       3,451,282        

CP(DFT)HM 721                 2,013,573       2,014,294        

CP(DCLG)DFG 206,864           459,183         666,047           

CIL -                 -                  

CRGG -                 769,589         769,589           

CROC -                 -                -                  

CorpRsv 1,700,000       1,700,000        

MTRS 775,705           775,705           

ORCD 730,000           1,853,479       7,254,859       9,838,338        

OR -                 4,576,324       8,815,676       13,392,000       

CP(EFA)2YR 131,252           200,404         331,656           

S106(ST) -                 161,376         161,376           

S106(OS) -                 105,515         105,515           

Sub Total 9,477,222       925,275            7,090,000      15,520,000     20,206,372    -                -                -                53,218,869      

Tipner Regeneration (previously City Deal)

P
age 129



LEADER PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

8 OC 25,643,217      25,643,217       

LEP 64,202,277      26,005,624        58,008,914     148,216,815     

LEPCapRec -                 -                  

LEP(DCLG) 1,168,857        40,000              5,091,143       6,300,000        

LEP(OG) 6,672,217        417,783            7,090,000        

LEP(ERDF) 36,908            36,908             

UB 7,417,100        7,417,100        

CorpRsv 802,300           802,300           

CRGG 456,600           456,600           

Sub Total 106,399,476    26,463,407       63,100,057     -                -                -                -                -                195,962,940     

9 CorpRsv 316,000           316,000           

RCCO 128,522           128,522           

OC 2,468              5,032                7,500               

Sub Total 446,990          5,032               -                -                -                -                -                -                452,022           

10 UB 159,623,569    12,300,000        10,992,119     182,915,688     

CorpRsv -                 -                  

Sub Total 159,623,569    12,300,000       10,992,119     -                -                -                -                -                182,915,688     

11 UB -                 148,000,000      148,000,000     

12 City Centre  Co-Working Space UB -                 450,000         450,000           

MTRS -                 450,000         450,000           

OC -                 900,000         900,000           

Sub Total -                 -                   900,000         900,000         -                -                -                -                1,800,000        

13 UB -                 3,080,000         4,620,000       7,700,000        

Grand Total 316,850,153 192,779,863 98,596,589 25,081,950 20,206,372 0 0 0 653,514,927

Local Enterprise Partnership

Medina House Refurbishment

Commercial Property Acquisition Fund

Lakeside North Harbour

Dunsbury Hill Farm- Plot 5a

P
age 130



COMMERCIAL PORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CorpRsv -                  0

CRGG -                  0

Sub Total -                  -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                  

2 CorpRsv 151,416           15,000 166,416

OG(DCLG)CD 24,274             24,274

Sub Total 175,690           15,000           -                -                -                -                -                -                190,690           

3 OG(DCLG)CD 43,362             43,362

LEP 456,638           456,638

UB 7,830,228        2,329,772 500,000 10,660,000

Sub Total 8,330,228        2,329,772      500,000         -                -                -                -                -                11,160,000       

4 Purchase of Linkspan Berth 3 UB 1,167,050        (7,050) 1,160,000

PR -                  13,000 13,000

RCCO 250,000           (5,950) 244,050

Sub Total 1,417,050        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                1,417,050         

5 Purchase of Linkspan Berth 4 CorpRsv 260,265           260,265

UBIR 739,735           739,735

EUG 460,805           460,805

UB 7,236,574        114,000 7,350,574

Sub Total 8,697,379        114,000          -                -                -                -                -                -                8,811,379         

6 AJQ Fender Modifications RCCO 143,154           82,000 225,154

Port Infrastructure

Port Master System

Port Regeneration

P
age 131



COMMERCIAL PORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years
7 UB 33,008             3,400,000       8,567,000       2,599,992       14,600,000       

CorpRsv -                  684,977         684,977           

CRGG -                  926                926                  

Sub Total 33,008            3,400,000      8,567,000      3,285,895      -                -                -                -                15,285,903       

8 UB -                  4,120,000       880,000         5,000,000         

PR -                  150,000         700,000         150,000         1,000,000         

Sub Total -                  150,000         700,000         4,120,000       1,030,000       -                -                -                6,000,000        

9 Anodes PR -                  320,000         320,000           

10 Port Freight System RCCO -                  14,000           14,000             

OG -                  56,000           56,000             

Sub Total -                  -                70,000           -                -                -                -                -                70,000             

11 Port - Floating Dock Jetty Dredge MTRS -                  1,000,000       1,000,000         

UB -                  2,000,000       2,000,000         

Sub Total -                  -                3,000,000      -                -                -                -                -                3,000,000        

12 Wind Turbines at Port CorpRsv -                  800,000         800,000           

UB -                  1,900,000       1,900,000         

Sub Total -                  -                -                800,000         1,900,000       -                -                -                2,700,000        

13 The Camber Quay - Structural Investigations CorpRsv -                  50,000           50,000             

14 CorpRsv -                  75,000           75,000             

Development of Cruise & Ferry Port

Passenger Boarding Bridge

Shore to Ship Electric "Plug in" Facility (Feasibility / 
Design)

P
age 132



COMMERCIAL PORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years
15 Electrification of Light Goods Vehicles CorpRsv -                  80,000           80,000             

PR -                  20,000           20,000             

Sub Total -                  -                100,000         -                -                -                -                -                100,000           

16 Living Walls Phase 1 CorpRsv -                  20,000           20,000             

Grand Total 18,796,509    6,410,772    13,082,000  8,205,895    2,930,000    -              -              -              49,425,176    

P
age 133



RESOURCES  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CorpRsv -                  44,900           44,900             

2 UB 10,394,000      177,250         10,571,250       

OG(DCLG)CD 250,000           250,000           

Sub Total 10,644,000      177,250         -                -                -                -                -                -                10,821,250       

3 UB 2,137,737        2,137,737         

4 UB 750,000         2,250,000       3,000,000         

5 MTRS 1,687              1,687               

OG(DCLG)CD 84,913             84,913             

Sub Total 86,600            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                86,600             

6 CorpRsv 144,700           56,351           415,941         20,000           636,992           

OG(DCLG)CD 321,482           321,482           

CP(DCLG)DFG 151,400           151,400           

CRGG 2,320              2,320               

CP(DFT)IT 196,000           196,000           

ITR 95,227             137,949         233,176           

Sub Total 911,129           194,300         415,941          20,000           -                -                -                -                1,541,370         

7 CorpRsv 6,118              92,553           98,671             

OG(DCLG)CD 99,384             99,384             

ITR 30,400             16,447           46,847             

Sub Total 135,902           -                109,000         -                -                -                -                -                244,902           

8 CorpRsv 534,311           534,311           

OG(DCLG)CD 88,644             88,644             

Sub Total 622,955          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                622,955           

Project Management

Portico - Capital Advances

Port Leased Plant and Equipment

Legal Case Management Software

Port Leased Plant & Equipment - Portico Crane

IS Road Map

PSN CoCo Compliance

Refurbishment of Data Centre Accommodation

P
age 134



RESOURCES  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

9 CorpRsv 46,487             50,000           8,941             105,428           

UB 94,572             94,572             

Sub Total 141,059           50,000           8,941             -                -                -                -                -                200,000           

10 CorpRsv 172,508           64,000           236,508           

OG(DCLG)CD 67,344             67,344             

MTRS 47,325             47,325             

CP(DCLG)DFG 626,166           626,166           

Sub Total 913,343           -                64,000           -                -                -                -                -                977,343           

11 CorpRsv 490,250           490,250           

12 CorpRsv 652,038           90,862           742,900           

13 CorpRsv 191,436           147,500         243,564         582,500           

14 Portsmouth Hive Project RCCO -                  50,000           196,642         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 246,642           

OC 28,358             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 28,358             

Sub Total 28,358            50,000           196,642         -                -                -                -                -                275,000           

15 Local Full Fibre Network Project OG -                  300,000         3,500,000       -                 -                 -                 -                 3,800,000         

CorpRsv -                  200,000         200,000           

Sub Total -                  300,000         3,700,000      -                -                -                -                -                4,000,000        

16 CorpRsv 1,157,303        642,697         1,800,000         

RCCO -                  268,100         268,100           

Sub Total 1,157,303        910,797         -                -                -                -                -                -                2,068,100         

17 CorpRsv -                  20,000           620,300         640,300           

Channel Shift Phase 2

Windows 10 Upgrade & Hardware Refresh

Review of Revenues & Benefits Software Applications

Channel Shift Phase 1

BI Hardware & Implementation

Working Anywhere

IS - Server & Database

P
age 135



RESOURCES  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

18 The People's Network - Windows 10 Upgrade CorpRsv -                  70,000           280,000         350,000           

19 Modern Ways of Working MTRS -                  444,800         555,200         1,000,000         

OR -                  1,089,900       480,000         1,569,900         

CorpRsv -                  44,100           346,000         390,100           

RCCO 40,000           40,000             

Sub Total -                  1,174,000       1,270,800       555,200         -                -                -                -                3,000,000        

-                  

20 Archive Tool CorpRsv -                  400,000         400,000         800,000           

21 UB -                  4,231,736       6,550,000       450,000         475,000         550,000         475,000         2,268,264       15,000,000       

22 OG -                  400,000         400,000           

23 Ground Floor Reception Improvements RCCO 82,143             21,457           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 103,600           

24 MTRS 250,000         250,000           

25 MTRS 328,000         492,000         820,000           

26 CorpRsv 528,000         528,000           

27 CorpRsv 252,000         378,000         630,000           

28 CROC 378,000         567,000         945,000           

29 MTRS 939,200         1,408,800       2,348,000         

30 MTRS 110,000         110,000           

OC 70,000           70,000             

Sub Total -                  -                70,000           110,000          -                -                -                -                180,000           

Portico Capital Investment Loan

Portico Freight System

Applications Upgrade linked to Software Modernisation

Office 365

LAN Access Switches

Enterprise Voice (CISCO IPT)

Replacement Servers & Storage

Migration to Azure (Cloud Servers)

Implementation of Northgate Citizen Access Suite

P
age 136



RESOURCES  PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

31 CorpRsv 60,000           60,000             

32 CRGG 142,000         142,000           

33 CorpRsv 7,100             7,100               

CROC 500,300         500,300           

CRGG 120,200         120,200           

CP(DFT)IT 22,400           22,400             

Sub Total -                  -                -                650,000         -                -                -                -                650,000           

Grand Total 18,194,253    8,097,040    19,138,150   5,107,000    853,000       550,000       475,000       2,268,264    54,682,707    

CISCO Data Centre Switches

Checkpoint Internall Firewall

Upgrade to Planet Press

P
age 137



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 HwayPFI 19,234,550      1,636,770 1,484,647 1,964,682 4,008,173 5,935,404 5,935,404 13,680,466 53,880,096
OG(DCLG)CD 2,772,625        2,772,625
EUG (10,427) (10,427)
OG 145,167           145,167
UB 2,306,379        2,306,379

UBIR 5,728,477        5,728,477

CP(DFT)IT -                  -                 0

CorpRsv -                  -                 0

CP(DFT)HM 8,557,901        2,106,000       1,151,000       11,814,901

Sub Total 38,734,672      3,742,770      2,635,647      1,964,682       4,008,173       5,935,404      5,935,404      13,680,466     76,637,218       

2 UB -                  70,000 70,000
CorpRsv -                  71,743 71,743

S278 23,644             23,644

CP(DFT)IT 1,527,385        1,011,453 627,446 112,884 3,279,168

CIL -                  699,500 699,500

S106(ST) 279,283           279,283

OG(DFT)LSTFSec31 -                  0

OG(DFT)TFSHSec31 1,215,414        1,215,414

CP(DCSF)BN 30,000             30,000

OG 80,000             80,000

CILNRsv -                  6,000 6,000

Sub Total 3,155,726        1,017,453       1,468,689       -                -                -                -                112,884          5,754,752        

Contribution to PFI

Local Transport Plan & Road Safety 3

P
age 138



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

3 CIL -                  0
UB 21,101             21,101
UBIR 462,850           462,850
CP(DCSF)BN 3,365,593        3,365,593
CP(DFT)IT 12,907             12,907
CP(DCLG)DFG 135,700           135,700
OC 4,832,000        4,832,000

CROC 567,092           567,092

S106(OS) 345,800           345,800

PARK 500,000           500,000

OG(DFT)LSTFSec31 608,732           608,732

OG(DFT)TFSHSec31 244,355           244,355

CorpRsv 626,465           43,815 670,280

Sub Total 11,722,595      43,815           -                -                -                -                -                -                11,766,410       

4 UB 14,200             337,752 1,325,548 1,677,500

UBS 2,391,315        1,297,385 3,688,700

Sub Total 2,405,515        1,635,137       1,325,548       -                -                -                -                -                5,366,200        

5 CorpRsv 21,555             26,445 48,000

OC 20,480             20,480

Sub Total 42,035            -                -                -                -                -                -                26,445           68,480             

6 CorpRsv -                  26,946 26,946

CP(DFT)IT 997,969           997,969

OG(DFT)Sec31 379,735           19,927 56,054 455,716

OC 157,369           157,369

Sub Total 1,535,073        19,927           83,000           -                -                -                -                -                1,638,000         

Eastern Rd Waterbridge

The Hard Public Transport Interchange

Replace Residential Street Lighting With LED

Copnor Bridge Maintenance

P
age 139



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

7 CP(DFT)IT 530,060           134,558 2,928 667,546

CorpRsv -                  24,069 23,000 47,069

OC 25,385             25,385

Sub Total 555,445          134,558         26,997           -                -                -                -                23,000           740,000           

8 PARK 192,509           88,709 281,218

CorpRsv -                  0

Sub Total 192,509           88,709           -                -                -                -                -                -                281,218            

9 CorpRsv 424,022           31,170 5,508 460,700

S106(ST) 2,400              2,400

S106(OS) 10,000             10,000

CROC 15,900             15,900

CP(DFT)IT 651,000           651,000

Sub Total 1,103,322        31,170            5,508             -                -                -                -                -                1,140,000         

10 PARK 178,921           76,079 450,000 705,000

CP(DFT)IT -                  0

Sub Total 178,921           76,079           450,000         -                -                -                -                -                705,000           

11 CP(DFT)NPIF 52,000             52,000

PARK 26,333             26,333

CP(DFT)IT 30,000             30,000

Sub Total 108,333           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                108,333           

12 CP(DFT)NPIF 309,963           190,037 500,000

CP(DFT)IT -                  148,400 148,400

CorpRsv -                  351,600 351,600

Sub Total 309,963          190,037         500,000         -                -                -                -                -                1,000,000         

Variable Message Signs (Incl Seafront)

Eastern Corridor Road Link Improvements

Angelsea Road Footbridge

Traffic Management Centre - System Review

Traffic Signal Upgrade Packages

Isambard Brunel Car Park

P
age 140



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

13 CP(DFT)IT 52,131             7,869 140,000 100,000 300,000

CorpRsv 71,895             37,924 109,819

Sub Total 124,026           45,793           140,000         100,000         -                -                -                -                409,819           

14 CorpRsv 14,216             25,784 40,000

Sub Total 14,216             25,784           -                -                -                -                -                -                40,000             

15 CP(DFT)IT 47,563             12,437 60,000

16 PARK 132,514           17,500 150,014

CorpRsv -                  0

Sub Total 132,514           17,500           -                -                -                -                -                -                150,014            

17 PARK -                  100,000 100,000

18 PARK -                  30,000 30,000

19 PARK -                  65,000 65,000

20 OC 103,259           26,471 129,730

OG 40,387             85,883 29,000 155,270

CP(DFT)IT -                  18,000 18,000

Sub Total 143,646           112,354          47,000           -                -                -                -                -                303,000           

21 PARK 196,488           53,512 250,000

CorpRsv 20,000 28,000 48,000

Sub Total 196,488           73,512           -                -                -                -                -                28,000           298,000           

Co-operative Intelligent Transport Systems

Permanent One-way System at Wickham Street

Spur Analytics, Upgrade, Handheld Upgrade & SiDEM 
Archiving

Old Portsmouth Area Study

Improvements to Neighbourhood Living and Street 
Environment (Including Verge Hardening)

Contactless Parking Metres (Wave & Pay)

Milton Road & St Mary's Road

Upgrade Car Park Counting Equipment (link to TMC)

Bike Hangars

P
age 141



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

22 PARK 5,833              69,167 25,000 100,000

CILNRsv -                  3,500 3,500

Sub Total 5,833              72,667           25,000           -                -                -                -                -                103,500           

23 S106(NEW) 249,350           190,996 286,534 9,010 735,890

24 CILNRsv 20,431             15,569 4,000 40,000

25 OG(DFT)Sec31 7,422              170,578 178,000

PARK -                  14,500 34,000 48,500

Sub Total 7,422              185,078         -                -                -                -                -                34,000           226,500           

26 CorpRsv 24,266             90,752 1,076,982 1,192,000

CROC -                  8,000 8,000

Sub Total 24,266            98,752           1,076,982       -                -                -                -                -                1,200,000         

27 CP(DFT)IT 15,923             234,077 250,000

PARK 176,000 76,000 54,000 306,000

Sub Total 15,923             410,077         76,000           -                -                -                -                54,000           556,000           

28 CorpRsv 3,329              496,671 500,000

CP(DFT)IT -                  21,555 21,555

OG -                  0

Sub Total 3,329              518,226         -                -                -                -                -                -                521,555           

29 CP(DFT)IT -                  120,000 120,000

30 CP(DFT)IT -                  80,000 80,000Pedestrian Crossing - Henderson Rd

Road Safety Scheme

Cathodic Protection - Hard Interchange

Central Corridor

Smart Cities - Intelligent Transport System - Phase 1

Cycle Signs and Infrastructure

Statutory Infrastructure Spend

Western Corridor - South

Specific Planning Obligations

P
age 142



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

31 PARK 42,906             34,094 77,000

OG 51,000             49,000 100,000

Sub Total 93,906            83,094           -                -                -                -                -                -                177,000           

32 PARK 69,600             69,600

33 OG 262,505           262,505

CP(DFT)IT -                  71,091 71,091

CorpRsv 41,944             18,652 56,404 117,000

Sub Total 304,449          89,743           -                -                -                -                -                56,404           450,596           

34 PARK 22,282             77,718 50,000 150,000

35 OGENV -                  1,577,737 1,577,737

36 Extension to Park & Ride Multi Story Car Park - Design CP(DFT)IT 4,819              345,181 350,000

37 Smart Cities: Intelligent Transport System Phase 2 CP(DFT)IT -                  178,445 178,445

38 The Hard Interchange Auxilary Works CP(DFT)IT -                  110,000 140,000 250,000

39 New Car Park Facility - Southsea UB -                  1,800,000 1,800,000

40 Transforming Cities Fund OG(DFT)TCF 50,000             4,047,000 4,097,000

CP(DFT)IT -                  150,000 150,000

PARK 84,120             565,880 650,000

Sub Total 134,120           4,762,880      -                -                -                -                -                -                4,897,000        

41 Tipner Motorway Junction & Park & Ride CorpRsv 30,000             30,000

42 Safer Road Improvement A27 OG(DFT)Sec31 -                  61,000 61,000

Air Quality - Bus Fleet Retrofitting

Transport Data Geographic Information System (GIS)

On-Street Residential EV Chargepoint Scheme (ORCS)

Additional Enforcement Cameras 

Air Quality Infrastructure Improvements

P
age 143



TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PORTFOLIO CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

43 Air Quality Improvement OG 5,000,000       5,000,000       10,000,000       

CP(DFT)IT 220,000         220,000           

Sub Total -                  -                5,000,000      5,220,000      -                -                -                -                10,220,000       

44 Cycle Parking Across the City CP(DFT)IT 25,000           25,000             

45 One-Way Streets and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods CP(DFT)IT 120,000         120,000           

46 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure CP(DFT)IT 76,000           76,000             

OC 230,000         230,000           

Sub Total -                  -                306,000         -                -                -                -                -                306,000           

47 Local Cycling & Walking Investment Plan CP(DFT)IT 100,000         100,000           

48 CIL 500,000         500,000           

49 Non PFI Asset Management Register / Plan CP(DFT)IT 100,000         100,000           

Grand Total 61,688,292    15,853,316   16,861,350   7,284,682    4,008,173    5,935,404    5,935,404    14,040,646  131,607,267   

Full Business Case For Extension to Tipner Park & Ride 
Multi Story Car Park

P
age 144



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (GF) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 CorpRsv 2,347,912        2,347,912

CP(DCLG)DFG 1,124,300        1,124,300

CP(DCSF)BN 250,729           250,729

CP(DH)CG 762,300           762,300

GGR(DCLG)PSR 179,526           179,526

GGR(DCLG)DF 634,100           634,100

OC 1,879,292        200,400 205,411 210,545 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 3,295,648

LR(HIP) 1,959,643        6,040 18,691 31,658 2,016,032

BCF(DFG)DCLG 3,730,904        3,730,904

OC -                  2,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 11,000,000

OG 162,513           162,513

OG(DCLG)CD 1,318,131        1,318,131

Sub Total 14,349,350      2,206,440      1,724,102       1,742,203       1,700,000       1,700,000       1,700,000       1,700,000       26,822,095      

2 Removal of Hazards & Risks Within The Home GGR(DCLG)PSR 372,963           372,963

LR(HIP) 1,743,792        359,153 368,132 377,335 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 4,248,412

CorpRsv -                  0

Sub Total 2,116,755        359,153         368,132         377,335         350,000         350,000         350,000         350,000         4,621,375         

3 Grants to Registered Social Landlords S106(Hsg) 259,000           (21,830) 237,170

CorpRsv 1,994              1,994

LR(HIP) -                  0

NewS106(Hsg) 86,000             21,830 450,000 300,000 857,830

Sub Total 346,994          -                450,000         300,000         -                -                -                -                1,096,994         

4 Homes For Homeless CorpRsv -                  464,200         464,200           

S106(Hsg) -                  35,800           35,800             

UB -                  500,000         500,000           

Sub Total -                  500,000         500,000         -                -                -                -                -                1,000,000         

Support For Vulnerable People

P
age 145



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (GF) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

5 CorpRsv 655,436           358,046         106,300         1,119,782         

OG(DCLG)CD 894,858           894,858           

RCCO 377,900           393,700         771,600           

Sub Total 1,928,194        358,046         500,000         -                -                -                -                -                2,786,240        

6 Guildhall Internal Works CorpRsv -                  80,000           80,000             

7 CorpRsv 185,974           185,974           

PR 6,000              6,000               

Sub Total 191,974           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                191,974            

8 Guildhall Square Electrical Upgrade RCCO 37,800             37,800             

9 UB 1,033,657        1,077,443       2,111,100         

UBS 250,000           250,000           

CROC 404,000           356,443         222,557         983,000           

CMR 26,000             26,000             

Sub Total 1,713,657        356,443         1,300,000       -                -                -                -                -                3,370,100         

10 UB 3,034,977        1,015,023       2,200,000       6,250,000         

11 Kingston Lodge North Renovation RCCO 171,933           (11,477) 160,456           

12 RCCO 2,229              119,458         121,687           

13 Utilities & Energy Management 2019/20 MTRS -                  1,050,000       1,050,000         

Guildhall Capital Works

Council Chamber Modernisation

Investment in Solar Photovoltaic Cells

Utilities and Energy Management

Civic Offices Public Address System

P
age 146



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (GF) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

14 CorpRsv 5,460,106        2,077,935       1,000,000       8,538,041         

CP(DCSF)CM 331,301           331,301           

CP(DFT)IT 175,115           175,115           

OG(DCLG)CD 1,859,528        1,859,528         

CMR 65,750             65,750             

CROC 291,792           291,792           

CorpRsv -                  1,712,000       428,000         2,140,000         

Sub Total 8,183,592        2,077,935      2,712,000       428,000         -                -                -                -                13,401,527       

15 Landlord's Maintenance - Capital Contingency CorpRsv 54,389             169,258         223,647           

CRGG -                  140,353         140,353           

CROC -                  47,000           47,000             

Sub Total 54,389            356,611          -                -                -                -                -                -                411,000            

16 CP(DCSF)CM 15,000             285,000         300,000           

17 RCCO 170,378           170,378           

18 CorpRsv 700,000         700,000           

Grand Total 32,317,222 7,702,632 11,504,234 2,847,538 2,050,000 2,050,000 2,050,000 2,050,000 62,571,626

Guildhall Investment (Match Funding)

Civic Offices' Basement Refurbishment

Landlord's Maintenance (across the whole PCC Estate)

Transitional Accommodation for the Homeless - 
Adaptations to General Fund Properties

P
age 147



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (HRA) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

1 B(HRA) 3,714,358        3,714,358         

CorpRsv 139,100           139,100           

CRec(HRA) -                  -                  

RCCO(HRA) 10,946,286      492,908         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         13,258,994       

OC 88,918             88,918             

OCRec(HRA) 2,737              2,737               

UB(HRA) 246,614           246,614           

OG(DFT)LSTFSec31 30,000             30,000             

Sub Total 15,168,013       492,908         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         303,300         17,480,721       

2 B(HRA) 134,210           134,210           

OCRec(HRA) -                  -                  

OC 7,573,994        1,531,302       400,000         400,000         400,000         400,000         400,000         400,000         11,505,296       

RCCO(HRA) 133,581,832    15,784,278     29,139,503     31,085,813     30,657,143     29,363,270     28,262,116     28,514,975     326,388,930     

OG 1,054,584        1,054,584         

UB(HRA) 11,841,361      4,043,117       15,884,478       

CRec(HRA) 290,822           290,822           

CorpRsv 88,454             190,246         278,700           

Sub Total 154,565,257    17,505,826     29,539,503    31,485,813     31,057,143     33,806,387    28,662,116     28,914,975     355,537,020    

3 King William Street UB(HRA) 80,177-             80,177-             

CRec(HRA) 75,814             75,814             

OCRec(HRA) 666,143           666,143           

S106(Hsg) 14,000             14,000             

OC 7,500              7,500               

OG 325,000           325,000           

Sub Total 1,008,280        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                1,008,280         

HRA Assets (Non Dwelling)

Total Major Repairs Dwellings

P
age 148



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (HRA) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

4 Southsea Community Centre UB(HRA) 10,652             309,483         863,568         39,215           1,222,918         

CRec(HRA) 104,402           775,493         370,101         16,806           1,266,802         

RCCO(HRA) 641                 641                  

OCRec(HRA) 99,259             1,500,000       1,599,259         

Sub Total 214,954           2,584,975      1,233,669       56,021           -                -                -                -                4,089,619         

5 Plot 2 Wellington Street CRec(HRA) 938,025           938,025           

UB(HRA) 103,057           103,057           

RCCO(HRA) 917,245           917,245           

OCRec(HRA) 1,107,327        1,107,327         

Sub Total 3,065,654        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                3,065,654        

6 Arthur Pope House UB(HRA) 5,041,981        89,600           5,131,581         

CRec(HRA) 2,633,947        38,400           2,672,347         

RCCO(HRA) 1,732              1,732               

OCRec(HRA) 1,391,790        1,391,790         

Sub Total 9,069,450        128,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                9,197,450         

7 Development Internal Charges UB(HRA) -                  -                  

CRec(HRA) 56,889             56,889             

OCRec(HRA) 431,564           431,564           

Sub Total 488,453          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                488,453           

8 UB(HRA) 3,548,470        420,000         200,000         4,168,470         

OCRec(HRA) 1,590,140        1,590,140         

CRec(HRA) 2,224,477        180,000 2,404,477         

OG 97,500             97,500             

Sub Total 7,460,587        600,000         200,000         -                -                -                -                -                8,260,587        

Kingsclere Avenue

P
age 149



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (HRA) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

9 UB(HRA) 4,505,991        84,000           4,589,991         

OCRec(HRA) 1,149,855        1,149,855         

CRec(HRA) 2,345,667        36,000           2,381,667         

Sub Total 8,001,513        120,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                8,121,513         

10 UB(HRA) 539,888           539,888           

S106(Hsg) 14,993             14,993             

OCRec(HRA) 67,649             67,649             

OG 660,000           660,000           

Sub Total 1,282,530        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                1,282,530         

11 UB(HRA) 629,608           629,608           

CRec(HRA) 568,655           568,655           

OCRec(HRA) 632,487           632,487           

Sub Total 1,830,750        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                1,830,750         

12 UB(HRA) 37,118             234,448         2,502,598       1,741,856       104,729         4,620,748         

CRec(HRA) -                  100,478         1,072,542       746,510         44,884           1,964,413         

OCRec(HRA) -                  -                  

Sub Total 37,118             334,925         3,575,140       2,488,365      149,613          -                -                -                6,585,161         

13 UB(HRA) 5,883              30,882           1,488,669       42,000           1,567,434         

CRec(HRA) -                  13,235           638,001         18,000           669,236           

OCRec(HRA) -                  -                  

Sub Total 5,883              44,117            2,126,670       60,000           -                -                -                -                2,236,670        

Highgrove House

Holybourne Road

Longdean

Blendworth Crescent

Nessus Street

P
age 150



HOUSING PORTFOLIO (HRA) CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Identified Revised Exp.

Item Description of Scheme Source Exp. Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate in Final

No. of to for for for for for for Subsequent Cost

Finance 31 Mar 2019 2019 / 20 2020 / 21 2021 / 22 2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 Years

14 Eastern Rd New Properties S106(Hsg) 49,007             49,007             

UB(HRA) 1,039,054        40,000           1,079,054         

UB -                  -                  

OG 292,499           292,499           

OCRec(HRA) 433,179           433,179           

Sub Total 1,813,739        40,000           -                -                -                -                -                -                1,853,739         

15 Doyle Avenue New Build Properties OCRec(HRA) 25,403             25,403             

UB(HRA) -                  182,210         1,674,313       994,718         42,560           2,893,800         

CRec(HRA) -                  78,090           717,563         426,308         18,240           1,240,200         

Sub Total 25,403            260,300         2,391,875       1,421,025       60,800           -                -                -                4,159,403         

16 Replacement Homes CRec(HRA) 980,156           1,641,138       4,335,523       1,112,314       2,256,813       2,319,937       2,319,937       14,965,818       

OCRec(HRA) 588,620           1,400,000       1,350,000       1,300,000       1,250,000       1,200,000       7,088,620         

UB(HRA) 1,438,610        3,829,323       14,264,477     17,537,686     16,443,187     16,430,063     16,480,063     86,423,409       

S106(Hsg) 259,800           259,800           

Sub Total 3,267,186        5,470,461       20,000,000    20,000,000    20,000,000    20,000,000    20,000,000    -                108,737,647     

17 Bredenbury Crescent CRec(HRA) 10,956             110,400         121,356           

UB(HRA) 25,564             257,600         25,480           308,644           

Sub Total 36,520            368,000         25,480           -                -                -                -                -                430,000           

18 UB 800,000         800,000           

19 UB 850,000         850,000         1,700,000         

Grand Total 207,341,290 27,949,512 61,045,637 56,664,524 51,570,856 54,109,687 48,965,416 29,218,275 536,865,197

Transitional Accommodation for Homeless - Adaptations 
to HRA properties

Acquisition of New Council Housing

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 152



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Available Corporate Resources CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Council Contribution 
£

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Redeployable CCTV Cameras Purchase 5 redeployable CCTV cameras to compliment the fixed cameras deployed across Portsmouth to help
prevent and tackle crime and disorder. These cameras can be affixed to lamp posts usually for a temporary period
in areas that do not currently have CCTV to target problem areas cost effectively

50,000                         50,000                         5,000

Southsea Common & Town Centre Litter Management Introduction of new litter bin furniture across Southsea Common & Town Centres including signposting to
recycling points. Leading to an improved provision of general waste receptacles, combined litter/dog waste
receptacles (reducing site clutter), reduced reliance on temporary receptacles that are prone to scavengers which
disperse collected litter and improved opportunities to recycle

50,000                         50,000                         

CCTV - Portsmouth Museum & Cumberland House To replace/install CCTV in both museums that will meet the insurance condition of 'Minimising Losses-Duty of
Assured'. The current system installed at City Museum does not provide coverage of all areas which is a risk to the
collections. There is no working system currently at Cumberland House. The installation of CCTV will ensure the
safety of collections, visitors and staff

50,000                         50,000                         

City Museum Essential building maintenance including external decorations and associated repairs to windows, roof and
brickwork. Mechanical & Electrical works identified include replacement of electrical fuse board and lighting
improvements 

195,000                       195,000                       

Farlington Pavilion Farlington Pavilion including  roof replacement 170,000                       240,000                       

New Eastney Swimming Pool New Eastney Swimming Pool feasibility/Outline Plan 100,000                       100,000                       

Portsmouth Watersports Centre Replace defective structural beams to walkway 90,000                         90,000                         

Southsea Castle Replacement of damaged railings and repairs to timber drawbridge 100,000                       100,000                       

Bransbury Park Pavilion Demolish existing building and replace with modular building 150,000                       150,000                       

Kings Theatre Regeneration To enhance both the current offer to the city from the theatre and to secure the heritage asset in the long term, it
is necessary to increase revenue income streams available to the theatre.  
Portsmouth City Council in partnership with the Kings Theatre Trust plan to address the significant limitations to
the buildings and facilities, as well as improving existing facilities to match modern audience expectations through
a regeneration project, along with other improvements,  including the addition of a  restaurant and bar facilities

350,000                       4,650,000                   

Kings Theatre Landlord's Backlog Maintenance Obligations Essential landlord's maintenance repairs 300,000                       300,000                       

School Places - SEND Phase 1 & 2 Creation of additional specialist provision to meeting growing demand from children with Special Educations 
Needs and Disabilities

2,000,000                   4,768,000                   

Description of Scheme

Culture & City Development

Education

Community Safety

P
age 153



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Available Corporate Resources CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Council Contribution 
£

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Description of Scheme

Anaerobic Digestion Plant Construction of an anaerobic digestion plant to break down organic matter, including food waste, to produce
biogas and biofertilser  

200,000                       22,200,000                 

Food Waste Collection (Recycling) - Expansion to include a
further round each day

Addition of a collection vehicle that will enable the expansion of the current weekly food waste collection service
to a further 8,000 to 9,000 properties 

221,000                       221,000                       365,000

Southsea Sea Defences - Public Realm Enhancements Phase 1 Public realm enhancements including provision of benches, lighting, tree planting and public art which will be
complimentary to planned sea defence works 

200,000                       200,000                       

Greening the City Planting of new trees in the city, such as street trees and other types of green infrastructure e.g. improvements to
existing green spaces in areas with highest need

100,000                       100,000                       

Medina House - Heating & Cooling System Renewal of the heating and cooling systems in order to provide long term suitable accommodation 110,000                       110,000                       

Landlords Maintenance - Repairs across the whole City Council
Estate

The Council has landlord maintenance responsibility for over 2,000 operational assets. Detailed surveys are carried
out and updated annually, to ensure that maintenance needs of all assets are recognised and planned for within
the medium term maintenance programme. Remediation requirements are categorised according to their severity
and impact. Only works classified as being of the highest priority will proceed. Proposed maintenance work
combine a number of projects including building works, mechanical and electrical installations and plant
refurbishments

2,140,000                   2,140,000                   

Transitional Accommodation for the Homeless - Adaptions to
General Fund Property

Furnish and fit out suitable General Fund Property to be used as transitional accommodation for the homeless,
which will remove households from costly Bed and Breakfast and hotel accommodation

700,000                       700,000                       

Wind Turbines at the Port Installation of up to 9 wind turbines at the Port. The electricity generated by the wind turbines to be utilised by
the Port and potentially Portico.  There is also potential for surplus electricity generated to be sold back to the grid

800,000                       2,700,000                   

The Camber Quay - Structural Investigations Structural investigation on  south side and berth 4 50,000                         50,000                         

Shore to Ship Electric "Plug In" Facility (Feasibility/Design) Feasibility and design of the installation of shoreside electrical power at Port berth 2. Provision will enable ships
to "plug in" to the mains electrical supply removing the need for them to operate their generators whilst alongside

75,000                         75,000                         

Electrification of Light Goods Vehicles Replacement of 5 diesel light goods vehicles at the port with electric vehicles 80,000                         100,000                       (3,000)

Living Walls Phase 1 Coverage of walls at the Port with plants to absorb air pollutants 20,000                         20,000                         500

LAN Access Switches Redesign and replacement of equipment that is at end of life. The switches enable users to access the network
and IT Services via their laptops, desktops and phones. It also enables users to access the network via WiFi. The
redesign will enable improved performance, reduce revenue costs by 50% and ensure increased resilience

528,000                       528,000                       34,000

Housing - General Fund

Health, Wellbeing & Social Care

Environment & Climate Change

Leader

Resources

P
age 154



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Available Corporate Resources CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Council Contribution 
£

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Description of Scheme

Enterprise Voice (CISCO IPT) Replacement of the current telephony solution, which is de-supported by the provider from December 2021. This
new infrastructure will continue to provide telephony services across the council

630,000                       630,000                       

Replacement Servers & Storage Replacement of core IT servers, storage and equipment that will be de-supported during 2020/2021 and avoiding
additional costs of circa £200,000 p.a  

945,000                       945,000                       

CISCO Data Centre Switches Replacement of key Data Centre Switch components that are de-supported from November 2021 including the
receipt of security updates. This equipment ensures that all our IT Services operate and are accessible 365 days a
year

60,000                         60,000                         

Checkpoint Internal Firewall Replacement of security equipment that is de-supported from June 2021. This equipment prevents unauthorized
access to and from the Portsmouth City Council network. It's essential that this equipment is kept up to date to
ensure retention of the Government (Public Service Network (PSN) ) compliance certification

142,000                       142,000                       

Upgrade to Planet Press Software Upgrade of the Planetpress operating system to the latest version. This application is a critical corporate
integration tool used for processes including BAC's processing and Council Tax billing. The current software
version is de-supported by the software provider during 2020 

650,000                       650,000                       5,000

Air Quality Improvement To support ongoing improvements to Air Quality, at exceedance locations and across the city as a whole. To
support the work of the Air Quality Local Plan and the development of further measures to reduce air pollution in
the city

220,000                       10,220,000                 

Local Transport Plan 3 The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is a proactive plan prepared to complement the City Centre development and city
centre road plans.
  
The LTP programme of small schemes promotes the creation of an effective, integrated transport network
designed to contribute towards corporate priorities and a range of transport objectives.

Transport is an enabler of activity, and will underpin regeneration in the Portsmouth area. The regeneration and
economic success of the city is dependent upon the reliability of the transport network, enabling people, freight
and goods to access, and travel within the city

It includes Road Safety schemes such as speed reduction and improvements to school routes, active travel
schemes such as walking and cycling initiatives, pedestrian crossings, traffic signals and improvements to
passenger information

835,000                       835,000                       

Cycle Parking Across the City Provision of secure cycle parking at locations across the city 25,000                         25,000                         

One Way Streets and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Identification and conversion of suitable streets to one way traffic and the installation of traffic calming measures 120,000                       120,000                       

Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Installation of enabling infrastructure to promote the uptake of electric vehicles to support the air quality agenda 76,000                         306,000                       

Traffic & Transportation

P
age 155



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Available Corporate Resources CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Council Contribution 
£

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Description of Scheme

Local Cycling and Walking Investment Plan The Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan is currently being developed and will be adopted by March 2020.
It will propose new and improved infrastructure for walking and cycling on evidence based priority corridors,
delivering a comprehensive attractive, safe and accessible walking and cycle network for utility journeys. The plan
will have schemes prioritised for delivery over short, medium and long timescales.

100,000                       100,000                       

Full Business Case For Extension to Tipner Park & Ride Multi
Storey Car Park

The provision of an expanded Park and Ride site is key to the economic development of both the Tipner and City
Centre developments. In collaboration with stakeholders, this investment will allow the Council to prepare a full
business case for a facility that meets the future need of the City

500,000                       500,000                       

Non-PFI Asset Management Register/Plan Compilation of a comprehensive asset register and condition status of all non-Highways PFI assets 100,000                       100,000                       

Continuous Improvements to Neighbourhood Living and Street
Environment

Continuing the construction of neighbourhood and street improvements that will lead to better use of 'fence to
fence' space and improved access arrangements for pedestrians, cyclists and motor vehicles across the city. Types
of improvements include an extension of the successful verge hardening schemes, dragon's teeth and kerb
realignment to improve access for emergency vehicles and schemes that better segregate parking and clear-ways
for pedestrians and wheel chair users 

100,000                       240,000                       

Total of New Schemes Starting in 2020/21 Relying on Available Corporate Resources 13,332,000                 54,760,000                 406,500

Footnote -Where a scheme has more than one source of financing, scheme savings are shown within the prudential borrowing section of this appendix

P
age 156



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Prudential Borrowing CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Council  Borrowing £ Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
(Saving) After 

Borrowing Costs

Kings Theatre Regeneration Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal, to enhance both the current offer to the city from the theatre and to
secure the heritage asset in the long term, it is necessary to increase revenue income streams available to the
theatre.  
Portsmouth City Council in partnership with the Kings Theatre Trust plan to address the significant limitations to
the buildings and facilities, as well as improving existing facilities to match modern audience expectations through
a regeneration project, along with other improvements,  including, the addition of a  restaurant and bar facilities

3,000,000                   4,650,000                   

Guildhall Regeneration Subject to a satisfactory financial appraisal enhancement of the current Guildhall entertainment facilities and to
secure the heritage asset in the long term, by increasing revenue income streams

1,700,000                   1,700,000                   

Anaerobic Digestion Plant Dependent upon the satisfactory conclusion of a feasibility study, site selection and full business case approval the
construction of an anaerobic digestion plant to break down organic matter, including food waste, to produce
biogas and biofertilser

22,000,000                 22,200,000                 

Transitional Accommodation for the Homeless - Adaptations /
Acquisition to HRA Property

Provision of new homes to be used as used as transitional accommodation for the homeless, which will remove
households from costly Bed and Breakfast and hotel accommodation

800,000                       800,000                       

Acquisition of New Council Housing Provision of a minimum of 11 new council homes 1,700,000                   1,700,000                   

Port - Floating Dock Jetty Dredge Dredging next to the former Floating Dock Jetty structure. The Port berth 2 extension makes the dredging a
necessity to provide sufficient space for existing large ships to continue calling at Portico, and future larger ship
calls at the Port and Portico.  This need is further heightened when there is a ship moored on berth 2

2,000,000                   3,000,000                   (374,000)

Wind Turbines at the Port Installation of up to 9 wind turbines at the Port. The electricity generated by the wind turbines to be utilised by
the Port and potentially Portico.  There is also potential for surplus electricity generated to be sold back to the grid

1,900,000                   2,700,000                   (37,600)

City Centre Co-working space Creation of new co-working office space on the first floor of the site formerly occupied by Marks and Spencer in
Commercial Road. Space will be rented to SME's and start-up businesses to bring employment back into the city
centre and support the regeneration of the Commercial Road area

450,000                       1,800,000                   (157,100)

Total of New Schemes Starting in 2020/21 Relying on Prudential Borrowing 33,550,000                 38,550,000                 (568,700)

Description of Scheme

Environment & Climate Change

Schemes to be approved in principal and funded from prudential borrowing but only if supported by a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance & Resources and S151 
Officer which demonstrates that borrowing costs can be met from savings arising from the scheme

Footnote -Where a scheme has more than one source of financing, scheme savings are shown within the prudential borrowing section of this appendix

Culture & City Development

Housing Revenue Account

Leader

P
age 157



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Reserves CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Reserves 
Contribution £

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Adaptions to Carers' Homes To provide adaptations to carers' homes or support to move home, to allow more children to be looked after by
either their extended family, to be adopted or to be fostered by in house foster carers. This will reduce the number 
of Independent Foster Carers and Residential Care Home Placements, and is an important part of the Stronger
Futures strategy. This would be administered in line with the Foster Carer Adaptations policy implemented in June
2019. 

1,000,000                   1,000,000                   (800,000)

Parks & Open Space Boundary Protection Measures The city has been subject to an increased number of incursions in 2018 and 2019. Comprehensive access
prevention measures need to be introduced to areas previously not susceptible to incursion (particularly Southsea
Common), or where determined attempts to gain access mean further measures are required citywide

10,000                         10,000                         

Burfields Road Barns - Demolition Demolish existing barns which are structurally unsafe 162,000                       162,000                       

Canoe Lake De-silting Silt and detritus in Canoe Lake has built-up over many years to a level that is now causing issues with water quality
management and operation of the Lake concession

25,000                         25,000                         

Hotwalls Paving Maintenance Replacement of existing paving that has become uneven as result of tree root damage, using a surface conducive
to the sustainability of  the trees whilst minimising any future tip hazard 

32,000                         32,000                         

Port - Floating Dock Jetty Dredge Dredging next to the former Floating Dock Jetty structure. The Port berth 2 extension makes the dredging a
necessity to provide sufficient space for existing large ships to continue calling at the Port and Portico, and future
larger ship calls at Portico.  This need is further heightened when there is a ship moored on berth 2

1,000,000                   3,000,000                   

Electrification of Light Goods Vehicles Replacement of 5 diesel light goods vehicles at the port with electric vehicles 20,000                         100,000                       

City Centre Co-working space Creation of new co-working office space on the first floor of the site formerly occupied by Marks and Spencer in
Commercial Road. Space will be rented to SME's and start-up businesses to bring employment back into the city
centre and support the regeneration of the Commercial Road area

450,000                       1,800,000                   (157,100)

Applications Upgrade linked to Software Modernisation Following upgrade of the SQL 2008 Database and Servers, there is now a requirement to upgrade
systems/applications

250,000                       250,000                       

Office 365 Implement of a Microsoft Office 365 environment which will provide greater collaborative working; also enabling
SharePoint, One Drive, Exchange Online  and Office Applications

820,000                       820,000                       

Description of Scheme

Schemes to be approved in principal and funded from reserves but only if supported by a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance & Resources and S151 Officer

Culture & City Development

Children & Families

Leader

Resources

P
age 158



APPENDIX 2

NEW SCHEMES STARTING IN 2020/21 and Relying on Reserves CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Scheme Details Reserves 
Contribution £

Total Capital Cost £ Annual Revenue 
Cost / (Saving)

Description of Scheme

Schemes to be approved in principal and funded from reserves but only if supported by a satisfactory financial appraisal approved by the Director of Finance & Resources and S151 Officer

Migration to Azure (Cloud Servers) PCC server Estate will be off operated off premise 2,348,000                   2,348,000                   

Implementation of Northgate Citizen Access Suite Self service and process automation capability for Housing Benefit claimants, Council Tax support claimants and
landlords via an online portal along with provision of e-billing functionality to Council Tax payers and e:notification
options to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Claimants

110,000                       180,000                       

Total of New Schemes Starting in 2020/21 Relying on Reserves 6,227,000 9,727,000 (957,100)

Footnote -Where a scheme has more than one source of financing, scheme savings are shown within the prudential borrowing section of this appendix

P
age 159



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 160



APPENDIX 3

Details of the Capital Programme are contained in Appendix 1

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Non - HRA 10.3% 12.0% 16.3% 17.4% 16.2% 14.4% 12.6%
HRA 7.4% 7.4% 7.9% 8.4% 8.9% 9.2% 9.6%

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Non - HRA 453,626 633,173 678,951 702,075 705,023 699,069 683,978
HRA 173,068                  175,807                 189,155                 209,201               225,455                241,033             263,318              

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Borrowing 658,069                  744,623                 825,730                 875,006               899,818                913,288             924,923              
Other Long Term Liabilities (ie Credit Arrangements) 66,151                    62,377                   57,151                   51,340                 46,032                  42,494               38,366                
Total 724,220           807,000          882,881          926,346        945,850         955,782       963,289        

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Borrowing 640,093                  714,623                 810,955                 859,935               884,446                897,608             908,930              
Other Long Term Liabilities (ie Credit Arrangements) 66,151                    62,377                   57,151                   51,340                 46,032                  42,494               38,366                
Total 706,244           777,000          868,106          911,276        930,478         940,102       947,296        

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

Capital Financing Requirement

Authorised Limit for External Debt

Operational Boundary for External Debt

P
age 161



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 162



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

1 

 

 
 

 
Title of meeting: 
 

Cabinet 
City Council 

Date of meeting: 
 

Cabinet 4th February 2020 
City Council 11th February 2020 

Subject: 
 

Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 

Report by: 
 

Director of Finance and Information Technology (Section 151 
Officer) 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: Yes 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

This report outlines the Council's performance against the treasury 
management indicators approved by the Council on 19 March 2019.  

 

2. Purpose of report  

The purpose of the report is to inform members and the wider community of the 
Council’s Treasury Management position at 30 September 2019.  

In March 2009 the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Treasury Management Panel issued a bulletin relating to Treasury 
Management in Local Authorities. The bulletin states that “in order to enshrine 
best practice it is suggested that authorities report formally on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice yearly and preferably quarterly”. The report 
in Appendix A covers the first six months of 2019/20. 
 

3. Recommendations 

 It is recommended that: 

3.1 It be noted that there have been no breaches of the Treasury Management 
Policy 2019/20 in the period up to 30 September 2019. 
 

3.4 The actual Treasury Management indicators for September 2019 in Appendix A 
be noted  

Page 163

Agenda Item 10



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

2 

 

 

4. Background 

The Council's treasury management operations cover the following: 

 Cash flow forecasting (both daily balances and longer term forecasting 

 Investing surplus funds in approved investments 

 Borrowing to finance short term cash deficits and capital payments 

 Management of debt (including rescheduling and ensuring an even 
maturity profile) 

 Interest rate exposure management 
 
The key risks associated with the Council's treasury management operations 
are: 

1. Credit risk - ie. that the Council is not repaid, with due interest in full, on 
the day repayment is due 

2. Liquidity risk - ie. that cash will not be available when it is needed, or that 
the ineffective management of liquidity creates additional, unbudgeted 
costs 

3. Interest rate risk - that the Council fails to get good value for its cash 
dealings (both when borrowing and investing) and the risk that interest 
costs incurred are in excess of those for which the Council has budgeted 

4. Maturity (or refinancing risk) - this relates to the Council's borrowing or 
capital financing activities, and is the risk that the Council is unable to 
repay or replace its maturing funding arrangements on appropriate terms 

5. Procedures (or systems) risk - ie. that a treasury process, human or 
otherwise, will fail and planned actions are not carried out through fraud, 
error or corruption  

 
The total borrowings of the Council including finance leases and private 
finance initiative (PFI) schemes are £727m.  
 
The Council has investments lodged with 47 institutions that amount to 
£360m. 
 
The cost of the Council's borrowings and the income derived from the 
Council's investments are included within the Council's treasury management 
budget of £24m. The Council's treasury management activities account for a 
significant proportion of the Council's overall budget. As a consequence the 
Council's Treasury Management Policy aims to manage risk whilst optimizing 
costs and returns. The Council monitors and measures its treasury 
management position against the indicators described in this report. Treasury 
management monitoring reports are brought to the Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee for scrutiny.   
 
There have been no breaches of the Treasury Management Policy up to the 
period ending 30 September 2019. 

Page 164



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

3 

 

 

 
 5.  Reasons for Recommendations  

Recommendation 3.1 
 
To highlight any variance from the approved Treasury Management Policy and 
to note any subsequent actions. 
 
Recommendation 3.2 

 
To provide assurance that the Council's treasury management activities are 
effectively managed. 

 
6. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 

 
The contents of this report do not have any relevant equalities impact and 
therefore an equalities impact assessment is not required. 

 
7. Legal Implications 

 
The Section 151 Officer is required by the Local Government Act 1972 and by 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to ensure that the Council’s 
budgeting, financial management, and accounting practices meet the relevant 
statutory and professional requirements. Members must have regard to and be 
aware of the wider duties placed on the Council by various statutes governing 
the conduct of its financial affairs. 

8. Director of Finance’s comments 
 

All financial considerations are contained within the body of the report and the 
attached appendices 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………. 

Signed by Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer)  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
Appendix B: LIBID Rates 

Page 165



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

4 

 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon 
to a material extent by the author in preparing this report: 

 

Title of document Location 

1 Information pertaining to treasury 
management strategy and 
performance 

Financial Services 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 166



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

5 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REVIEW OF 2019/20 

A1. SUMMARY OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS AS AT 30 
SEPTEMBER  

The Council's debt at 30 September was as follows: 
 

 
Limit Position at 

30/9/2019 

Authorised Limit £807m £727m 

Operational 
Boundary 

£777m £727m 

  

The maturity structure of the Council's fixed rate borrowing was: 
 

 Under 1 
Year 

1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Lower 
Limit 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Upper 
Limit 

10% 10% 10% 20% 30% 30% 40% 40% 

Actual 1% 1% 4% 7% 22% 8% 25% 32% 

 
The maturity structure of the Council's variable rate borrowing was: 
 

 Under 1 
Year 

1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Lower 
Limit 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Upper 
Limit 

10% 10% 10% 20% 30% 30% 30% 30% 

Actual 2% 2% 6% 10% 22% 23% 21% 14% 

 
Sums invested for periods longer than 365 days at 30 September 2019 were: 
 

 Maturing after Limit 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

31/3/20 205 130 

31/3/21 144 24 

31/3/22 117 10 
  

Page 167



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

6 

 

 

A2. GOVERNANCE 

The Treasury Management Policy Statement, Annual Minimum Revenue Provision 
for Debt Repayment Statement and Annual Investment Strategy approved by the 
City Council on 19 March 2019 provide the framework within which Treasury 
Management activities are undertaken.  

A3. COMBINED BORROWING AND INVESTMENT POSITION (NET DEBT) 

On 30 September 2019 the Council had gross debt including finance leases and 
private finance initiative (PFI) schemes of £727m and gross investments of £360m 
giving rise to a net debt of £367m. The current level of investments has arisen 
from the Council's earmarked reserves and the borrowing of further cash to take 
advantage of exceptionally low borrowing rates to fund the Council's capital 
programme. The current level of investments does increase the Council’s 
exposure to credit risk, ie. the risk that an approved borrower defaults on the 
Council’s investment. In the interim period, there is a short term risk that the rates 
(and therefore the cost) at which money has been borrowed will be greater than 
the rates at which the cash can be invested. The difference between current 
borrowing and investment rates is 0.36%. Moreover, securing low cost funding for 
the capital programme now will have a lower overall cost than if the borrowing was 
undertaken later when rates had increased.  

A4. BORROWING ACTIVITY 

There was a slight reduction in Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) rates in the first 
quarter of 2019/20 with continued uncertainty over the Conservative Party 
leadership election and a lack of clarity around Brexit. 
 
Although the Council had cash investments of £417m at the start of 2019/20, most 
of these investments matured after the expected completion date for acquiring 
Lakeside North Harbour Business Park.  
 
With a lack of clarity over Brexit, trade uncertainty and global growth concerns, 
market expectations for an increase in interest rates before May 2020 were close 
to zero. Market expectations for a cut in the Bank Rate before May 2020 had 
picked up on the dovishness of the Bank of England and the Federal Reserve at 
their recent policy meetings although this was not a strong view. With the 
likelihood of an interest rate cut exceeding the likelihood of an increase in interest 
rates, the remaining £30m required to facilitate the acquisition of Lakeside North 
Harbour Business Park was borrowed short term and has now been repaid.  
 

Page 168



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

7 

 

Overall there has been a near halving of longer term PWLB rates to completely 
unprecedented historic low levels over the last half year. As a consequence of this 
the Council borrowed a further £57m form the PWLB, in addition to the £20m 
previously borrowed in May 2019, as follows: 

 £20m for 25 years fixed at 1.57% on 7th August repayable in equal instalments 
of principal 

 £17m for 49 years fixed at 1.67% on 20th August repayable at maturity 

 £20m for 45 years fixed at 1.59% on 5th September repayable at maturity 
 
The average interest rate payable on the long term borrowing of £77m in the first 
half of 2019/20 is 1.78%.  

 
The Council's gross borrowing at 30th September 2019 of £727m is within the 
Council's Authorised Limit (the maximum amount of borrowing approved by City 
Council) of £807m and also within the Council's Operational Boundary (the limit 
beyond which borrowing is not expected to exceed) of £777m. 
 
The Council plans for gross borrowing to have a reasonably even maturity profile. 
This is to ensure that the Council does not need to replace large amounts of 
maturing borrowing when interest rates could be unfavourable. 
 
The actual maturity profile of the Council's borrowing is within the limits contained 
within the Council's Treasury Management Policy (see paragraph A1). 
 
Future Borrowing 
 
On 9 October 2019 the Treasury and PWLB announced an increase in the margin over 
gilt yields of 1.00% on top of the current margin of 0.80% which this authority has paid 
prior to this date for new borrowing from the PWLB.   There was no prior warning that 
this would happen and it now means that every local authority has to fundamentally 
reassess how to finance their external borrowing needs and the financial viability of 
capital projects in their capital programme due to this unexpected increase in the cost of 
borrowing. 
 
In the short term, the Council can fund its capital programme from either external 
borrowing or internal borrowing. Internal borrowing is the practice of using the 
Council's cash backed reserves to fund the capital programme in the short term. It 
should be noted that this defers the need to borrow externally rather than avoiding 
the need to borrow completely, as the Council will ultimately be forced to borrow 
externally as it spends its cash backed reserves. However, the Council is forecast to 
have sufficient funds to defer having to borrow externally until 2023/24. 
 
Whereas this authority has previously relied on the PWLB as its main source of funding, 
it now has to fundamentally reconsider alternative cheaper sources of borrowing. At the 
current time, this is a developmental area as this event has also taken the financial 
services industry by surprise. We are expecting that various financial institutions will 
enter the market or make products available to local authorities. Members will be 
updated as this area evolves. 

Page 169



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

8 

 

It is possible that the Municipal Bond Agency will be offering loans to local authorities in 
the future. This Authority may make use of this new source of borrowing as and when 
appropriate. 

Early Redemption of Borrowing 
 
With the exception of two loans all the Council's borrowings to finance capital 
expenditure are fixed rate and fixed term loans. This reduces interest rate risk and 
provides a high degree of budget certainty.  
 
The Council's borrowing portfolio is kept under review to identify if and when it 
would be financially beneficial to repay any specific loans early. Repaying borrowing 
early invariably results in a premium (early repayment charges) by the PWLB that 
are sufficiently large to make early repayment of borrowing financially unattractive to 
the Council. 
 
No debt rescheduling or early repayment of debt has been undertaken during the 
first half of 2019/20 as it has not have been financially advantageous for the Council 
to do so. 

 
Under/Over Borrowing 
 
The extent to which the Council is "under" or "over" borrowed is determined by 
comparing the actual value of long term borrowing outstanding with the value of 
capital expenditure that has been incurred and was financed by borrowing (after 
deducting Minimum Revenue Provision that has been made in respect of that 
capital expenditure). 
 
If the Council has borrowed less than it requires to fund the total value of capital 
expenditure to be funded from borrowing the Council is "under borrowed" and if the 
value of borrowing is greater than the value of capital expenditure incurred which is 
to be financed from borrowing it is "over borrowed". 
 
At 31 March 2019 the Council was over borrowed by £29m. Whilst the Council 
borrowed £77m in the first half of 2019/20, the Council will be under borrowed by 
the end of 2019/20 following the acquisition of Lakeside North Harbour Business 
Park. 
 

A5. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 

It is a very difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates 
commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the 
current 0.75% Bank Rate.  The continuing potential for a re-emergence of a 
Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, means that increases in 
Bank Rate are likely to be gradual and unlikely to return to the levels seen in 
previous decades, investment returns are likely to remain low. Appendix B shows 
the actual market rates available for the first half of 2019/20. Bank base rate is not 
expected to rise again this financial year and then to only rise slowly thereafter.  

Page 170



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

9 

 

 
The Council's surplus cash investments have decreased by £57m from £417m at 
31st March 2019 to £360m at 30th September 2019. This is due to the acquisition of 
Lakeside North Harbour Business Park. The average rate of return on the Council's 
cash investments has risen from 1.12% in 2018/19 to 1.42% in the half of 2019/20. 
The improvement in the return on the Council's cash investments is due to an 
increase in the market value of tradable investments with returns that cannot be 
matched in the current low interest rate environment. Investment returns may fall as 
these current investments mature, unless the interest rates offered on new 
investments improve.  
 
There have been no defaults on the City Council's investments in the current year. 
However, £0.6m was lent to Victory Energy Services Limited (VESL), a subsidiary 
company of the City Council, in 2019/20. VESL is now in the process of being 
wound up and is expected to default on its debts to the Council. A provision has 
been made for losses on lending to VESL up to 31st March 2019 of £2.8m. The 
£0.6m lent to VESL since 1st April 2019 will be a loss to the Council in 2019/20. If 
the expected losses from lending to VESL are taken into account, the average 
return falls to 1.15%.   
 
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2019/20 is £4.2m and performance for 
the year to date is £0.3m above budget after taking account of the expected losses 
on lending to VESL. All the Council's investments have been in accordance with the 
Council's Treasury Management Policy approved by Full Council in March 2019 and 
there are no breaches to report. 
 
A summary of the Council's surplus cash investment portfolio is shown in the graph 
below. These investments totaled £360m as at 30th September 2019. 
 

Page 171



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

10 

 

Local 
Authorities

Money 
Market 
Funds

Rated BS

RSL

Tradable 
Banks

Banks

Unrated BS

Corporate 
Bond Fund

Subsidiary 
Companies

Composition of Investment 
Portfolio

 

Money Market Funds 
Money market funds are instant access investments in AAA rated pooled funds. 
 
Tradable Investments in Banks and Corporates (Commercial Companies) 
Some investments in banks and corporates (commercial companies) are tradable. 
This means that the Council can sell the investments at any time to a third party. 
This contrasts with bank and building society term deposits which can only be 
repaid by the bank or building society. 
 
Externally Management Corporate Bond Holdings 
The Council has some externally managed corporate bond holdings. These consist 
of tradable debt issued by commercial companies. 
 
Rated Building Societies 
These are building societies with at least two credit ratings from Standard and Poor, 
Moody's or Fitch. 
 
Unrated Building Societies 
These are building societies that do not have at least two credit ratings from 
Standard and Poor, Moody's or Fitch.   

Page 172



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

11 

 

 
A6. INTEREST RATE EXPOSURES 

 
The Councils net debt position at 30th September 2019 is summarised in the table 
below. 

 Principal Average Interest 
Rate 

Interest to 30th 
September 2019 

Borrowing 
(including finance 
leases & private 
finance initiative 
(PFI) schemes) 

£727m 3.19% £11.6m 

Investments (360m)* (1.42%) (£3.0m) 

Net Debt £367m  £8.6m 

 

*Although the Council's investments had fallen £360m at 30th September 2019, the 
average sum invested over this period was £423m. 

   

Page 173



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

12 

 

  
APPENDIX B 

 
LIBID RATES 

 
LIBID rates are London inter-bank bid rates and give an indication of the rates 

available in the London money market 
 

Page 174



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

13 

 

 

Page 175



 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20 
 

 

14 

 

  
 

Page 176



1 of 1 

 
 

QUESTIONS FOR THE CABINET OR CHAIR  
UNDER STANDING ORDER NO 17. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 11 February 2020 

 
 
QUESTION NO 1 
 
FROM: COUNCILLOR CAL CORKERY 
 
TO REPLY: LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

COUNCILLOR GERALD VERNON-JACKSON  
 
Can the Leader provide an update as to what progress has been 
achieved regarding the regeneration of the former Tricorn site by the 
Delancey-PCC joint venture since Cabinet agreed to its formation in 
February 2019? 
 

Page 177

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Ordinary Council meeting held on 14 January 2020
	8 Portsmouth City Council Budget and Council Tax 2020/21 and Medium Term Budget Forecast 2021/22 to 2023/24
	Agenda item:
	8 Revenue Budget 2020/21
	 Dedicated Schools Grant – In September 2019, the Secretary of State for Education announced that Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding for 2020/21 would rise by £2.6bn, plus £1.5bn to fund additional pension costs for teachers.  Each local authority...
	 Independent Living Fund  – ILF Recipient Grant will continue to be paid to local authorities in 2020/21 and there will be no changes to the amount.
	 Local Government Funding Reforms – There were no additional papers published or mentioned relating to the local government funding reforms that are planned for introduction from April 2021 (i.e. Fair Funding, 75% Business Rates Retention, the full r...

	11. Cash Limits 2020/21
	11.1 As previously described, Cash Limits relate to that element of the Budget that is Portfolio and Service specific and which is controllable.  Cash Limits have been prepared to reflect all changes set out in the proposed Budget for 2020/21 describe...
	14. Medium Term Resource Strategy Reserve
	Environment and Climate Change Portfolio
	Health, Wellbeing and Social Care Portfolio
	Director of Adult Services

	Housing Portfolio
	Leader Portfolio
	Director of Culture, Leisure & Regulatory Services

	Resources Portfolio
	Director of Finance
	Director of Public Health

	Traffic and Transportation Portfolio
	Director of Regeneration


	9 Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2024/25
	1 Apologies
	Capital Budget Appendix 1a - Summary
	Capital Budget Appendix 1b - Detail
	Capital Budget Appendix 2 new schemes
	Capital Budget Appendix 3 prudential indicators

	1 Apologies
	1 Apologies
	1 Apologies
	1 Apologies

	10 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2019/20
	11 Questions from Members under Standing Order No 17.

